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WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
FORM 10-K
PART I
Item 1. Business
(a)

General Development of Business

We were formed as a limited partnership under the laws of the State of Delaware in August 2000. The
principal executive oÇces of WEG GP LLC, our General Partner, are located at One Williams Center, Tulsa,
Oklahoma 74172 (telephone (877) 934-6571).
On April 11, 2002, we acquired all of the membership interests of Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC
(""Williams Pipe Line'') from a wholly owned subsidiary of The Williams Companies, Inc. (""Williams'') for
approximately $1.0 billion. Williams Pipe Line owns and operates the Williams Pipe Line system. Because
Williams Pipe Line was an aÇliate of ours at the time of the acquisition, the transaction was between entities
under common control and, as such, was accounted for similarly to a pooling of interests. Accordingly, we
have restated our historical Ñnancial statements to combine our results with those of Williams Pipe Line. We
Ñnanced the acquisition through a $700.0 million short-term loan and the issuance of 7,830,924 Class B
common units (""Class B units'') to Williams. As a result, Williams and its subsidiaries' ownership interest in
us increased from approximately 60% to approximately 77%, including its general partner interest.
On May 23, 2002, we completed a public oÅering of 8,000,000 common units from which we received net
proceeds of approximately $289.0 million after considering Williams' contribution to maintain its 2% general
partner interest and payment of oÅering fees. As a result, Williams' ownership interest in us decreased to
approximately 55%, which includes its 53% limited partnership interest and 2% general partner interest.
On November 15, 2002 we issued and sold $420 million of senior secured notes in a private placement,
which was used to repay the short-term loan incurred at the time we acquired Williams Pipe Line and related
fees. We issued an additional $60 million of senior secured notes on December 6, 2002, which was used
primarily for repayment of our other debt.
In November 2002, Williams created a new general partner, WEG GP LLC (""General Partner''). The
new general partner, which is owned by aÇliates of Williams, has all of the rights, privileges and
responsibilities relative to us previously held by the former general partner, Williams GP LLC. Williams GP
LLC will continue to own the Class B units issued to it by us in April 2002.
On February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner and
all of its limited partnership interests. It is uncertain what form this potential transaction may take and
management cannot currently assess what impact such an acquisition would have on the on-going operations
of the Partnership.
(b)

Financial Information About Segments
See Part II, Item 8 Ì Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

(c)

Narrative Description of Business

We are principally engaged in the storage, transportation and distribution of reÑned petroleum products
and ammonia. Our asset portfolio currently consists of:
‚ the Williams Pipe Line system, a 6,700-mile reÑned petroleum products pipeline system, including 39
petroleum products terminals, serving the mid-continent region of the United States;
‚ Ñve petroleum products terminal facilities located along the Gulf Coast and near the New York harbor.
We refer to these facilities as our marine terminals;
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‚ 23 petroleum products terminals (some of which are partially owned) located principally in the
southeastern United States. We refer to these terminals as our inland terminals; and
‚ an ammonia pipeline system, which extends approximately 1,100 miles from Texas and Oklahoma to
Minnesota.
Upon the closing of our initial public oÅering in February 2001, four marine terminals, 24 inland
terminals and the ammonia pipeline system were transferred to us, including related liabilities. We acquired an
additional marine terminal and two inland terminals and sold one inland terminal during 2001. In 2002, we
acquired the Williams Pipe Line system and sold two inland terminals.
ReÑned Petroleum Products Transportation and Distribution
The United States reÑned petroleum products transportation and distribution system links oil reÑneries to
end-users of gasoline and other reÑned petroleum products and is comprised of a network of pipelines,
terminals, storage facilities, tankers, barges, rail cars and trucks. For transportation of reÑned petroleum
products, pipelines are generally the lowest-cost alternative for intermediate and long-haul movements
between diÅerent markets. Throughout the distribution system, terminals play a key role in moving products
to the end-user market by providing storage, distribution, blending and other ancillary services. Products
transported, stored and distributed through the Williams Pipe Line system and marine and inland terminals
include:
‚ reÑned petroleum products, which are the output from reÑneries and are often used as fuels by
consumers. ReÑned petroleum products include gasoline, diesel, jet fuel, kerosene and heating oil;
‚ liqueÑed petroleum gases, or LPGs, which are produced as by-products of the crude oil reÑning process
and in connection with natural gas production. LPGs include butane and propane;
‚ blendstocks, which are blended with petroleum products to change or enhance their characteristics
such as increasing a gasoline's octane or oxygen content. Blendstocks include alkylates and oxygenates;
‚ heavy oils and feedstocks, which are often used as burner fuels or feedstocks for further processing by
reÑneries and petrochemical facilities. Heavy oils and feedstocks include #6 fuel oil and vacuum gas
oil; and
‚ crude oil and condensate, which are used as feedstocks by reÑneries.
WILLIAMS PIPE LINE SYSTEM
The Williams Pipe Line system covers an 11-state area extending from Oklahoma through the Midwest
to North Dakota, Minnesota and Illinois. The system transports reÑned petroleum products and LPGs and
includes a common carrier pipeline and 39 terminals that provide transportation and terminals services. The
products transported on the Williams Pipe Line system are largely transportation fuels, and in 2002 were
comprised of 59% gasoline, 31% distillates (which includes diesel fuels and heating oil) and 10% LPGs and
aviation fuel. Product originates on the system from direct connections to reÑneries and interconnections with
other interstate pipelines for transportation and ultimate distribution to retail gasoline stations, truck stops,
railroads, airlines and other end-users. Please read Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Williams Pipe Line system largely depends on the demand for reÑned petroleum products and LPGs
in the markets it serves and the ability of reÑners and marketers to meet those needs through the pipeline
system. According to statistics provided by the Energy Information Administration, the demand for reÑned
petroleum products in the market area served by Williams Pipe Line system, known as Petroleum
Administration for Defense District II, or PADD II, is expected to grow at an average rate of approximately
1.9% per year over the next 10 years. The total production of reÑned petroleum products from reÑneries
located in PADD II is currently insuÇcient to meet the demand for reÑned petroleum products in PADD II.
The excess PADD II demand has been and is expected to be met largely by imports of reÑned petroleum
products via pipelines from Gulf Coast reÑneries that are located in PADD III.
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The Williams Pipe Line system is well-connected to the Gulf Coast reÑneries through interconnections
with the Explorer, Shell, and CITGO pipelines. These connections to Gulf Coast reÑneries, together with the
Williams Pipe Line system's extensive network throughout PADD II and connections to PADD II reÑneries,
should allow it to accommodate not only demand growth, but also major supply shifts that may occur.
The Williams Pipe Line system has experienced increased shipments over the last three years, with total
shipments increasing by 2.4% from 2000 to 2002. The volume increases have come partly as a result of
development projects on the system and from incentive agreements with shippers utilizing the system. In
2002, demand growth for reÑned petroleum products in the markets served by the system was slowed largely
by generally less favorable economic conditions in those markets. The operating statistics below reÖect the
Williams Pipe Line system's operations for the periods indicated:
2002

2001

2000

139,073
73,559
14,081
7,910

137,552
75,887
14,752
7,901

130,580
74,299
16,488
7,781

234,623

236,092

229,148

Capacity lease ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

25,465

23,671

24,780

Total shipmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

260,088

259,763

253,928

Daily average (thousands of barrels) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Barrel miles (billions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

713
71.0

712
70.5

694
68.2

Shipments (thousands of barrels):
ReÑned products Gasoline ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Distillates ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Aviation fuel ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
LPGs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

The maximum number of barrels that the system can transport per day depends upon the operating
balance achieved at a given time between various segments on the system. This balance is dependent upon the
mix of petroleum products to be shipped and the demand levels at the various delivery points. We believe that
we will be able to accommodate anticipated demand increases in the markets we serve through expansions or
modiÑcations of the Williams Pipe Line system, if necessary.
Operations
The Williams Pipe Line system is the Ñfth largest common carrier pipeline of reÑned petroleum products
and LPGs in the United States based on barrel miles shipped. Through direct reÑnery connections, and
interconnections with other interstate pipelines, the system can access approximately 44% of the reÑnery
capacity in the continental United States. In general, the system does not take title to the petroleum products
it transports.
The Williams Pipe Line system generates approximately 80% of its revenue, excluding product sales
revenue, through transportation tariÅs for the volumes it ships. These tariÅs vary depending upon where the
product originates, where ultimate delivery occurs and any applicable discounts. All interstate transportation
rates and discounts are in published tariÅs Ñled with the FERC. Such tariÅs also include charges for terminals
and storage of products at the Williams Pipe Line system's 39 terminals. Currently, the tariÅs we charge to
shippers for transportation of products generally do not vary according to the type of products transported.
Published tariÅs serve as contracts and shippers nominate the volume to be shipped on a monthly basis. In
addition, we enter into supplemental agreements with shippers that commonly result in volume commitments
by shippers in exchange for capital expansion commitments. These agreements have terms ranging from one
to ten years. Nearly 60% of the shipments in 2002 were subject to these supplemental agreements. While
many of these agreements do not represent guaranteed volumes, they do reÖect a signiÑcant level of shipper
commitment to the Williams Pipe Line system.
The system generates the remaining 20% of its revenues, excluding product sales revenues, from leasing
pipeline and storage tank capacity to shippers on a long-term basis and from providing product and other
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services such as ethanol unloading and loading, additive injection, laboratory testing, data services to shippers
and from blending, over and short and fractionation activities. Product services such as ethanol unloading and
loading, additive injection, custom blending and laboratory testing are performed under a mix of ""as needed,''
monthly and long-term agreements. Data services provided to shippers are covered by a standard agreement
and are generally performed on an as needed basis. In addition, Williams Pipe Line began operating the Rio
Grande Pipeline in 2003 and receives an annual fee for those services.
Product sales revenues are generated as a result of selling products generated in the butane blending,
transmix fractionation and over and short activities. While the revenues generated from these activities were
over $69.0 million in 2002, the resulting margin was only $5.4 million, which illustrates that these activities
comprise a small portion of Williams Pipe Line's total net operating margin.
Blending activities involve the generation of small volumes of gasoline by blending natural gas liquids
with gasoline already in the Williams Pipe Line system to produce grades of gasoline that satisfy quality and
regulatory requirements for speciÑc markets. We and an aÇliate of Williams agreed that we will perform these
blending services for ten years at an annual fee that will increase to approximately $3.6 million for 2003. As a
result of this change, we no longer purchase and sell products related to blending activities. In addition, we will
perform blending services at our Little Rock, Arkansas inland terminals, which will generate annual blending
fees of approximately $0.6 million. Consequently, our total blending services revenues for 2003 will be
approximately $4.2 million. Please read ""Customers and Contracts'' below and ""Management Discussion and
Analysis Ì Overview Ì The Williams Pipe Line System'' for additional discussion of our blending services.
Fractionation activities involve processing transmix, a mixture of products resulting from the intermingling of diÅerent product grades during normal operation of a pipeline. Some of the transmix processed comes
from the Williams Pipe Line system and some is purchased from other parties that do not have their own
fractionation facilities. The transmix is separated at our fractionator in Des Moines, Iowa, and the recovered
gasoline and fuel oil are sold to third parties.
Over and short activities involve our managing imbalances that occur during normal operation of the
system. Generally, the physical volumes on our system will not match the volumes recorded by our customers.
These diÅerences are either product quality diÅerences or absolute volume diÅerences. Quality diÅerences
result from the commingling of product on the pipeline during times when we change the product type shipped
on our pipeline. When these diÅerences occur, we purchase and sell products at prevailing market prices to
manage the imbalance.
Facilities
The Williams Pipe Line system consists of a 6,700-mile pipeline. The pipeline system includes
25.6 million barrels of aggregate storage capacity at 38 terminals and at various pump stations. The terminals
deliver reÑned petroleum products primarily into tank trucks, although two terminals can load into tank rail
cars.
The following table contains information regarding the Williams Pipe Line system's terminal facilities:
Total Shell Storage
Capacity
(In thousand barrels)

Delivery Points

Arkansas
Ft. Smith ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Illinois
Amboy ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Chicago ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Heyworth ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Menard County ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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Number of
Tanks

Number of
Loading Spots

205

8

3

199
657
433
236

10
15
10
6

2
2
2
2

Total Shell Storage
Capacity
(In thousand barrels)

Delivery Points

Iowa
Des Moines ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
DubuqueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ft. Dodge ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Iowa City ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Mason City ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Milford ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sioux City ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
WaterlooÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Kansas
Kansas City ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
OlatheÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
St. JosephÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Topeka ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minnesota
Alexandria ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Mankato ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Marshall ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minneapolis ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Rochester ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Missouri
CarthageÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Columbia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Palmyra ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
SpringÑeld ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Nebraska
CapehartÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Doniphan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Lincoln ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Omaha ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
North Dakota
Fargo ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Grand ForksÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Oklahoma
Enid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Oklahoma City ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
TulsaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
South Dakota
Sioux Falls ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Watertown ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
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Number of
Tanks

Number of
Loading Spots

2,153
101
138
722
655
188
590
372

50
6
7
27
18
9
28
8

6
2
2
4
3
2
3
4

1,783
223
58
157

34
5
2
7

5
2
2
2

646
440
208
1,971
146

28
17
10
34
8

3
3
2
8
2

132
297
185
312

8
9
7
10

2
3
2
4

112
533
152
1,034

3
15
8
27

2
3
2
4

639
358

27
21

3
3

322
324
2,058

6
8
29

2
4
4

665
223

29
12

3
2

Total Shell Storage
Capacity
(In thousand barrels)

Delivery Points

Number of
Tanks

Number of
Loading Spots

Wisconsin
WausauÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pump Stations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

166
5,792

7
83

2
Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

25,585

656

111

In addition, we have access agreements with both El Paso Corporation and ConocoPhillips Corporation,
providing us the right to use their terminal facilities at Wichita, Kansas.
ReÑned Petroleum Products Supply
ReÑned petroleum products originate from both reÑning and pipeline interconnection points along the
Williams Pipe Line system. In 2002, 60% of the reÑned petroleum products transported on the Williams Pipe
Line system originated from direct reÑnery connections and 40% originated from interconnections with other
pipelines. As set forth in the table below, the system is directly connected to, and receives product from, ten
operating reÑneries.
Major Origins Ì ReÑneries (Listed Alphabetically)
Company

ReÑnery Location

ConocoPhillips, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Farmland Industries, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Flint Hills Resources (Koch) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Frontier Oil Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Gary Williams Energy Corp. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Marathon Ashland Petroleum Company ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Murphy Oil USA, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sinclair Oil Corp. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sunoco, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Valero Energy Corp. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Ponca City, OK
CoÅeyville, KS
Pine Bend, MN
El Dorado, KS
Wynnewood, OK
St. Paul, MN
Superior, WI
Tulsa, OK
Tulsa, OK
Ardmore, OK

The Williams Pipe Line system receives product from 12 other pipeline systems. The most signiÑcant of
these pipeline connections is to Explorer Pipeline in Glenpool, Oklahoma, which transports product from the
large reÑning complexes located on the Texas and Louisiana Gulf Coast. Product from Explorer can be
transferred into the Williams Pipe Line system for delivery into the mid-continent and northern-tier states.
Another signiÑcant connection is to the Phillips Pipeline at Kansas City, Kansas, which transports product
from the ConocoPhillips reÑnery in Borger, Texas and the U.S. Gulf Coast via the Seaway Products Pipeline.
The Williams Pipe Line system is also connected to all Chicago area reÑneries through the West Shore Pipe
Line.
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Major Origins Ì Pipeline Connections (Listed Alphabetically)
Pipeline

Connection Location

BPÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Buckeye ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cenex ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CITGO Pipeline ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Explorer PipelineÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Kaneb Pipeline ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Manhattan, IL
Mazon, IL
Fargo, ND
Drumright, OK
Glenpool, OK; Mt. Vernon, MO
El Dorado, KS; Minneapolis,
MN
Kinder Morgan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Plattsburg, MO; Des Moines, IA;
Wayne, IL
Mid-America Pipeline
(Enterprise)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ El Dorado, KS
Orion Pipeline (Equilon) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Duncan, OK
Phillips PipelineÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Kansas City, KS

Total (Valero)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
West Shore Pipe Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Wynnewood, OK
East Chicago, IL

Source of Product

Whiting, IN reÑnery
East Chicago, IL storage
Laurel, MT reÑnery
Various Gulf Coast reÑneries
Various Gulf Coast reÑneries
Various OK & KS reÑneries;
Mandan, ND reÑnery
Bushton, KS storage and
Chicago area reÑneries
Conway, KS storage
Various Gulf Coast reÑneries
Various Gulf Coast reÑneries
(via Seaway/Standish Pipeline);
Borger, TX reÑnery
Ardmore, OK reÑnery
Various Chicago, IL area
reÑneries

Customers and Contracts
We ship reÑned petroleum products for several diÅerent types of customers, including independent and
integrated oil companies, wholesalers, retailers, railroads, airlines and regional farm cooperatives. End markets
for these deliveries are primarily retail gasoline stations, truck stops, farm cooperatives, railroad fueling depots
and military and commercial jet fuel users. Propane shippers include wholesalers and retailers who, in turn,
sell to commercial, industrial, agricultural and residential heating customers, as well as utilities who use
propane as a fuel source.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, the pipeline system had approximately 50 customers. The
principal shippers included six independent reÑning companies, three integrated oil companies and one large
farm cooperative. Transportation revenues attributable to these top 10 shippers for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $155.8 million, representing 45% of the Williams Pipe Line system's total revenues, and
57% of revenues excluding product sales revenues.
In 2002, aÇliates of Williams accounted for $42.0 million or approximately 12% of the Williams Pipe
Line system's total revenues. Of these aÇliate revenues, approximately 60% were generated from products
sales related to blending, fractionation and over and short settlement activities. As described above under
""Operations,'' we have agreed to perform blending services on behalf of an aÇliate of Williams for an annual
fee that will increase to approximately $3.6 million in 2003. As a result, we no longer purchase and sell
products related to blending activities. In addition, we will perform blending services at our Little Rock,
Arkansas inland terminals which will generate additional annual blending fees of approximately $0.6 million.
Consequently, our total blending services revenues for 2003 will be approximately $4.2 million.
Competition
In certain markets, barges provide an alternative source for transporting reÑned products; however,
pipelines are generally the lowest-cost alternative for reÑned petroleum product movements between diÅerent
markets. As a result, the Williams Pipe Line system's most signiÑcant competitors are other pipelines that
serve the same markets. Three key pipeline competitors include the Kaneb pipeline systems in the western and
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northern markets, the BP pipeline system in the northern markets and the Conoco pipeline system in the
southern markets.
Kaneb's East Pipeline, which runs from southern Kansas to North Dakota, operates approximately
100 miles west of and parallel to the Williams Pipe Line system. Kaneb's East Pipeline receives product from
both Gulf Coast and mid-continent reÑners through connections to pipelines such as the Conoco pipeline and
through direct reÑnery connections, including a direct connection to the Frontier reÑnery in El Dorado,
Kansas, to which the Williams Pipe Line system is also connected. In December 2002, Kaneb purchased a
pipeline from Tesoro which receives product from Tesoro's reÑnery in Mandan, North Dakota and runs to the
Minneapolis/St. Paul, Minnesota area.
The portion of the BP pipeline system with which the Williams Pipe Line system competes is a noncommon carrier pipeline system that is supplied by BP's reÑnery in Whiting, Indiana. This system extends
south to Kansas City, Missouri and west through Iowa and Minnesota. If BP were to convert its pipeline
system to a common carrier system, it could result in additional competition. The Conoco pipeline system and
its joint venture, Heartland Pipeline Company, are common carrier systems that run through Oklahoma, north
into Iowa and east through Missouri to Wood River, Illinois. Conoco's pipeline receives its product supply
from mid-continent and Gulf Coast reÑners, some of which also supply the Williams Pipe Line system.
Competition with each of these pipeline systems is based primarily on transportation charges, quality of
customer service, proximity to end-users and longstanding customer relationships. However, given the
diÅerent supply sources on each pipeline, pricing at either the origin or terminal point on a pipeline may
outweigh transportation costs when customers choose which line to use.
Shippers on the Williams Pipe Line system can reduce their transportation costs by entering into
exchange agreements with other shippers. Under these arrangements, a shipper will agree to supply a market
near its reÑnery in exchange for receiving supply from another reÑnery in a more distant market. These
agreements allow the two parties to reduce the average transportation rate paid to us. We have been able to
compete with these alternatives through price incentives and through long-term commercial arrangements
with potential exchange partners. Nevertheless, a signiÑcant amount of exchange activity has occurred
historically and is likely to continue.

PETROLEUM PRODUCTS TERMINALS
Within our terminal network, we operate two types of petroleum products terminals: marine terminals
and inland terminals. Our marine terminal facilities are located in close proximity to reÑneries and are large
storage and distribution facilities that handle reÑned petroleum products, blendstocks, heavy oils and
feedstocks and crude oil and condensate. Our inland terminals are located in the southeastern United States
and are primarily located along third party pipelines such as Colonial, TEPPCO and Plantation. These
facilities receive products from pipelines and distribute them to third parties at the terminals, which in turn
deliver them to end-users such as retail outlets. Because these terminals are unregulated, the marketplace
determines the prices we can charge for our services.
In 2002, Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Company and Williams ReÑning & Marketing, L.L.C.,
subsidiaries of Williams, utilized our facilities to support their business activities and were among our largest
terminal customers, representing approximately 15% and 5%, respectively, of revenues at our petroleum
products terminals. In 2002, Williams began to signiÑcantly reduce their level of marketing and trading
activity. As a result, we expect that Williams will comprise a signiÑcantly smaller portion of our ongoing
revenues as we replace their revenue with revenues from third-party customers. Please read Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. For additional information relating to our commercial agreements with
Williams and its aÇliates, please read ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations Ì Related Party Transactions''.
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Marine Terminal Facilities
The Gulf Coast region is a major hub for petroleum reÑning, representing approximately 43% of total
U.S. daily reÑning capacity and 74% of U.S. reÑning capacity expansion from 1990 to 2001. The growth in
Gulf Coast reÑning capacity has resulted in part from consolidation in the petroleum industry to take
advantage of economies of scale from operating larger, concentrated reÑneries. We expect this trend to
continue in order to meet growing domestic and international demand. From 1990 to 2001, the amount of
petroleum products exported from the Gulf Coast region increased by approximately 20%, or 220 million
barrels. The growth in reÑning capacity and increased product Öow attributable to the Gulf Coast region has
created a need for additional transportation, storage and distribution facilities. In the future, the competition
resulting from the consolidation trend, combined with continued environmental pressures, continuation of
imports, governmental regulations and market conditions, could result in the closing of smaller, less
economical inland reÑners, creating even greater demand for petroleum products reÑned in the Gulf Coast
region.
We own and operate Ñve marine terminal facilities, including four marine terminal facilities located along
the Gulf Coast and one terminal facility located in Connecticut near the New York harbor. Our marine
terminals are large storage and distribution facilities that provide inventory management, storage and
distribution services for reÑners and other large end users of petroleum products. Our marine terminal
facilities have an aggregate storage capacity of approximately 17.6 million barrels.
Our marine terminal facilities primarily receive petroleum products by ship and barge, short-haul pipeline
connections to neighboring reÑneries and common carrier pipelines. We distribute petroleum products from
our marine terminals by all of those means as well as by truck and rail. Once the product has reached our
terminal facilities, we store the product for a period of time ranging from a few days to several months.
Products that we store in our marine terminal facilities include petroleum products, blendstocks and heavy oils
and feedstocks.
In addition to providing storage and distribution services, our marine terminal facilities provide ancillary
services including heating, blending and mixing of stored products and injection services. Many heavy oils
require heating to keep them in a liquid state. Further, in order to meet government speciÑcations, products
often must be combined with other products through the blending and mixing process. Blending is the
combination of products from diÅerent storage tanks. Once the products are blended together, the mixing
process circulates the blended product through mixing lines and nozzles to further combine the products.
Finally, injection is the process of injecting reÑned petroleum products with additives and dyes to comply with
governmental regulations and to meet our customers' marketing initiatives.
Our terminals generate fees primarily through providing long-term or spot demand storage services and
inventory management for a variety of customers. ReÑners and chemical companies will typically use our
facilities because their facilities are inadequate, either because of size constraints or the specialized handling
requirements of the stored product. We also provide storage services and inventory management to various
industrial end users, marketers and traders that require access to large storage capacity.
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The following table outlines our marine terminal locations, capacities, primary products handled and the
connections to and from these terminals:
Facility

Rated Storage
Capacity
(Thousand
Barrels)

Connecticut
New Haven ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Primary Products Handled

Connections

3,986

ReÑned petroleum
products, heavy oils,
feedstocks and asphalt

Pipeline, barge, ship and
truck

Louisiana
Gibson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Marrero ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Texas
Corpus ChristiÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

56
2,006

Crude oil and condensate
Heavy oils and feedstocks

Pipeline, barge, and truck
Barge, ship, rail and truck

2,711

Galena Park ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

8,884

Blendstocks, heavy oils
and feedstocks
ReÑned petroleum
products, blendstocks,
heavy oils and feedstocks

Pipeline, barge, ship and
truck
Pipeline, barge, ship, rail
and truck

Total storage
capacity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

17,643

Customers and Contracts. We have long-standing relationships with oil reÑners, suppliers and traders at
our facilities, and most of our customers have consistently renewed their short-term contracts. During 2002,
approximately 97% of our marine terminal working storage capacity was under contract. As of December 31,
2002, approximately 66% of the revenues that we generated were from contracts with remaining terms in
excess of one year or that renew on an annual basis. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Company
represented approximately 19% of revenues at our marine terminals for the year ended December 31, 2002.
For a further discussion of revenues from major customers and concentration of risk, refer to Note 8 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Also, please read ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations Ì Related Party Transactions'' for additional information regarding
aÇliate revenues.
Markets and Competition. We believe that the strong demand for our marine terminal facilities from
our reÑning and chemical customers resulting from our cost-eÅective distribution services and key transportation links such as deep-water ports will continue. We experience the greatest demand at our marine terminals
in a contango market, when customers tend to store more product to take advantage of favorable pricing
expected in the future. When the opposite market condition (known as backwardation) exists some companies
choose not to store product or are less willing to enter into long-term storage contracts. The additional heating
and blending services that we provide at our marine terminals attract additional demand for our storage
services and result in increased revenue opportunities.
Several major and integrated oil companies have their own proprietary storage terminals along the Gulf
Coast that are currently being used in their reÑning operations. If these companies choose to shut down their
reÑning operations and elect to store and distribute reÑned petroleum products through their proprietary
terminals, we would experience increased competition for the services that we provide. In addition, several
companies have facilities in the Gulf Coast region and oÅer competing storage and distribution services.
Inland Terminals
We own and operate a network of 23 reÑned petroleum products terminals located primarily in the
southeastern United States. These terminals have a combined storage capacity of 4.6 million barrels. Our
customers utilize these facilities to take delivery of reÑned petroleum products transported on major common10

carrier interstate pipelines. The majority of our inland terminals connect to the Colonial, Plantation, TEPPCO
or Explorer pipelines, and some facilities have multiple pipeline connections. In addition, our Dallas terminal
connects to Dallas Love Field airport via a 6-inch pipeline we purchased in April 2001. During 2002, gasoline
represented approximately 60% of the volume of product distributed through our inland terminals, with the
remaining 40% consisting of distillates.
Our inland terminal facilities typically consist of multiple storage tanks that are connected by a thirdparty pipeline system. We load and unload products through an automated system that allows products to
move directly from the common carrier pipeline to our storage tanks and directly from our storage tanks to a
truck or rail car loading rack.
We are an independent provider of storage and distribution services. Because we do not own the products
moving through our terminals, we are not exposed to the risks of product ownership. We operate our inland
terminals as distribution terminals, and we primarily serve the retail, industrial and commercial sales markets.
We provide the following services at our inland terminals:
‚ inventory and supply management;
‚ distribution; and
‚ other services such as injection of gasoline additives.
We generate revenues by charging our customers a fee based on the amount of product that we deliver
through our terminals. We charge these fees when we deliver the product to our customers and load it into a
truck or rail car. In addition to throughput fees, we generate revenues by charging our customers a fee for
injecting additives into gasoline, diesel and jet fuel, and for Ñltering jet fuel. Our inland terminals are equipped
with automated loading facilities that are available 24 hours a day.
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We wholly own 12 of these inland terminals and our percentage ownership of the remaining 11 inland
terminals ranges from 50% to 79%. The following table sets forth our inland terminal locations, percentage
ownership, capacities and methods of supply:
Percentage
Ownership

Facility

Alabama
Montgomery ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Arkansas
North Little Rock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
South Little Rock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Georgia
AlbanyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Doraville ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Missouri
St. Charles ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
North Carolina
Charlotte ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Charlotte ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Greensboro ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Greensboro ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Selma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
South Carolina
North Augusta ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
North Augusta ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Spartanburg ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Tennessee
Chattanooga ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
KnoxvilleÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Nashville ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Nashville ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Nashville ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Texas
Dallas ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Total Storage
Capacity
(Thousand
Barrels)

Connections

100

104

Plantation Pipeline

100
100

273
179

TEPPCO Pipeline
TEPPCO Pipeline

79
100

124
295

Colonial Pipeline
Colonial and Plantation Pipelines

100

118

Explorer Pipeline

100
79
60
79
79

334
158
248
239
305

Colonial
Colonial
Colonial
Colonial
Colonial

79
100
100

156
123
116

Colonial Pipeline
Colonial Pipeline
Colonial Pipeline

100
100
50
100
79

105
115
252
164
148

Colonial
Colonial
Colonial
Colonial
Colonial

100

400

Southlake ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

50

277

Explorer and Magtex Pipelines and
our pipeline to Dallas Love Field
Explorer, Koch and Valero
Pipelines

Virginia
Montvale ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richmond ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

79
79

171
169

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Pipeline
Pipeline
Pipeline
and Plantation Pipelines
Pipeline

Pipeline
and Plantation Pipelines
Pipeline and barge
Pipeline
Pipeline

Colonial Pipeline
Colonial Pipeline

4,573

Customers and Contracts. When we acquire terminals, we generally enter into long-term throughput
contracts with the sellers under which they agree to continue to use the facilities. These agreements typically
last for two to ten years from the beginning of the agreement, and must be renegotiated at the end of the term.
In addition to these agreements, we enter into separate contracts with new customers that typically last for one
year with a continuing one year renewal provision. Most of these contracts contain a minimum throughput
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provision that obligates the customer to move a minimum amount of product through our terminals or pay for
terminal capacity reserved but not used. Our customers include:
‚ retailers that sell gasoline and other petroleum products through proprietary retail networks;
‚ wholesalers that sell petroleum products to retailers as well as to large commercial and industrial endusers;
‚ exchange transaction customers, where we act as an intermediary so that the parties to the transaction
are able to exchange petroleum products; and
‚ traders that arbitrage, trade and market products stored in our terminals.
In March 2003, Williams completed the sale of its Memphis, Tennessee reÑnery and operations and has
also sold its travel center operations. These sales have resulted in a reduced amount of marketing and trading
activities performed by Williams ReÑning & Marketing with our inland terminals. We are in the process of
replacing these revenues with other outside parties.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, Williams ReÑning & Marketing accounted for approximately
21% of our inland terminal revenues, with an additional 4% attributable to Williams Energy Marketing &
Trading, Williams Bio Energy and Williams Petroleum Services collectively. For additional information
relating to our commercial agreements with Williams and its aÇliates, please read ""Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Ì Related Party Transactions''.
Markets and Competition. We compete with other independent terminal operators as well as integrated
oil companies on the basis of terminal location and versatility, services provided and price. Our competition
from independent operators primarily comes from distribution companies with marketing and trading arms,
independent terminal operators and reÑning and marketing companies.
AMMONIA PIPELINE SYSTEM
We own a 1,100-mile ammonia pipeline system. Our pipeline transports ammonia from production
facilities in Texas and Oklahoma to terminals in the Midwest for ultimate distribution to end-users in Iowa,
Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, Oklahoma and South Dakota. The ammonia we transport is
primarily used as a nitrogen fertilizer. Nitrogen is an essential nutrient for plant growth and is the single most
important element for maintenance of high crop yields for all grains. Unlike other primary nutrients, however,
nitrogen must be applied each year because virtually all of its nutritional value is consumed during the growing
season. Ammonia is the most cost-eÅective source of nitrogen and the simplest nitrogen fertilizer. It is also the
primary feedstock for the production of upgraded nitrogen fertilizers and chemicals. Please read Note 15 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Ammonia is produced by reacting natural gas with air at high temperatures and pressures in the presence
of catalysts. Because natural gas is the primary feedstock for the production of ammonia, ammonia is typically
produced near abundant sources of natural gas. Natural gas prices returned to more historically normal levels
for most of 2002, after having been signiÑcantly higher between 1999 and the Ñrst six months of 2001, during
which period our customers substantially curtailed their production of ammonia and shipped lower volumes of
ammonia on our pipeline. Natural gas prices returned to higher levels in late 2002 and, during the Ñrst part of
2003, have increased to unprecedented high levels; consequently, shippers may again choose to lower their
production of ammonia and their shipments on our pipeline. However, our shippers have committed to
minimum shipping agreements of an aggregate of 700,000 tons per year through June 2005 (see ""Customers
and Contracts'' below).
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Operations. We are a common carrier transportation pipeline and terminals company. We do not
produce or trade ammonia, and we do not take title to the ammonia we transport. Rather, we earn revenue
from the following sources:
‚ transportation tariÅs for the use of our pipeline capacity; and
‚ throughput fees at our six company-owned terminals.
We generate approximately 92% of our revenue through transportation tariÅs. These tariÅs are postage
stamp tariÅs, which means that each shipper pays a deÑned rate per ton of ammonia shipped regardless of the
distance that ton of ammonia travels on our pipeline. In addition to transportation tariÅs, we also earn revenue
by charging our customers for services at the six terminals we own, including unloading ammonia from our
customers' trucks to inject it into our pipeline for shipment and removing ammonia from our pipeline to load it
into our customers' trucks.
We have agreed with Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (""Enterprise'') that, beginning February 2003,
Enterprise will provide operating and general and administrative services for our ammonia pipeline system.
Our operating agreement with Enterprise has an initial term of Ñve years beginning in February 2003. We can
cancel this agreement at any time by giving six-months written notice to Enterprise. This agreement will
increase our operating expenses by approximately $0.5 million annually. Also, Enterprise will charge us
$2.5 million annually for general and administrative expense associated with the operation of this pipeline.
Management expects that these general and administrative costs will be subject to the expense limitation
under our Omnibus Agreement. Please read ""Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Ì
Omnibus Agreement''.
Facilities. Our pipeline was the world's Ñrst common carrier pipeline for ammonia. The main trunk line
was completed in 1968. Today, it represents one of two ammonia pipelines operating in the United States and
has a maximum annual delivery capacity of approximately 900,000 tons. Our ammonia pipeline system
originates at production facilities in Borger, Texas, Verdigris, Oklahoma and Enid, Oklahoma and terminates
in Mankato, Minnesota.
We transport ammonia to 13 delivery points along our pipeline system. The facilities at these points
provide our customers with the ability to deliver ammonia to distributors who sell the ammonia to farmers and
to store ammonia for future use. These facilities also provide our customers with the ability to remove
ammonia from our pipeline for distribution to upgrade facilities that produce complex nitrogen compounds
such as urea, ammonium nitrate, ammonium phosphate and ammonium sulfate.
Customers and Contracts.

We ship ammonia for three customers:

‚ Farmland Industries, Inc., one of the largest farmer-owned cooperatives in the United States (see
Farmland below);
‚ Agrium U.S. Inc., a subsidiary of Agrium Inc., the largest producer of nitrogen fertilizers in North
America; and
‚ Terra Nitrogen, L.P., a wholesaler of nitrogen fertilizer products.
Each of these companies has an ammonia production facility connected to our pipeline as well as related
storage and distribution facilities along the pipeline. The transportation contracts with our customers extend
through June 2005. Our customers are obligated to ship an aggregate minimum of 700,000 tons per year (see
Farmland discussion below) and have historically shipped an amount in excess of the required minimum. Our
customers have been shipping ammonia through our pipeline for an average of more than 20 years.
Each transportation contract contains a ship or pay mechanism, whereby each customer must ship a
speciÑc minimum tonnage per year and an aggregate minimum tonnage over the life of the contract. On July 1
of each contract year, each of our customers nominates a tonnage that it expects to ship during the upcoming
year. This annual commitment may be equal to or greater than the contractual minimum tonnage. Currently,
our customers' annual commitments represent 89% of our pipeline's 900,000 ton per year capacity. If a
customer fails to ship its annual commitment, that customer must pay for the pipeline capacity it did not use
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(see Farmland discussion below). We allow our customers to bank any ammonia shipped in excess of their
annual commitments. If a customer has previously shipped an amount in excess of its annual commitment, the
shipper may oÅset subsequent annual shipment shortfalls against the excess tonnage in its bank. There are
approximately 230,000 tons in this combined bank that may be used to oÅset future ship or pay obligations.
Since July 1, 2000, we have had the right to adjust our tariÅ schedule on an annual basis pursuant to a formula
contained in the contracts. Any annual adjustment is limited to a maximum increase or decrease of
5% measured against the rate previously in eÅect.
Farmland. On May 31, 2002, Farmland Industries, Inc. (""Farmland'') and several of its subsidiaries
Ñled for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Farmland, the largest customer on the ammonia pipeline system, is
also a customer of the Williams Pipe Line system. Prior to Farmland's bankruptcy Ñling, we placed Farmland
on a pre-payment basis for its ammonia shipments; consequently, our exposure to uncollectable receivables
from Farmland was small. We received approximately $2.3 million in payments from Farmland during the
preference period prior to Farmland's Ñling for bankruptcy. Management believes that we will not be required
to reimburse these funds to the bankruptcy trustee because they were received in the ordinary course of
business with Farmland. Farmland's ammonia pipeline agreement provided for the right to terminate its
shipment obligation by submitting 12 month written notice to us, which they have done. Farmland's
notiÑcation will be eÅective December 23, 2003. Farmland has announced that it is attempting to sell its
ammonia production facility connected to our pipeline to Koch Nitrogen and has thus elected to exercise its
termination right eÅective December 23, 2003. Farmland is expected to incur a deÑciency of approximately
$2.0 million to $2.5 million under its shipment obligation for the contract year beginning July 1, 2002 and
ending June 30, 2003. On February 18, 2003, we entered into a settlement agreement with Farmland to resolve
the deÑciency. Under the settlement agreement, Farmland will pay us $0.8 million for the deÑciency it will
incur under its shipment obligation for the contract year ending June 30, 2003. If Farmland assigns its
shipment obligation to a purchaser of its ammonia assets pursuant to bankruptcy procedures, Farmland's
termination notice will be withdrawn, and the shipment obligation will be reduced from 450,000 tons annually
to 200,000 tons annually.
The settlement agreement is subject to approval by the bankruptcy court. If the bankruptcy court does
not approve the settlement agreement by June 20, 2003, it will be void unless we agree with Farmland to
extend the time for approval. If the settlement agreement is not approved and Farmland rejects its shipment
obligation pursuant to bankruptcy procedures, we will have a general, unsecured creditor's claim against
Farmland for the deÑciency it will incur under its shipment obligation for the contract year ending June 30,
2003 and for any deÑciency incurred under its shipment obligation for the contract period beginning July 1,
2003 and ending December 23, 2003. Demand for anhydrous ammonia has not changed signiÑcantly, and we
believe that we will continue to meet this demand through shipments of anhydrous ammonia produced by one
of our other ammonia pipeline customers or produced at Farmland's facility at Enid, Oklahoma by a
subsequent buyer. The failure to negotiate a shipping agreement with the subsequent buyer of Farmland's
Enid facility would signiÑcantly reduce the aggregate minimum tons shipped on our pipeline.
Markets and Competition. Demand for nitrogen fertilizer has typically followed a combination of
weather patterns and growth in population, acres planted and fertilizer application rates. Because natural gas is
the primary feedstock for the production of ammonia, the proÑtability of our customers is impacted by high
natural gas prices. To the extent our customers are unable to pass on higher costs to their customers, they may
reduce shipments through our pipeline.
We compete primarily with ammonia shipped by rail carriers, but we believe we have a distinct advantage
over rail carriers because ammonia is a gas under normal atmospheric conditions and must be either placed
under pressure or cooled to -33 degrees Celsius to be shipped or stored. Because the transportation and storage
of ammonia requires specialized handling, we believe that pipeline transportation is the safest and most costeÅective method for transporting bulk quantities of ammonia.
We also compete to a limited extent in the areas served by the far northern segment of our ammonia
pipeline system with Kaneb's ammonia pipeline, which originates on the Gulf Coast and transports
domestically produced and imported ammonia.
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TariÅ Regulation
Interstate Regulation
The Williams Pipe Line system's interstate common carrier pipeline operations are subject to rate
regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or FERC, under the Interstate Commerce Act, the
Energy Policy Act of 1992 and rules and orders promulgated pursuant thereto. FERC regulation requires that
interstate oil pipeline rates be posted publicly and that these rates be ""just and reasonable'' and nondiscriminatory. Rates of interstate oil pipeline companies, like those charged by the Williams Pipe Line system, are
currently regulated by FERC primarily through an index methodology, which in its initial form, allowed a
pipeline to change its rates based on the annual change in the producer price index, or PPI, for Ñnished goods
less 1%. As required by its own regulations, in July 2000, the FERC issued a Notice of Inquiry seeking
comment on whether to retain or to change the existing rate indexing methodology. In December 2000, the
FERC issued an order concluding that the rate index reasonably estimated the actual cost changes in the
pipeline industry and should be continued for another Ñve-year period, subject to review in July 2005. In
February 2003, on remand of its December 2000 order from the D.C. Circuit, the FERC changed the rate
indexing methodology to the PPI for Ñnished goods, but without the subtraction of 1% as had been done
previously. The FERC made the change prospective only, but did allow oil pipelines to recalculate their
maximum ceiling rates as though the new rate indexing methodology had been in eÅect since July 1, 2001.
Under the indexing regulations, a pipeline can request a rate increase that exceeds index levels for indexed
rates using a cost-of-service approach, but only after the pipeline establishes that a substantial divergence
exists between the actual costs experienced by the pipeline and the rate resulting from application of the PPI.
Approximately one-third of the Williams Pipe Line system is subject to this indexing methodology. In
addition to rate indexing and cost-of-service Ñlings, interstate oil pipeline companies may elect to support rate
Ñlings by obtaining authority to charge market-based rates or through an agreement between a shipper and the
oil pipeline company that a rate is acceptable. Two-thirds of the Williams Pipe Line system's markets are
deemed competitive by the FERC, and we are allowed to charge market-based rates in these markets.
In a June 1996 decision, the FERC disallowed the inclusion of a full income tax allowance in the cost-ofservice tariÅ Ñling of Lakehead Pipe Line Company, L.P., an unrelated oil pipeline limited partnership. The
FERC held that Lakehead was entitled to include an income tax allowance in its cost-of-service for income
attributable to corporate partners but not on income attributable to individual partners. In 1997, Lakehead
reached an agreement with its shippers on all contested rates, so there was no judicial review of the FERC's
decision. In January 1999, in a FERC proceeding involving SFPP, L.P., another unrelated oil pipeline limited
partnership, the FERC followed its decision in Lakehead and held that SFPP may not claim an income tax
allowance with respect to income attributable to non-corporate limited partners. Several parties sought
rehearing of the FERC's decision in SFPP and of several FERC orders issued on rehearing in the SFPP case.
Several parties have also Ñled appeals of the FERC's orders, which are currently being held in abeyance by the
court of appeals pending resolution by the FERC of the remaining requests for rehearing. The FERC's
decision in the Lakehead and SFPP proceedings should have no eÅect on the market-based rates Williams
Pipe Line charges in its competitive markets. However, the Lakehead and SFPP decisions might become
relevant to the pipeline system should it (1) elect in the future to raise its indexed rates using the cost-ofservice methodology, (2) be required to use a cost-of-service methodology to defend its indexed rates against a
shipper protest alleging that an indexed rate increase substantially exceeds actual cost increases, or (3) be
required to defend its indexed rates against a shipper complaint alleging that the pipeline's rates are not just
and reasonable. In such case, a complainant or protestant could assert that, in light of the decisions regarding
Lakehead and SFPP and our ownership of the Williams Pipe Line system, we should be allowed to collect an
income tax allowance only with respect to the portion of our partnership units held by corporations. We believe
that most if not all of the indexed rates can be supported on a cost-of-service basis, even assuming a reduction
in the income tax allowance. Nevertheless, if the indexed rates were challenged, we cannot give assurance that
some or all of the indexed rates may not be reduced. If indexed rates were reduced, the amount of available
cash could be materially reduced.
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The Surface Transportation Board, a part of the United States Department of Transportation, has
jurisdiction over interstate pipeline transportation of ammonia. The Surface Transportation Board succeeded
the Interstate Commerce Commission which previously regulated pipeline transportation of ammonia.
The Surface Transportation Board is responsible for rate regulation of pipeline transportation of
commodities other than water, gas or oil. These transportation rates must be reasonable, and a pipeline carrier
may not unreasonably discriminate among its shippers. If the Surface Transportation Board Ñnds that a
carrier's rates violate these statutory commands, it may prescribe a reasonable rate. In determining a
reasonable rate, the Surface Transportation Board will consider, among other factors, the eÅect of the rate on
the volumes transported by that carrier, the carrier's revenue needs and the availability of other economic
transportation alternatives.
The Surface Transportation Board does not need to provide rate relief unless shippers lack eÅective
competitive alternatives. If the Surface Transportation Board determines that eÅective competitive alternatives are not available and a pipeline holds market power, then it must determine whether the pipeline rates
are reasonable. The Board generally applies constrained market pricing principles in its economic analysis.
Constrained market pricing provides two alternative methodologies for examining the reasonableness of a
carrier's rates. The Ñrst approach examines a carrier's existing system to determine whether the carrier is
already earning suÇcient funds to cover its costs and provide a suÇcient return on investment, or would earn
suÇcient funds after eliminating unnecessary costs from speciÑcally identiÑed ineÇciencies and crosssubsidies in its operations. The second approach calculates the revenue requirements that a hypothetical, new
and optimally eÇcient carrier would need to meet in order to serve the complaining shippers.
Customers that protest rates in Surface Transportation Board proceedings may use any methodology they
choose that is consistent with constrained market pricing principles. When addressing revenue adequacy, a
complainant must provide more than a single period snapshot of a carrier's costs and revenues. The
complainant must measure whether a carrier earns adequate revenues over a period of time, as measured by a
multi-period discounted cash Öow analysis.
The Surface Transportation Board has held that unreasonable discrimination occurs when (1) there is a
disparity in rates, (2) the complaining party is competitively injured, (3) the carrier is the common source of
both the allegedly prejudicial and preferential treatment and (4) the disparity in rates is not justiÑed by
transportation conditions.
Intrastate Regulation
Some shipments on the Williams Pipe Line system move within a single state and thus are considered to
be intrastate commerce. The Williams Pipe Line system is subject to certain regulation with respect to such
intrastate transportation by state regulatory authorities in the states of Illinois, Kansas and Oklahoma.
However, in most instances, the state commissions have not initiated investigations of the rates or practices of
reÑned products pipelines.
Because in some instances we transport ammonia between two terminals in the same state, our ammonia
pipeline operations are subject to regulation by the state regulatory authorities in Iowa, Nebraska, Oklahoma
and Texas. Although the Oklahoma Corporation Commission and the Texas Railroad Commission have the
authority to regulate our rates, the state commissions have generally not investigated the rates or practices of
ammonia pipelines in the absence of shipper complaints.
Maintenance and Safety Regulations
Our pipeline systems have been constructed, operated, maintained, repaired, tested and used in general
compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, American Petroleum Institute
standards and other generally accepted industry standards and practices. These pipeline systems will continue
to be operated, maintained and inspected in accordance with governing regulations and industry practices.
Our pipeline systems are subject to regulation by the United States Department of Transportation under
the Hazardous Liquid Pipeline Safety Act of 1979, or HLPSA as amended, and comparable state statutes
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relating to the design, installation, testing, construction, operation, replacement and management of its
pipeline facilities. HLPSA covers petroleum and petroleum products and requires any entity that owns or
operates pipeline facilities to comply with such regulations, to permit access to and copying of records and to
make certain reports and provide information as required by the Secretary of Transportation.
In December 2000, the Department of Transportation adopted new regulations requiring operators of
hazardous liquid interstate pipelines to develop and follow an integrity management program that provides for
assessment of the integrity of all pipeline segments that could aÅect designated ""high consequence areas,''
including high population areas, drinking water and ecological resource areas that are unusually sensitive to
environmental damage from a pipeline release, and commercially navigable waterways. Segments of our
pipeline systems are located in high consequence areas and/or have the ability to impact high consequence
areas. We believe we are in material compliance with HLPSA requirements. Since this rule went into eÅect,
we have spent approximately $14.5 million relative to integrity assessment and anticipate spending approximately $36.5 million during the next Ñve years associated with system integrity assessments. These cost
estimates could increase in the future if additional safety measures are required or if existing safety standards
are raised that exceed the current pipeline capabilities.
Our pipeline systems are also subject to the requirements of the federal Occupational Safety and Health
Act, or OSHA, and comparable state statutes. We believe we are in material compliance with OSHA and
state requirements, including general industry standards, record-keeping requirements and monitoring of
occupational exposures. The OSHA hazard communication standard, the EPA community right-to-know
regulations under Title III of the federal Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act and comparable
state statutes require us to organize and disclose information about the hazardous materials used in our
operations. Certain parts of this information must be reported to employees, state and local governmental
authorities and local citizens upon request. In general, we expect to increase our expenditures during the next
decade to comply with higher industry and regulatory safety standards such as those described above. At
qualifying facilities, we are subject to OSHA Process Safety Management, or PSM, regulations that are
designed to prevent or minimize the consequences of catastrophic releases of toxic, reactive, Öammable or
explosive chemicals. We believe we are in material compliance with the OSHA PSM regulations.
Environmental
General
The operation of our pipeline systems, terminals and associated facilities in connection with the
transportation, storage and distribution of reÑned petroleum products, crude oil and other liquid hydrocarbons
is subject to stringent and complex laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the
environment or otherwise related to environmental protection. As an owner or lessee and operator of these
facilities, we must comply with these laws and regulations at the federal, state and local levels. Compliance
with existing and anticipated laws and regulations increases the cost of planning, constructing and operating
pipelines, terminals and other facilities. Included in our construction and operation costs are capital cost items
necessary to maintain or upgrade our equipment and facilities. Failure to comply with these laws and
regulations may result in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, imposition of remedial
actions and the issuance of injunctions or construction bans or delays on ongoing operations. We believe that
our operations are in material compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations. However, these
laws and regulations are subject to frequent change, and we cannot assure you that the cost to comply with
these laws and regulations in the future will not have a material adverse eÅect on our Ñnancial position or
results of operations.
As described below, we will be indemniÑed against certain environmental liabilities by Williams Energy
Services, Williams Natural Gas Liquids and by the entities from which Williams originally acquired some of
the assets owned by us. Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids are aÇliates of Williams.
Recent divestitures by Williams have signiÑcantly reduced the size and credit capacities of these aÇliates.
However, Williams has provided a performance guarantee with respect to the indemniÑcations made in
association with the Williams Pipe Line acquisition. We are also a beneÑciary of an environmental insurance
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policy related to our marine terminal facilities. The terms and limitations of these indemniÑcation agreements
and insurance policies are summarized below.
Environmental Liabilities Associated with Williams Terminal Holdings and the Ammonia Pipeline
System
For assets transferred to us from Williams at the time of our initial public oÅering in February 2001,
Williams Energy Services agreed to indemnify us for up to $15.0 million for environmental liabilities that
exceed the amounts covered by the seller indemnities and/or insurance coverage described below. The
indemnity applies to environmental liabilities arising from conduct prior to the closing of the initial public
oÅering and discovered within three years of closing of the initial public oÅering. Liabilities resulting from a
change in law after the closing of our initial public oÅering are excluded from this indemnity. As of
December 31, 2002, we had collected $1.7 million against Williams Energy Services' indemnity and had
recorded environmental liabilities of $3.3 million, substantially all of which were covered by Williams Energy
Services' indemniÑcation. Further, we expect to incur $0.3 million of environmental capital, which should also
be covered by this indemniÑcation. Please read ""Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations Ì Other Known Trends and Events Ì Change of Control'' for additional
discussion of possible changes associated with Williams Energy Services' indemniÑcations to us.
In accordance with our acquisition agreement with Amerada Hess Corporation (""Hess''), Hess will
indemnify us for environmental and other liabilities related to the three Gulf Coast marine terminal facilities
acquired in August 1999, including:
‚ indemniÑcation for special cleanup actions of pre-acquisition releases of hazardous substances. This
indemnity is capped at a maximum of $15.0 million. Hess, however, has no liability until the aggregate
amount of initial losses is in excess of a $2.5 million deductible, and then Hess is liable only for the
succeeding $12.5 million in losses. This indemnity will remain in eÅect until July 30, 2004;
‚ indemniÑcation for already known and required cleanup actions at the Corpus Christi, Texas and
Galena Park, Texas terminal facilities. This indemnity has no limit and will remain in eÅect until
July 30, 2014; and
‚ indemniÑcation for a variety of pre-acquisition Ñnes and claims that may be imposed or asserted under
the Superfund Law and federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (""RCRA'') or analogous
state laws relative to pre-acquisition events. This indemnity is not subject to any limit or deductible
amount.
In addition to these indemnities, Hess retained liability for the performance of corrective actions
associated with hydrocarbon recovery from ground water and a cooling tower at the Corpus Christi, Texas
terminal and a process safety management compliance matter at the Galena Park, Texas terminal facility.
We have insurance against the Ñrst $2.5 million of environmental liabilities related to the Hess terminal
facilities that arose prior to closing of the acquisition from Hess, with a deductible of $0.3 million, and any
environmental liabilities in excess of $15.0 million up to an aggregate of $65.0 million.
In connection with the acquisition of the New Haven, Connecticut marine terminal facility acquired from
Wyatt Energy and the acquisition of our inland terminals, the sellers of those terminals agreed to indemnify us
against speciÑed environmental liabilities. We also have insurance for up to $25.0 million of environmental
liabilities for the New Haven marine terminal facility, with a deductible of $0.3 million.
We also have insurance for up to $2.5 million of environmental liabilities for our Gibson, Louisiana
marine terminal facility, with a deductible of $0.1 million. We assumed all of the environmental liabilities of
the Gibson terminal, which we estimated at $0.1 million, at the time we acquired this facility from Geonet
Gathering, Inc.
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Environmental Liability Associated with the Williams Pipe Line System
Williams Energy Services has agreed to indemnify us for losses and damages related to breach of
environmental representations and warranties and the failure to comply with environmental laws prior to the
acquisition of Williams Pipe Line Company in excess of $2.0 million up to a maximum of $125.0 million. As
of December 31, 2002, we had collected $3.3 million against this indemnity and had receivables under this
indemnity of $19.9 million. Claims related to these environmental indemnities must be made prior to April
2008. Consequently, the remedial programs, assessed penalties and capital expenditures discussed below
arising in connection with a failure to comply with environmental laws prior to the acquisition are subject to
claims of indemniÑcation by us of Williams Energy Services, in accordance with the stated deductible
amounts, capped amounts and term limits. Moreover, this $125.0 million amount will also be subject to
indemniÑcation claims made by us for breaches of representations and warranties other than environmental.
Williams has provided a performance guarantee for the remaining amount of these environmental indemnities.
Potentially signiÑcant assessment, monitoring and remediation projects related to events prior to our
acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system, are being performed at 45 sites in Illinois, Iowa, Kansas,
Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, North Dakota, Oklahoma, South Dakota and Wisconsin. We estimate, at
December 31, 2002, that the total cost of performing the currently anticipated assessment, monitoring and
remediation at these 45 sites over the next several years will be approximately $18.7 million, all of which is
covered by our indemniÑcation agreements with Williams. The most signiÑcant remedial costs at these
45 sites are costs attributed to cleanup at eight terminals (Des Moines, Iowa City and Sioux City, all in Iowa,
Kansas City, Kansas, Lincoln, Nebraska, Alexandria and Mankato, Minnesota, and Watertown, South
Dakota) and two right of way locations (Bartlemy Lane, Minnesota and Kansas City Milepost 1, Kansas)
where we estimate that $13.2 million of the $18.7 million in costs of assessment, monitoring and remediation
will be incurred. This estimate assumes that we will be able to use common remedial and monitoring methods
or associated engineering or institutional controls to demonstrate compliance with applicable regulatory
requirements. This estimate covers the cost of performing assessment, remediation and/or monitoring of
impacted soils, groundwater and surface water conditions, but does not include any costs for potential claims
by others with respect to these sites. While we do not expect any such potential claims by others to be
materially adverse to our operations, Ñnancial position, or cash Öows, we cannot assure you that the actual
remediation costs or associated remediation liabilities will not exceed this $18.7 million amount.
In addition, there are several sites where capital expenditures such as the installation of new loading
racks, new tank seals and/or secondary containment equipment will be required in order to comply with or
otherwise satisfy applicable environmental requirements. In particular, we expect to incur approximately
$3.9 million in capital expenditures, including: an estimated $2.0 million to install a new loading rack at
Palmyra, Missouri; an estimated $1.6 million to install dike linings at Alexandria, Minnesota; and an
estimated $0.3 million to install breakout tank linings at Sioux Falls, South Dakota. In addition, we are
considering several measures to address emissions concerns at an existing loading rack at Enid, Oklahoma.
These costs are expected to be indemniÑed by Williams.
In connection with a liquid petroleum release discovered in Menard County, Illinois, in July 1994, the
state of Illinois Ñled a suit against Williams Pipe Line Company in July 1996 with respect to remediation of
impacts arising from the release. Two landowners adjacent to the release area subsequently intervened in the
suit. A consent order resolving this matter was negotiated with the Illinois Attorney General's oÇce and
resulted in payment of a $30,000 civil penalty and a supplemental environmental project which cost $72,000.
The only outstanding requirement of the Consent Order is smart pigging speciÑed pipelines which we estimate
will cost approximately $0.8 million.
In addition to the 45 sites/projects discussed above, Ñve releases have occurred since we acquired the
Williams Pipe Line system in April 2002, resulting in approximately $0.8 million in expenditures to date. We
have notiÑed federal and state agencies of each of these incidents and are currently evaluating appropriate
measures required to achieve regulatory closure of each incident. While the ultimate costs associated with
cleanup of these incidents cannot be determined at this time, we have preliminarily estimated additional
cleanup costs of between $0.3 million and $0.8 million, none of which is indemniÑed by Williams.
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We may experience future releases of reÑned petroleum products into the environment from the Williams
Pipe Line system and our other pipelines and terminals or discover historical releases that were previously
unidentiÑed or not assessed. While we maintain an extensive inspection and self-audit program designed, as
applicable, to prevent, detect and address these releases promptly, damages and liabilities incurred due to any
future environmental releases from our assets nevertheless have the potential to substantially aÅect our
business.
The amendments to the federal Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) regulations that
became eÅective on August 16, 2002 require revisions and/or cross-references be made to all our SPCC plans,
of which we have more than 100, and may result in some of our facilities implementing physical improvements
to ensure compliance with the regulation. At this time, the costs associated with complying with the amended
regulations cannot be determined.
On July 2, 2001, the EPA issued an information request asking for information on oil releases and
discharges in any amount from Williams and its aÇliates' pipelines, pipeline systems and pipeline facilities
used in the movement of oil or petroleum products during the period from July 1, 1998 through July 2, 2001.
In November 2001, Williams furnished its response, which related primarily to the Williams Pipe Line
system. We have received no further correspondence from the EPA related to this issue.
Hazardous Substances and Wastes
In most instances, the environmental laws and regulations aÅecting our operations relate to the release of
hazardous substances or solid wastes into the water or soils, and include measures to control pollution of the
environment. For instance, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act,
also known as the Superfund law, and comparable state laws impose liability, without regard to fault or the
legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for the
release of a hazardous substance into the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of the
disposal site or sites where the release occurred and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the
hazardous substances. Under the Superfund law, these persons may be subject to joint and several liability for
the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that have been released into the environment, for damages
to natural resources and for the costs of certain health studies. The Superfund law also authorizes the
Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, and in some instances, third parties to act in response to threats to
the public health or the environment and to seek to recover from the responsible classes of persons the costs
they incur. It is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to Ñle claims for personal
injury and property damage allegedly caused by hazardous substances or other pollutants released into the
environment. In the course of our ordinary operations, we may generate waste that falls within the Superfund
law's deÑnition of a hazardous substance and as a result, we may be jointly and severally liable under the
Superfund law for all or part of the costs required to clean up sites at which those hazardous substances have
been released into the environment.
Our operations also generate wastes, including hazardous wastes, that are subject to the requirements of
the RCRA and comparable state statutes. We are not currently required to comply with a substantial portion
of the RCRA requirements because our operations routinely generate only small quantities of hazardous
wastes, and we do not hold ourselves out as a hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal facility operator
that is required to obtain a RCRA hazardous waste permit. While RCRA currently exempts a number of
wastes, including many oil and gas exploration and production wastes, from being subject to hazardous waste
requirements, the EPA from time to time will consider the adoption of stricter disposal standards for nonhazardous wastes. Moreover, it is possible that additional wastes, which could include non-hazardous wastes
currently generated during operations, will in the future be designated as hazardous wastes. Hazardous wastes
are subject to more rigorous and costly storage and disposal requirements than are non-hazardous wastes.
Changes in the regulations could have a material adverse eÅect on our capital expenditures or operating
expenses.
We currently own or lease properties where hydrocarbons are being or have been handled for many years.
Although we have utilized operating and disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time,
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hydrocarbons or other wastes may have been disposed of or released on, under or from the properties owned or
leased by us or on or under other locations where these wastes have been taken for disposal. In addition, many
of these properties have been operated by third parties whose treatment and disposal or release of
hydrocarbons or other wastes was not under our control. These properties and wastes disposed thereon may be
subject to the Superfund law, RCRA and analogous state laws. Under these laws, we could be required to
remove or remediate previously disposed wastes, including wastes disposed of or released by prior owners or
operators, to clean up contaminated property, including groundwater contaminated by prior owners or
operators, or to make capital improvements to prevent future contamination. We are currently evaluating soil
and groundwater conditions at a number of our properties where historical operations conducted primarily by
former site owners or operators or more recent operations conducted by us may have resulted in releases of
hydrocarbons or other wastes. These investigations and possible cleanup activities are either under consideration or already have been or will be initiated at a number of our locations.
Above Ground Storage Tanks
States in which we operate typically have laws and regulations governing above ground tanks containing
liquid substances. Generally, these laws and regulations require that these tanks include secondary containment systems or that the operators take alternative precautions to ensure that no contamination results from
any leaks or spills from the tanks. The Department of Transportation OÇce of Pipeline Safety has
incorporated API 653 to regulate above ground tanks subject to their jurisdiction. We believe we are in
material compliance with all applicable above ground storage tank laws and regulations. As part of our
assessment of facility operations we have identiÑed some above ground tanks at our terminals that either are,
or are suspected of being, coated with lead-based paints. The removal and disposal of any paints that are found
to be lead-based, whenever such activities are conducted in the future as part of our day-to-day maintenance
activities, will require increased handling by us. However, we do not expect the costs associated with this
increased handling to be signiÑcant. We believe that the future implementation of above ground storage tank
laws or regulations will not have a material adverse eÅect on our Ñnancial condition or results of operations.
Water Discharges
Our operations can result in the discharge of pollutants, including oil. The Oil Pollution Act was enacted
in 1990 and amends provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972 or the Water Pollution
Control Act and other statutes as they pertain to prevention and response to oil spills. The Oil Pollution Act
subjects owners of facilities to strict, joint and potentially unlimited liability for removal costs and certain other
consequences of an oil spill such as natural resource damages, where the spill is into navigable waters, along
shorelines or in the exclusive economic zone of the United States. In the event of an oil spill from one of our
facilities into navigable waters, substantial liabilities could be imposed upon us. States in which we operate
have also enacted similar laws. Regulations have been or are being developed under the Oil Pollution Act and
comparable state laws that may also impose additional regulatory burdens on our operations. Although the
costs associated with complying with the amended regulations cannot be determined at this time, we do not
expect these expenditures to have a material adverse eÅect on our Ñnancial condition or results of operations.
The Federal Water Pollution Control Act imposes restrictions and strict controls regarding the discharge
of pollutants into navigable waters. This law and comparable state laws require that permits be obtained to
discharge pollutants into state and federal waters and impose substantial potential liability for the costs of
noncompliance and damages. Where required, we hold discharge permits that were issued under the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act or a state-delegated program, and we believe that we are in material compliance
with the terms of those permits. While we have experienced permit discharge exceedances at some of our
terminals we do not expect our compliance with existing permits and foreseeable new permit requirements to
have a material adverse eÅect on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.
Air Emissions
Our operations are subject to the federal Clean Air Act and comparable state and local laws. Under such
laws, permits are typically required to emit pollutants into the atmosphere. Amendments to the federal Clean
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Air Act enacted in 1990, as well as recent or soon to be proposed changes to state implementation plans, or
SIPs, for controlling air emissions in regional, non-attainment areas require or will require most industrial
operations in the United States to incur capital expenditures in order to meet air emission control standards
developed by the EPA and state environmental agencies. As a result of these amendments, our facilities that
emit volatile organic compounds or nitrogen oxides are subject to increasingly stringent regulations, including
requirements that some sources install maximum or reasonably available control technology. In addition, the
amendments include an operating permit for major sources of volatile organic compounds, which applies to
some of our facilities. We believe that we currently hold or have applied for all necessary air permits and that
we are in material compliance with applicable air laws and regulations. Although we can give no assurances,
we believe implementation of the 1990 federal Clean Air Act amendments and any changes to the SIPs
pertaining to air quality in regional non-attainment areas will not have a material adverse eÅect on our
Ñnancial condition or results of operations.
Employee Safety
We are subject to the requirements of the federal OSHA and comparable state statutes that regulate the
protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition, the OSHA hazard communication standard
requires that certain information be maintained about hazardous materials used or produced in operations and
that this information be provided to employees, state and local government authorities and citizens. We
believe that our operations are in material compliance with OSHA requirements, including general industry
standards, record keeping requirements and monitoring of occupational exposure to regulated substances.
Title to Properties
Substantially all of our pipelines are constructed on rights-of-way granted by the apparent record owners
of the property, and in some instances, these rights-of-way are revocable at the election of the grantor. Several
rights-of-way for our pipelines and other real property assets are shared with other pipelines and other assets
owned by aÇliates of Williams and by third parties. In many instances, lands over which rights-of-way have
been obtained are subject to prior liens which have not been subordinated to the rights-of-way grants. We have
obtained permits from public authorities to cross over or under, or to lay facilities in or along, water courses,
county roads, municipal streets and state highways, and in some instances, these permits are revocable at the
election of the grantor. We have also obtained permits from railroad companies to cross over or under lands or
rights-of-way, many of which are also revocable at the grantor's election. In some cases, property for pipeline
purposes was purchased in fee. In some states and under some circumstances, we have the right of eminent
domain to acquire rights-of-way and lands necessary for our pipelines. The previous owners of the applicable
pipelines may not have commenced or concluded eminent domain proceedings for some rights-of-way.
Some of the leases, easements, rights-of-way, permits and licenses that have been transferred to us will
require the consent of the grantor to transfer these rights, which in some instances is a governmental entity.
We believe that we have obtained or will obtain suÇcient third-party consents, permits and authorizations for
the transfer of the assets necessary for us to operate our business in all material respects. We believe that a
failure to obtain all consents, permits or authorizations will not have a material adverse eÅect on the operation
of our business.
We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our assets or are entitled to indemniÑcation from
aÇliates of Williams (1) for title defects to the ammonia pipeline that arise within 15 years after the closing of
our initial public oÅering and (2) for title defects related to the Williams Pipe Line system that arise within
ten years from its acquisition. Although title to these properties is subject to encumbrances in some cases,
such as customary interests generally retained in connection with acquisition of real property, liens that can be
imposed in some jurisdictions for government-initiated action to clean up environmental contamination, liens
for current taxes and other burdens, and easements, restrictions and other encumbrances to which the
underlying properties were subject at the time of acquisition by us or our predecessor, we believe that none of
these burdens should materially detract from the value of our properties or from our interest in them or should
materially interfere with their use in the operation of our business.
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The assets of Williams Pipe Line have been pledged as collateral against the Series A and Series B notes
issued by Williams Pipe Line (see Note 12 Ì Long-Term Debt for further information).
Employees
To conduct our operations, our general partner or its aÇliates employ approximately 788 employees, of
which 538 conduct the operations of the Williams Pipe Line system, 192 conduct the operations of our
petroleum products terminals and 58 spend 90% or more of their time providing general and administrative
services. Approximately 226 of the employees assigned to the Williams Pipe Line system are represented by
the Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers International Union, or PACE. The employees
represented by PACE are subject to a contract that extends to January 2006. The employees at our Galena
Park marine terminal facility are currently represented by a union, but indicated in 2000 their unanimous
desire to terminate their union aÇliation. Nevertheless, the National Labor Relations Board (""NLRB'') has
ordered us to bargain with the union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the employees at
the facility. We appealed this decision to the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. Subsequently, the NLRB
indicated the possibility that it would overturn its decision and requested that the Court of Appeals return our
and other matters to the NLRB for further review and decision. No Ñnal decision has been issued by the
NLRB. Our general partner considers its employee relations to be good.
Forward-Looking Statements
Certain matters discussed in this report include forward-looking statements Ì statements that discuss
our expected future results based on current and pending business operations. We make these forward-looking
statements in reliance on the safe harbor protections provided under the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements can be identiÑed by words such as anticipates, believes, expects, planned,
scheduled or similar expressions. Although we believe these forward-looking statements are based on
reasonable assumptions, statements made regarding future results are subject to numerous assumptions,
uncertainties and risks that may cause future results to be materially diÅerent from the results stated or
implied in this document.
The following are among the important factors that could cause actual results to diÅer materially from
any results projected, forecasted, estimated or budgeted:
‚ price trends and overall demand for natural gas liquids, reÑned petroleum products, natural gas, oil and
ammonia in the United States;
‚ weather patterns materially diÅerent than historical trends;
‚ development of alternative energy sources;
‚ changes in demand for storage in our petroleum products terminals;
‚ changes in our tariÅ rates implemented by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the United
States Surface Transportation Board;
‚ shut-downs or cutbacks at major reÑneries, petrochemical plants, ammonia production facilities or
other businesses that use or supply our services;
‚ changes in the throughput on petroleum products pipelines owned and operated by third parties and
connected to our petroleum products terminals;
‚ loss of one or all of our three customers on our ammonia pipeline system;
‚ changes in the federal government's policy regarding farm subsidies, which negatively impact the
demand for ammonia and reduce the amount of ammonia transported through our ammonia pipeline
system;
‚ an increase in the competition our operations encounter;
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‚ the occurrence of an operational hazard or unforeseen interruption for which we are not adequately
insured;
‚ our ability to integrate any acquired operations into our existing operations;
‚ our ability to successfully identify and close strategic acquisitions and make cost saving changes in
operations;
‚ changes in general economic conditions in the United States;
‚ changes in laws and regulations to which we are subject, including tax, environmental and employment
laws and regulations;
‚ the cost and eÅects of legal and administrative claims and proceedings against us or our subsidiaries;
‚ the amount of our indebtedness, which could make us vulnerable to general adverse economic and
industry conditions, limit our ability to borrow additional funds, place us at competitive disadvantages
compared to our competitors that have less debt or have other adverse consequences;
‚ the condition of the capital markets and equity markets in the United States;
‚ the ability to raise capital in a cost-eÅective way;
‚ the eÅect of changes in accounting policies;
‚ the ability to manage rapid growth;
‚ Williams' ability to perform on its environmental and rights-of-way indemniÑcations to us;
‚ supply disruption; and
‚ global and domestic economic repercussions from terrorist activities and the government's response
thereto.
(d) Financial Information About Geographical Areas
We have no revenue or segment proÑt or loss attributable to international activities.
(e) Available Information
We Ñle annual, quarterly and other reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy
any document we Ñle at the SEC's public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549.
Please call the SEC at 1-800-732-0330 for further information on their public reference room. Reports and
other information that we Ñle with or furnish to the SEC electronically are also available at the SEC's web site
at http://www.sec.gov. You can also obtain information about us at the oÇces of the New York Stock
Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005.
Our Internet address is www.williamsenergypartners.com. We did not make all reports Ñled or furnished
to the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act available on or through our Internet
website as of November 15, 2002. However, as of March 6, 2003, we make available, free of charge on or
through our Internet website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports Ñled or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practical after we electronically Ñle such material with, or furnish it
to, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Item 2. Properties
See Item 1(c) for a description of the locations and general character of our material properties.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are a party to various legal actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of our business. We do not
believe that the resolution of these matters will have a material adverse eÅect on our Ñnancial condition or
results of operations.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
No matters were submitted to a vote of the unitholders during the fourth quarter of 2002.
PART II
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
We completed our initial public oÅering in February 2001. Our common units are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symbol ""WEG''. At the close of business on January 31, 2003, we had
121 registered holders and 15,167 beneÑcial holders of record of our common units. The high and low closing
sales price ranges and distributions declared by quarter for 2002 and 2001 are as follows:
Quarter

1st ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2nd ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
3rdÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
4thÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

High

$43.30
$42.35
$36.40
$34.70

2002
Low

$32.85
$30.75
$25.20
$29.50

Distribution*

High

$.6125
$.6750
$.7000
$.7250

$31.00
$33.42
$40.40
$44.00

2001
Low

$24.00
$28.45
$29.40
$37.00

Distribution*

$.2920
$.5625
$.5775
$.5900

* Represents declared distributions associated with each respective quarter. Distributions were declared and
paid within 45 days following the close of each quarter. The distribution for the Ñrst quarter of 2001 was
pro-rated for the period from February 10, 2001 through March 31, 2001 due to the timing of our initial
public oÅering.
In addition to common units, we have also issued subordinated and Class B units, for which there is no
established public trading market. All of the subordinated and Class B units are held by aÇliates of our
General Partner. The subordinated units were issued as part of our initial public oÅering in February 2001 and
receive a quarterly distribution only after suÇcient funds have been paid to the common and Class B units, as
described below. In addition, the subordinated units generally have reduced voting rights equal to one-half
vote for each unit owned.
The Class B units were issued as partial payment for the April 2002 purchase of the Williams Pipe Line
system (see Note 5 Ì Acquisitions and Divestitures for additional information on the acquisition of Williams
Pipe Line). These units are equivalent to common units except they only have voting rights with respect to
matters that would have a material impact on the holders of such units. Our credit agreements contain
provisions which prevent us from redeeming or retiring the Class B units except with the proceeds of an equity
issuance. When the Class B units are redeemed, the price will be based on the 20-day average closing price of
the common units prior to the redemption date. See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. If the
Class B units are not redeemed by April 11, 2003, then upon the request of the holder of the Class B units and
approval of the holders of a majority of the common units voting at a meeting of the unitholders, the Class B
units will convert into common units. If the approval of the conversion by the common unitholders is not
obtained within 120 days of this request, the holder of the Class B units will be entitled to receive distributions
with respect to its Class B units, on a per unit basis, equal to 115% of the amount of distributions paid on a
common unit.
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During the subordination period, the holders of our common and Class B units are entitled to receive
each quarter a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.525 per unit ($2.10 annualized) prior to any distribution
of available cash to holders of our subordinated units. The subordination period is deÑned generally as the
period that will end on the Ñrst day of any quarter beginning after December 31, 2005 if (1) we have
distributed at least the minimum quarterly distribution on all outstanding units with respect to each of the
immediately preceding three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods and (2) our adjusted operating
surplus, as deÑned in our partnership agreement, during such periods equals or exceeds the amount that would
have been suÇcient to enable us to distribute the minimum quarterly distribution on all outstanding units on a
fully diluted basis and the related distribution on the 2% general partner interest during those periods. In
addition, one-quarter of the subordinated units may convert to common units on a one-for-one basis after
December 31, 2003 and one-quarter of the subordinated units may convert to common units on a one-for-one
basis after December 31, 2004 if we meet the tests set forth in our partnership agreement. If the subordination
period ends, the rights of the holders of subordinated units will no longer be subordinated to the rights of the
holders of common and Class B units and the subordinated units may be converted into common units. We
currently anticipate meeting the Ñrst early conversion test. The impact of meeting the test is that after
December 31, 2003, one-quarter of our outstanding subordinated units will convert to common units, the
existing common units will have less subordinated protection with respect to distributions, and the subordinated units that convert into common units will receive voting rights equivalent to those of the common units.
During the subordination period, our cash is distributed Ñrst 98% to the holders of common and Class B
units and 2% to our General Partner until there has been distributed to the holders of common and Class B
units an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution and arrearages in the payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution on the common and Class B units for any prior quarter. Any additional cash is
distributed 98% to the holders of subordinated units and 2% to our General Partner until there has been
distributed to the holders of subordinated units an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution.
Our General Partner is entitled to incentive distributions if the amount we distribute with respect to any
quarter exceeds speciÑed target levels shown below:
Percentage of Distributions
Limited Partners
General Partner

Quarterly Distribution Amount per Unit

Up to $.578 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $.578 up to $.656 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $.656 up to $.788 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $.788 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

98
85
75
50

2
15
25
50

We must distribute all of our cash on hand at the end of each quarter, less reserves established by our
General Partner. We refer to this cash as available cash, which is deÑned in our partnership agreement. The
amount of available cash may be greater than or less than the minimum quarterly distribution. We currently
pay quarterly cash distributions of $0.725 per unit. In general, we intend to continue to increase our cash
distributions in the future assuming no adverse change in our operations, economic conditions and other
factors. However, we cannot guarantee that future distributions will continue at such levels.
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Item 6.
SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA
(In thousands, except operating statistics and per unit amounts)
We have derived the summary selected historical Ñnancial data as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and
for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 from our audited consolidated Ñnancial
statements and related notes. Due to the April 2002 acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, we have restated our
consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes to reÖect the results of operations, Ñnancial position and cash Öows
of Williams Energy Partners L.P. and Williams Pipe Line Company on a combined basis throughout the
periods presented. These Ñnancial data are an integral part of, and should be read in conjunction with, the
consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes thereto. All other amounts have been prepared from our Ñnancial
records. Information concerning signiÑcant trends in the Ñnancial condition and results of operations is
contained in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The historical results for Williams Pipe Line Company (""Williams Pipe Line'') included income and
expenses and assets and liabilities that were conveyed to and assumed by an aÇliate of Williams Pipe Line
prior to our acquisition of it. The assets principally included Williams Pipe Line's interest in and agreement
related to Longhorn Partners Pipeline (""Longhorn''), an inactive reÑnery site at Augusta, Kansas, a pipeline
construction project, the ATLAS 2000 software system and the pension asset and obligations associated with
the non-contributory deÑned-beneÑt pension plan that covered employees assigned to Williams Pipe Line's
operations. The liabilities principally included the environmental liabilities associated with the inactive
reÑnery site in Augusta, Kansas and current and deferred income taxes and aÇliate note payable. The current
and deferred income taxes and the aÇliate note payable were contributed to us in the form of a capital
contribution by an aÇliate of Williams. Also, because of an agreement we have with Williams, revenues from
Williams Pipe Line's blending operations, other than an annual blending fee of approximately $3.0 million,
have not been included in our Ñnancial results since April 2002. In addition, general and administrative
expenses related to the Williams Pipe Line system that we have been reimbursing to our General Partner have
been limited to $30.0 million per year plus an annual escalator. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements regarding recent changes to the General Partner.
EBITDA is deÑned as net income plus provision for income taxes, debt placement fees, interest expense
(net of interest income) and depreciation and amortization. EBITDA should not be considered an alternative
to net income, operating income, cash Öow from operations or any other measure of Ñnancial performance
presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. EBITDA is not intended to represent
cash Öow. Because EBITDA excludes some but not all items that aÅect net income and these measures may
vary among other companies, the EBITDA data presented may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
of other companies. Our management uses EBITDA as a performance measure to assess the viability of
projects and to determine overall rates of return on alternative investment opportunities.
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Year Ended December 31,
2001
2000

2002

1999

1998

Income Statement Data:
Transportation and terminals revenues ÏÏ
Product sales revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate construction and management
fee revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 363,740
70,527

$ 339,412
108,169

$ 318,121
106,873

$287,107
70,750

$253,613
61,331

210

1,018

1,852

17,875

109,617

Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

434,477

448,599

426,846

375,732

424,561

Operating expenses including
environmental expenses net of
indemniÑcations from Williams ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate construction expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

155,146
63,982
Ì

160,880
95,268
Ì

144,899
94,141
1,025

121,599
59,230
15,464

100,271
55,274
101,924

Operating margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

215,349

192,451

186,781

179,439

167,092

Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
General and administrative ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

35,096
43,182

35,767
47,365

31,746
51,206

25,670
47,062

25,465
44,195

Total costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

297,406

339,280

323,017

269,025

327,129

Operating proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest expense, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt placement fees ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other (income) expense, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

137,071
21,758
9,950
(2,112)

109,319
12,113
253
(431)

103,829
25,329
Ì
(816)

106,707
18,998
Ì
(1,511)

97,432
11,328
Ì
12,661

Income before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Provision for income taxes(a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

107,475
8,322

97,384
29,512

79,316
30,414

89,220
34,121

73,443
28,250

$

48,902

$ 55,099

$ 45,193

$

17,828
2,770
1,050,159
Ì
432,957
388,503

$ (2,115)
3,143
973,939
Ì
406,022
339,601

$ 18,064
3,444
785,762
Ì
251,179
284,596

Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

99,153

$

67,872

Basic net income per limited partner
unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

3.68

$

1.87

Diluted net income per limited partner
unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

3.67

$

1.87

$

47,328
10,231
1,116,361
570,000
Ì
451,757

$

$

2.71

$

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital (deÑcit) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net investment in direct Ñnancing leases
Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total debt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate long-term note payable(b) ÏÏÏÏÏ
Partners' capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash Flow Data:
Cash distributions declared per unit(c)ÏÏ
Other Data:
Operating margin:
Williams Pipe Line system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

(2,211)
11,046
1,104,559
139,500
138,172
589,682
2.02

$ 163,233
43,844
8,272

$ 143,711
38,240
10,500

$ 147,778
31,286
7,717

$153,686
17,141
8,612

$153,864
3,599
9,629

$ 215,349

$ 192,451

$ 186,781

$179,439

$167,092
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Year Ended December 31,
2001
2000

2002

EBITDA:
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income taxes(a)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of debt placement fees ÏÏ
Interest expense, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EBITDA ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating Statistics:
Williams Pipe Line System:
Transportation revenue per barrel
shipped (cents per barrel) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Transportation barrels shipped
(millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Barrel miles (billions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals:
Marine terminal average storage
capacity utilized per month (million
barrels)(d) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Marine terminal throughput (million
barrels)(e) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inland terminal throughput (million
barrels) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system:
Volume shipped (thousand tons)ÏÏÏÏÏ

$

99,153
8,322
9,950
21,758
35,096

$

67,872
29,512
253
12,113
35,767

$

1999

1998

48,902
30,414
Ì
25,329
31,746

$ 55,099
34,121
Ì
18,998
25,670

$ 45,193
28,250
Ì
11,328
25,465

$ 174,279

$ 145,517

$ 136,391

$133,888

$110,236

94.9

90.8

89.1

91.4

87.9

234.6
71.0

236.1
70.5

229.1
68.2

222.5
67.8

242.3
N/A

16.2

15.7

14.7

10.1

N/A

20.5

11.5

3.7

N/A

N/A

57.3

56.7

56.1

58.1

26.8

712

763

713

795

896

(a) Prior to our initial public oÅering on February 9, 2001, our petroleum products terminals and ammonia
pipeline system operations were subject to income taxes. Prior to our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line
Company on April 11, 2002, Williams Pipe Line Company was also subject to income taxes. Because we
are a partnership, the petroleum products terminals and ammonia pipeline system were no longer subject
to income taxes after our initial public oÅering, and Williams Pipe Line was no longer subject to income
taxes following our acquisition of it.
(b) At the time of our initial public oÅering, the aÇliate note payable associated with the petroleum products
terminals operations was contributed to us as a capital contribution by an aÇliate of Williams. At the
closing of our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line Company, its aÇliate note payable was contributed to us
as a capital contribution by an aÇliate of Williams.
(c) Represents distributions declared associated with each respective calendar year. Distributions were
declared and paid within 45 days following the close of each quarter. Cash distributions declared for 2001
include a pro-rated distribution for the Ñrst quarter, which included the period from February 10, 2001
through March 31, 2001.
(d) For the year ended December 31, 1999, represents the average storage capacity utilized per month for the
Gulf Coast marine terminal facilities for the Ñve months that we owned these assets in 1999. For the year
ended December 31, 2000, represents the average monthly storage capacity utilized for the Gulf Coast
facilities (11.8 million barrels) and the average monthly storage capacity utilized for the four months that
we owned the New Haven marine terminal facility in 2000 (2.9 million barrels). All of the above
amounts exclude the Gibson facility, which is operated as a throughput facility.
(e) For the year ended December 31, 2000, represents four months of activity at the New Haven facility,
which was acquired in September 2000. For the year ended December 31, 2001, represents a full year of
activity for the New Haven facility (9.3 million barrels) and two months of activity at the Gibson facility
(2.2 million barrels), which was acquired in October 2001.
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Item 7.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Introduction
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes thereto. Williams Energy Partners L.P. is
a publicly traded limited partnership formed by The Williams Companies, Inc. (""Williams'') to own, operate
and acquire a diversiÑed portfolio of complementary energy assets. We are principally engaged in the
transportation, storage and distribution of reÑned petroleum products and ammonia. Our current asset
portfolio consists of:
‚ the Williams Pipe Line system;
‚ Ñve marine terminal facilities;
‚ 23 inland terminals (some of which are partially owned); and
‚ an ammonia pipeline system.
On April 11, 2002, we acquired for approximately $1.0 billion all of the membership interests of Williams
Pipe Line Company (""Williams Pipe Line'') from a wholly owned subsidiary of Williams. Williams Pipe Line
owns and operates the Williams Pipe Line system. Because Williams Pipe Line was an aÇliate of ours at the
time of the acquisition, the transaction was between entities under common control and, as such, was
accounted for similar to a pooling of interest. Accordingly, our consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes
have been restated to reÖect the historical results of operations, Ñnancial position and cash Öows of Williams
Energy Partners and Williams Pipe Line on a combined basis throughout the periods presented.
The historical results for the Williams Pipe Line system include revenue and expenses and assets and
liabilities that were conveyed to and assumed by an aÇliate of Williams Pipe Line prior to our acquisition of it.
These assets primarily include Williams Pipe Line's interest in and agreements related to Longhorn Partners
Pipeline (""Longhorn''), an inactive reÑnery at Augusta, Kansas, a pipeline construction project, the ATLAS
2000 software system and the pension asset and obligations associated with the non-contributory deÑnedbeneÑt pension plan that covered employees assigned to Williams Pipe Line's operations. The results from
these assets have not been included in our Ñnancial results since our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line in April
2002. In addition, revenues from Williams Pipe Line's blending operations, other than an annual blending fee
of approximately $3.0 million, have not been included in our Ñnancial results since April 2002. We report the
Williams Pipe Line system's operations as a separate operating segment.
Recent Developments
During 2002, Williams began to experience signiÑcant Ñnancial and liquidity diÇculties and no longer
maintains an investment grade credit rating. In the event that Williams' Ñnancial condition does not improve
or worsens it may have to consider other options including the possibility of Ñling for bankruptcy under the
United States Bankruptcy Code. Management believes that should Williams and its aÇliates Ñle for
bankruptcy protection that we would not necessarily become a party to such bankruptcy Ñlings. However, we
cannot assure you that Williams and its aÇliates, or the creditors of Williams and its aÇliates, would not
attempt to utilize various remedies available in a bankruptcy (including substantive consolidation), in an eÅort
to make our assets available to the creditors of Williams and its aÇliates, or how a bankruptcy court would
resolve such issues. Likewise, there can be no assurances as to the ultimate impact a bankruptcy by Williams
and its aÇliates would have on their ability to perform obligations owed to us, including our General Partner.
WEG GP LLC, our general partner (""General Partner''), is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Williams.
Combined with its limited partnership interest, Williams owns approximately 55% of us. However, we operate
our business in a manner separate and distinct from Williams. Among other things, (i) we either own or lease
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the assets used in our business in our own name, (ii) we have three independent board members who serve on
a conÖicts committee that must approve any material transaction between Williams or its aÇliates and us, as
well as approve certain signiÑcant transactions (such as the Ñling of a bankruptcy petition) and (iii) other
than aÇliate receivables and payables generated from product sales and services rendered in the normal course
of business, we do not provide any credit support to Williams or its aÇliates and Williams does not provide
credit support to us.
Provisions of the General Partner's limited liability company agreement speciÑcally provide that,
decisions regarding a voluntary bankruptcy Ñling of WEG GP LLC or us must be approved by our conÖicts
committee. Our conÖicts committee is comprised of the independent board members of WEG GP LLC.
On February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner and
all of its limited partnership interests. It is uncertain what form this potential transaction may take and
management cannot currently assess what impact such an acquisition would have on our on-going operations.
Please read ""Other Known Trends and Events Ì Change of Control''.
Overview
The Williams Pipe Line System. The Williams Pipe Line system is a common carrier transportation
pipeline and terminals network. The system generates approximately 80% of its revenues, excluding the sale of
petroleum products, through transportation tariÅs for volumes of petroleum products it ships. These tariÅs
vary depending upon where the product originates, where ultimate delivery occurs and any applicable
discounts. All transportation rates and discounts are in published tariÅs Ñled with the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (""FERC''). Williams Pipe Line also earns revenues from non-tariÅ based activities,
including leasing pipeline and storage tank capacity to shippers on a long-term basis and by providing data
services and product services such as ethanol unloading and loading, additive injection, custom blending and
laboratory testing for our customers.
Prior to our acquisition of it in April 2002, Williams Pipe Line generally did not produce or trade reÑned
petroleum products or liquid propane gases or take title to the products it transported. The system generates
small volumes of product by blending natural gas liquids with gasoline and by fractionating transmix, which is
a mixture of products resulting from the intermingling of diÅerent product grades during normal operation of
the pipeline. Williams Pipe Line purchased and took title to the inventories associated with blending and
fractionation until the processed product has been sold. In connection with the acquisition of Williams Pipe
Line, we, and an aÇliate of Williams agreed that Williams Pipe Line would no longer take title to the natural
gas liquids it blends with gasoline or the resulting product. We continue to perform these blending services for
aÇliates of Williams under a ten-year agreement for an annual fee that will increase to approximately
$3.6 million in 2003. In addition, we perform blending services at our Little Rock, Arkansas inland terminals,
which generate annual blending fees of approximately $0.6 million. As a result, total revenues generated from
blending services in 2003 will be approximately $4.2 million. We continue to purchase and fractionate
transmix and to sell the resulting separated products.
Operating costs and expenses incurred by the Williams Pipe Line system are principally Ñxed costs
related to routine maintenance and system integrity as well as Ñeld and support personnel. Other costs,
including power, Öuctuate with volumes transported and stored on the system. Expenses resulting from
environmental remediation projects have historically included costs from projects relating both to current and
past events. In connection with our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, Williams Energy Services generally
agreed to indemnify us for costs and expenses relating to environmental remediation for events that occurred
before April 11, 2002 and are discovered within six years from that date. Please read ""Business Ì
Environmental.''
Petroleum Products Terminals. Within our terminals network, we operate two types of terminals:
marine terminal facilities and inland terminals. The marine terminal facilities are large product storage
facilities that generate revenues primarily from fees that we charge customers for storage and throughput
services. The inland terminals earn revenues primarily from fees that we charge based on the volumes of
reÑned petroleum products distributed from these terminals. The inland terminals also earn ancillary revenues
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from injecting additives into gasoline and jet fuel, Ñltering jet fuel and delivering product to the Dallas Love
Field airport. Also included in ancillary revenues is the gain or loss resulting from diÅerences in meteredversus-physical volumes of reÑned petroleum products received at our terminals.
Operating costs and expenses that we incur in our marine and inland terminals are principally Ñxed costs
related to routine maintenance as well as Ñeld and support personnel. Other costs, including power, Öuctuate
with storage utilization or throughput levels.
Ammonia Pipeline System. The ammonia pipeline system earns the majority of its revenue from
transportation tariÅs that we charge for transporting ammonia through the pipeline. We have entered into a
new agreement with Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (""Enterprise'') to operate our ammonia system, which
will increase our operating expenses by approximately $0.5 million annually Also, Enterprise will charge us
$2.5 million annually for general and administrative expenses associated with their operation of this pipeline.
Management believes that the general and administrative costs will be subject to the expense limitation under
our Omnibus Agreement. Please read ""Item 13 Ì Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Ì
Omnibus Agreement.''
General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses are provided by and paid to
Williams as deÑned by the Omnibus Agreement. General and administrative expenses include functions such
as commercial operations, engineering, information technology, Ñnance, accounting, human resources and
other corporate services. Through a change of control or with 90 days written notice, Williams can terminate
its obligations to provide services to us, which would also eliminate Williams' obligations under the general
and administrative expense limitation included in the Omnibus Agreement.
In connection with our initial public oÅering, and with respect solely to the petroleum products terminals
and ammonia pipeline assets we owned at the time of that oÅering, we and our General Partner agreed with
Williams that the general and administrative expenses to be reimbursed to our General Partner by us would
not exceed $6.0 million for 2001, excluding expenses associated with our long-term incentive plans. The
reimbursement limitation will remain in place through 2011 and may increase by no more than the greater of
7% per year or the percentage increase in the consumer price index for that year. If we make an acquisition,
general and administrative expenses may also increase by the amount of these expenses included in the
valuation of the business acquired. For 2003, the general and administrative limitation was increased 2.4% to
$6.9 million.
In connection with our acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system, we and our General Partner agreed
with Williams that the general and administrative expenses to be reimbursed to our General Partner by us for
charges related to this asset would be $30.0 million for 2002, pro rated for the actual period that we owned
Williams Pipe Line. In each year after 2002, these expenses may increase by the lesser of 2.5% per year or the
percentage increase in the consumer price index for that year. For 2003, the general and administrative
limitation was increased 2.4% to $30.7 million. In addition, costs will increase by another $0.3 million for
general and administrative costs associated with the Rio Grande Pipeline, which we began operating in
February 2003.
We expect the 2003 general and administrative expenses paid to Williams to be $37.9 million before
equity-based long-term incentive plans and adjustments for additional acquisitions. Please read ""Risks
Related to Our Business'' for additional discussion of potential changes in our general and administrative costs
as a result of a sale by Williams of their interest in us. Management estimates that the actual general and
administrative costs required for our operations of the Partnership on a stand-alone basis could signiÑcantly
exceed this $37.9 million amount, due in part to signiÑcant increases in insurance premiums and increased
general and administrative costs on the ammonia pipeline system associated with the new Enterprise operating
contract, as well as our new agreement to operate the Rio Grande Pipeline.
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Acquisition History
We have materially increased our operations through a series of transactions since our initial public
oÅering in February 2001 including:
‚ in April 2002, the acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system from a subsidiary of Williams;
‚ in December 2001, the acquisition of a natural gas liquids pipeline in Illinois from Aux Sable Liquid
Products L.P.;
‚ in October 2001, the acquisition of a marine crude oil terminal facility in Gibson, Louisiana from
Geonet Gathering, Inc.;
‚ in June 2001, the acquisition of two inland reÑned petroleum products terminals in Little Rock,
Arkansas from TransMontaigne, Inc.; and
‚ in April 2001, the acquisition of a reÑned petroleum products pipeline in Dallas, Texas from Equilon
Pipeline Company LLC.
Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001
Year Ended
December 31,
2002
2001

Financial Highlights (in thousands)
Revenues:
Williams Pipe Line system transportation and related activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$272.5
78.1
13.1

$254.9
70.0
14.5

Revenues excluding product sales and construction revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product sales and construction revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

363.7
70.8

339.4
109.2

Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expenses including environmental expenses net of indemniÑcations
from Williams:
Williams Pipe Line system transportation and related activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

434.5

448.6

114.7
35.5
4.9

123.6
33.3
4.0

Operating expenses excluding product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line system product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

155.1
64.0

160.9
95.3

Total operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

219.1

256.2

Total operating margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$215.4

$192.4

34

Year Ended
December 31,
2002
2001

Operating Statistics
Williams Pipe Line system:
Transportation revenue per barrel shipped (cents per barrel) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Transportation barrels shipped (million barrels) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Barrel miles (billions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals:
Marine terminal facilities:
Average storage capacity utilized per month (barrels in millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Throughput (barrels in millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inland terminals:
Throughput (barrels in millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system:
Volume shipped (tons in thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

94.9
234.6
71.0

90.8
236.1
70.5

16.2
20.5

15.7
11.5

57.3

56.7

712

763

Our revenues, excluding product sales and construction revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002
were $363.7 million compared to $339.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of
$24.3 million, or 7%. This increase was a result of:
‚ an increase in Williams Pipe Line system's transportation and related activities revenues of $17.6 million, or 7%. Transportation revenues increased between periods due to higher weighted-average tariÅs
that more than oÅset slightly lower shipments. The tariÅs were higher due to a mid-year rate increase
and our customers' transporting products longer distances. These longer hauls resulted primarily from
supply shifts within our pipeline system during the latter part of 2002 caused by temporary reductions
of a reÑnery's production on our system. Further, increased rates for data services as well as higher
ethanol loading and storage volumes resulted in additional revenue;
‚ an increase in petroleum products terminals revenues of $8.1 million, or 12%, primarily due to the
acquisitions of our Gibson marine terminal facility in October 2001 and two Little Rock inland
terminals in June 2001. An improved marketing environment resulted in higher utilization and rates at
our Gulf Coast facilities, further increasing revenues during 2002; and
‚ a decrease in ammonia pipeline system revenues of $1.4 million, or 10%, primarily due to a throughput
deÑciency billing in the prior year that resulted from a shipper's inability to meet its minimum annual
throughput commitment for the contract year ended June 2001. In addition, revenue also declined due
to signiÑcantly reduced volumes from one of our shippers following its Ñling for Chapter 11 bankruptcy
during May 2002. Partially oÅsetting these decreases was a higher weighted-average tariÅ of $16.94 in
2002 compared to $16.21 during the prior year.
Operating expenses including environmental expenses net of environmental indemniÑcations from
Williams and excluding product purchases were $155.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
compared to $160.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, a decrease of $5.8 million, or 4%. This
decrease was a result of:
‚ a decrease in Williams Pipe Line system expenses of $8.9 million, or 7%, primarily due to lower
environmental and maintenance expenses and reduced power costs. Environmental costs were lower
due to the indemniÑcation from an aÇliate of Williams for environmental issues resulting from
operations prior to our ownership of the pipeline. Maintenance expenses declined due to improved cost
controls as a result of the implementation of a consistent and disciplined expense decision making
process. Reduced power costs resulted from lower volumes transported coupled with reduced power
rates. Partially oÅsetting these reductions was an increase in pipeline lease expenses, which represent
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tariÅs paid on connecting pipelines to move a customer's product to its ultimate destination. The
customer reimburses us through the transportation tariÅ for this service which began in the current
year, hence there are no associated pipeline lease expenses in the prior year;
‚ an increase in petroleum products terminals expenses of $2.2 million, or 7%, primarily due to the
addition of the Gibson marine facility and the Little Rock inland terminals and increased maintenance
expenses resulting from timing of tank cleaning and API 653 inspections at the inland terminals; and
‚ an increase in ammonia pipeline system expenses of $0.9 million, or 23%, primarily due to the purchase
in the current year of right-of-way easements that have historically been leased and higher property
taxes.
Revenues from Williams Pipe Line product sales were $69.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2002, while product purchases were $64.0 million, resulting in a net margin of $5.2 million in 2002. The
2002 net margin represents a decrease of $6.2 million compared to a net margin in 2001 of $11.4 million
resulting from product sales for the year ended December 31, 2001 of $106.7 million and product purchases of
$95.3 million. The margin decline in 2002 reÖects our agreement with an aÇliate of Williams to provide
blending services for them for an annual fee of $3.0 million. As a result of this agreement, we no longer
generate a commodity margin in butane blending related activities. Revenues from petroleum products
terminal product sales were $1.4 million in 2002 and $1.5 million in 2001.
AÇliate construction and management fee revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 were
$0.2 million compared to $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Historically, Williams Pipe Line
received a fee to manage Longhorn and to provide consulting services associated with the pipeline's
construction and start-up, as needed. Prior to our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, the obligation to provide
this service for Longhorn was transferred to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Williams.
Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $35.1 million,
representing a $0.7 million decrease from 2001 at $35.8 million. Additional depreciation associated with
acquisitions and capital improvements were more than oÅset by the elimination of depreciation associated
with assets we did not acquire as part of the Williams Pipe Line acquisition.
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $43.2 million compared
to $47.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, a decrease of $4.2 million, or 9%. General and
administrative expenses are paid to Williams as deÑned by the Omnibus Agreement. For 2002, subsequent to
the Williams Pipe Line acquisition, general and administrative expenses were limited to $9.2 million per
quarter plus equity-based incentive compensation expenses. Incentive compensation costs associated with our
long-term incentive plan are speciÑcally excluded from the expense limitation and were $3.7 million during
2002 and $2.0 million during 2001. The 2002 incentive compensation costs included $2.1 million associated
with the early vesting of the phantom units issued to key employees at the time of our initial public oÅering.
The early vesting was triggered as a result of meeting targets for our growth in cash distributions paid to
unitholders. Prior to our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, this operating unit was allocated general and
administrative costs from Williams based on a three-factor formula that considers operating margin, payroll
costs and property, plant and equipment. The amount of general and administrative costs we pay will continue
to be adjusted in the future to reÖect additional general and administrative expenses incurred in connection
with acquisitions as well as the annual adjustments allowed by the Omnibus Agreement. Through a change of
control or with 90 days written notice, Williams can terminate its obligations to provide services to us, which
would also eliminate Williams' obligations under the general and administrative expense limitation included in
the Omnibus Agreement.
Net interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $21.8 million compared to $12.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in interest expense was primarily related to the long-term
debt Ñnancing of Williams Pipe Line. Although the weighted average interest rates decreased from 5.0% in
2001 to 4.6% in 2002, the weighted average debt outstanding increased from $113.3 million in 2001 to
$522.0 million in 2002.
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We do not pay income taxes because we are a partnership. However, Williams Pipe Line was subject to
income taxes prior to our acquisition of it in April 2002, and our pre-initial public oÅering earnings in 2001
were also taxable. Taxes on these earnings were at income tax rates of 37% and 39% for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, based on the eÅective income tax rate for Williams as a result of
Williams' tax-sharing arrangement with its subsidiaries. The eÅective income tax rate exceeds the U.S. federal
statutory income tax rate primarily due to state income taxes.
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $99.2 million compared to $67.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $31.3 million, or 46%. The operating margin increased by
$23.0 million during the period, largely as a result of increased revenues and reduced operating expenses
including environmental expenses net of indemniÑcations from Williams for Williams Pipe Line, earnings
from the acquisitions of the Little Rock and Gibson terminal facilities and increased utilization and rates at
our Gulf Coast marine facilities. Depreciation expense and general and administrative expenses decreased by
$0.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively, while net interest expense increased by $9.7 million. Debt
placement fee amortization expense increased $9.7 million primarily due to costs from debt Ñnancing
associated with the Williams Pipe Line acquisition. Other income increased $1.7 million primarily due to:
(i) gain on the sale of assets and (ii) an impairment charge recorded during 2001 related to the inactive
reÑnery site at Augusta, Kansas, the assets and liabilities of which were not transferred to us as part of the
Williams Pipe Line acquisition. Income taxes decreased $21.2 million due to our partnership structure.
Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000
Year Ended
December 31,
2001
2000

Financial Highlights (in thousands)
Revenues:
Williams Pipe Line system transportation and related activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$254.9
70.0
14.5

$245.6
60.8
11.7

Revenues excluding product sales and construction revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product sales and construction revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

339.4
109.2

318.1
108.7

Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expenses including environmental expenses net of indemniÑcations
from Williams:
Williams Pipe Line system transportation and related activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

448.6

426.8

123.6
33.3
4.0

111.4
29.5
4.0

Operating expenses excluding product purchases and construction
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line system product purchases and construction expense ÏÏÏÏ

160.9
95.3

144.9
95.2

Total operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

256.2

240.1

Total operating margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$192.4

$186.7
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Year Ended
December 31,
2001
2000

Operating Statistics
Williams Pipe Line system:
Transportation revenue per barrel shipped (cents per barrel) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Transportation barrels shipped (million barrels) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Barrel miles (billions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Petroleum products terminals:
Marine terminal facilities:
Average storage capacity utilized per month (barrels in millions)(a)ÏÏÏÏÏ
Throughput (barrels in millions)(b) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inland terminals:
Throughput (barrels in millions) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ammonia pipeline system:
Volume shipped (tons in thousands)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

90.8
236.1
70.5

89.1
229.1
68.2

15.7
11.5

14.7
3.7

56.7

56.1

763

713

(a) For the year ended December 31, 2001, represents the average monthly storage capacity utilized for the
Gulf Coast marine terminal facilities (12.7 million barrels) and the New Haven marine terminal facility
(3.0 million barrels). For the year ended December 31, 2000, represents the average monthly storage
capacity utilized for the Gulf Coast marine terminals facilities (11.8 million barrels) and the average
monthly storage capacity utilized for the four months that we owned the New Haven marine terminal
facility (2.9 million barrels), which we acquired in September 2000. All of the above amounts exclude
the Gibson facility.
(b) For the year ended December 31, 2001, represents a full year of activity at the New Haven marine
terminal facility (9.3 million barrels) and two months of activity at the Gibson marine terminal facility
(2.2 million barrels), which we acquired on October 31, 2001. For the year ended December 31, 2000,
represents four months of activity at the New Haven marine terminal facility, which we acquired in
September 2000.
Our revenues excluding product sales and construction revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001
were $339.4 million compared to $318.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, an increase of
$21.3 million, or 7%. This increase was primarily a result of:
‚ an increase in Williams Pipe Line system's transportation and related revenues of $9.3 million, or 4%,
primarily due to higher transportation revenues, partially oÅset by a decrease in revenues from product
services. The increase in transportation revenues resulted from increased volumes and mid-year tariÅ
increases. Transportation volumes increased in part due to system expansions made to secure new
volumes from customers. Volumes also increased as a result of additional volume incentive agreements
and general demand increases for gasoline and distillates, slightly oÅset by a decrease in demand for
aviation fuel resulting from the recession and consumer reaction to the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001. Product services decreased primarily due to a reduction in additive injection revenues
resulting from lower prices for these services under new agreements;
‚ an increase in the petroleum products terminals revenues of $9.2 million, or 15%, primarily a result of
the acquisitions of our New Haven marine terminal facility in September 2000, two Little Rock inland
terminals in June 2001 and the Gibson marine terminal facility in October 2001. An improved
marketing environment resulted in higher utilization at our Gulf Coast marine facilities. These
increases were slightly oÅset by a decrease in inland terminals revenues, primarily due to the December
2000 expiration of a customer's contractual commitment to utilize a speciÑed amount of throughput
capacity; and
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‚ an increase in ammonia pipeline system revenues of $2.8 million, or 24%, partly due to a throughput
deÑciency billing that resulted from a shipper's inability to meet its minimum annual throughput
commitment for the contract year ended June 2001. In addition, warm fall weather and a return to
historically average prices for natural gas, which is the primary component for the production of
ammonia, combined to create favorable conditions for the application of ammonia during the fourth
quarter of 2001, resulting in a 50,000 ton, or 7%, increase in volume shipped on the pipeline compared
to 2000. The weighted-average tariÅ increased from $15.50 in 2000 to $16.21 in 2001.
Operating expenses including environmental expenses net of indemniÑcations from Williams and
excluding product purchases and construction expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 were
$160.9 million compared to $144.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, an increase of $16.0 million,
or 11%. This increase was a result of:
‚ an increase in Williams Pipe Line system's expenses of $12.2 million, or 11%, primarily caused by
increased maintenance and power expenses. Maintenance costs were higher due to increased expenditures associated with our System Integrity Program, which is designed to ensure compliance with
increased safety regulations. This program includes increased emphasis on pipeline inspections and
API 653 tank inspections. Power expense increased due to higher transportation volumes and higher
power rates. Partially oÅsetting these increases were lower environmental and less casualty loss
expense. Environmental expenses were less due to higher costs recognized in 2000 related to the
inactive reÑnery site at Augusta, Kansas, assets and liabilities of which were not transferred to us as
part of the Williams Pipe Line acquisition. Casualty losses decreased due to higher costs recognized in
2000 associated with a groundwater contamination lawsuit that was settled in 2001; and
‚ an increase in petroleum products terminals expenses of $3.8 million, or 13%, due primarily to the
acquisitions of the New Haven marine terminal facility in September 2000, the Little Rock inland
terminals in June 2001 and the Gibson marine terminal facility in October 2001. Expenses at the other
Gulf Coast marine terminal facilities increased slightly due to higher utility costs, partially oÅset by
lower environmental and maintenance expenses, while property taxes at some inland terminals
increased.
Revenues from product sales were $108.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, while product
purchases were $95.3 million, resulting in a net margin of $12.9 million in 2001. The 2001 net margin
represents an increase of $0.3 million compared to a net margin in 2000 of $12.6 million resulting from
product sales in 2000 of $106.8 million and product purchases of $94.2 million. Revenues from petroleum
products terminal product sales were $1.5 million in 2001 and $2.4 million in 2000.
AÇliate construction and management fee revenues were $1.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2001, while there were no aÇliate construction expenses, resulting in a net margin of $1.0 million. The
2001 net margin represents an increase of $0.1 million compared to a net margin in 2000 of $0.9 million
resulting from aÇliate construction and management fee revenues in 2000 of $1.9 million and aÇliate
construction expenses of $1.0 million.
Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $35.8 million
compared to $31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, an increase of $4.1 million, or 13%. The
increase was due primarily to the acquisitions of the New Haven marine terminal facility, two Little Rock
inland terminals and Gibson marine terminal facility as well as maintenance capital expenditures.
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2001 were $47.4 million compared
to $51.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $3.8 million, or 7%. This decrease is
primarily the result of the general and administrative expense limit provided for in the Omnibus Agreement.
For 2001, general and administrative expenses related to the petroleum products terminals and ammonia
pipeline system include the established limit of $6.0 million per year plus additional general and administrative
costs associated with businesses acquired during 2001 and $2.0 million of expenses associated with our longterm incentive compensation plan. For 2000, general and administrative costs related to the petroleum
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products terminals and ammonia pipeline system were $12.0 million. The general and administrative expenses
incurred by or allocated to Williams Pipe Line in 2001 were $38.4 million compared to $39.2 million in 2000.
Williams allocates both direct and indirect general and administrative expenses to its aÇliates. Direct
expenses allocated by Williams are primarily salaries and beneÑts of employees and oÇcers associated with
the business activities of the aÇliate. Indirect expenses include legal, accounting, treasury, engineering,
information technology and other corporate services. We reimburse the General Partner and its aÇliates for
direct and indirect expenses incurred by or allocated to them on our behalf.
Net interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $12.1 million compared to $25.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000. This decrease is primarily the result of a decline in aÇliate notes
payable to Williams and lower interest rates. The aÇliate note payable associated with the Williams Pipe Line
system declined as a result of a partial repayment using cash generated from operations in excess of capital
expenditures. The aÇliate note payable associated with the petroleum products terminals and ammonia
pipeline system was partially repaid and the balance was contributed to us as capital in connection with our
initial public oÅering in February 2001. At the end of 2001, we had $139.5 million outstanding under a term
loan and revolving credit facility.
We do not pay income taxes because we are a partnership. We primarily based our income tax rate of
39% for our pre-initial public oÅering earnings from our petroleum products terminals and ammonia pipeline
businesses upon the eÅective income tax rate for Williams as a result of Williams' tax-sharing arrangement
with its subsidiaries. In addition, Williams Pipe Line was taxed as a corporation prior to our acquisition of the
system on April 11, 2002. Williams Pipe Line's eÅective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000 were 39% and 38%, respectively, also based primarily on the eÅective income tax rates for Williams for
those periods. The eÅective income tax rates exceeded the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate for
corporations primarily due to state income taxes.
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $67.9 million compared to $48.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000, an increase of $19.0 million, or 39%. The operating margin increased by
$5.7 million during the period, primarily as a result of increased transportation revenues on the Williams Pipe
Line system and the acquisition of the New Haven, Little Rock and Gibson petroleum products terminals,
partially oÅset by higher operating costs associated with those acquisitions and higher system integrity costs on
the Williams Pipe Line system. Depreciation and amortization increased by $4.1 million, whereas general and
administrative expenses declined $3.8 million. Net interest expense decreased $13.2 million. Debt placement
fee amortization increased $0.3 million and other income declined $0.4 million. Income taxes decreased
$0.9 million.
Other Known Trends or Events
We have signiÑcant relationships with Williams, the owner of our General Partner, Farmland Industries,
Inc. (""Farmland'') and other third-party entities that impact our operating results. Williams has completed a
number of asset sales and entered into secured debt agreements to address its liquidity needs, and Farmland
has Ñled for bankruptcy. Our relationships with these two entities are described below:
Williams Ì During the past year, Williams has experienced Ñnancial and liquidity diÇculties and
currently does not have an investment grade credit rating. These Ñnancial diÇculties have raised questions
concerning Williams' ability to meet its existing Ñnancial obligations. However, Williams has not Ñled for
bankruptcy protection and neither Williams, WEG GP LLC, nor any other Williams aÇliate has advised us of
any intention by Williams, any Williams aÇliate or our General Partner to place Williams or our General
Partner into bankruptcy. We are engaged contractually with Williams on several fronts, including commercial
relationships, contracted services and indemnities. The extent of these relationships include:
‚ Williams is the owner of our General Partner and its ownership interest in us is approximately 55%,
including its 2% general partner interest;
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‚ Williams is a customer, representing approximately 13% of our 2002 revenues. We expect to replace a
majority of these revenues without signiÑcant impact to our results of operations if Williams is unable
to perform on its existing obligations.
‚ Williams provides various services for us. Through these services, Williams operates our assets and
provides general and administrative functions. All employees supporting our partnership are employees
of Williams. We pay the cost for the operating expenses associated with our assets, and we incur an
additional cost for general and administrative services, which are limited under the Omnibus
Agreement to approximately $40.0 million per year. Management estimates that actual general and
administrative costs required for our operation could be signiÑcantly higher due in part to increases in
insurance premiums and increased general and administrative costs for the ammonia pipeline
associated with the new Enterprise operating contract. For the year ended 2002, Williams incurred
$19.7 million of general and administrative charges in excess of the amount speciÑed under terms of
the Omnibus Agreement. Some of the charges did not relate to services essential for our ongoing
operations. Through a change of control or with 90 days written notice, Williams can terminate its
obligations to provide services to us, which would also eliminate Williams' obligations under the
general and administrative expense limitation included in the Omnibus Agreement; and
‚ for assets included in our initial public oÅering, Williams agreed to provide maintenance capital
reimbursements for expenditures in excess of $4.9 million during 2001 and 2002. We received total
reimbursement of $14.9 million for maintenance capital spent during the period of the agreement. In
addition, Williams has agreed to pay maintenance capital associated with the Williams Pipe Line
system in excess of $19.0 million per year for 2002, 2003 and 2004 up to a cumulative maximum of
$15.0 million. We expect to spend less than $19.0 million annually for maintenance capital for the
Williams Pipe Line system and do not expect any maintenance capital reimbursement from Williams
associated with this asset.
AÇliates of Williams have provided various indemniÑcations to us. Please read ""Critical Accounting
Estimates Ì Environmental Liabilities'' and ""Critical Accounting Estimates Ì AÇliate Receivables''.
Change of Control Ì On February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our
General Partner and all of its limited partnership interests. Upon completion of this proposed divestiture, the
resulting change of control may lead to the following results:
‚ termination of our Omnibus Agreement with Williams or termination of Williams' obligation to
provide general and administrative services for a Ñxed charge, which could result in higher general and
administrative expenses and cessation of the environmental indemniÑcation for the assets acquired at
the time of our initial public oÅering;
‚ acceleration of principal payments on outstanding debt;
‚ initial increase in the allocation of taxable income to our unitholders; and
‚ early vesting of phantom units issued as part of our long-term incentive compensation plan.
It is uncertain what form the sale of Williams' interests may take and management is unable, at this time,
to determine what impact such a transaction will have on our ongoing operations.
Farmland Ì Farmland Ñled for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on May 31, 2002. Farmland is the
largest customer on our ammonia pipeline system. Farmland also owns and operates a reÑnery in CoÅeyville,
Kansas, with its products marketed primarily through a third party that ships on Williams Pipe Line. This
third party shipper is not aÇliated with either Farmland or Williams. Combined total revenues associated with
Farmland's ammonia shipments and the use of the Williams Pipe Line system to transport products from the
Farmland reÑnery were $31.5 million and $37.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, or 7% and 8% of total revenues for 2002 and 2001, respectively. Demand for products from
Farmland's CoÅeyville, Kansas reÑnery have continued to be strong and we expect that this demand will
remain so for the foreseeable future. Also, we believe that Farmland will either continue to operate its
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CoÅeyville, Kansas reÑnery or will sell it to a third party who will continue its operation. Please read
""Ammonia Pipeline System Ì Customers and Contracts Ì Farmland'' for additional information.
Farmland's ammonia pipeline agreement provided for the right to terminate its shipment obligation by
submitting 12 month written notice to us, which they have done. Farmland's notiÑcation will be eÅective
December 23, 2003. Farmland has indicated that its ammonia production facility connected to our pipeline is
for sale and has thus elected to exercise its termination right eÅective December 23, 2003. Farmland is
expected to incur a deÑciency of approximately $2.0 million to $2.5 million under its shipment obligation for
the contract year ending June 30, 2003. On February 18, 2003, we entered into a settlement agreement with
Farmland to resolve its deÑciency. Under the settlement agreement, Farmland will pay us $0.8 million for the
deÑciency it will incur under its shipment obligation for the contract year ending June 30, 2003. If Farmland
assigns its shipment obligation to a purchaser of its ammonia assets pursuant to bankruptcy procedures,
Farmland's termination notice will be withdrawn, and the shipment obligation will be reduced from 450,000
tons annually to 200,000 tons annually.
The settlement agreement is subject to approval by the bankruptcy court. If the bankruptcy court does
not approve the settlement agreement by June 20, 2003, it will be void unless we agree with Farmland to
extend the time for approval. If the settlement agreement is not approved and Farmland rejects its shipment
obligation pursuant to bankruptcy procedures, we will have a general, unsecured creditor's claim against
Farmland for the deÑciency it will incur under its shipment obligation for the contract year ending June 30,
2003 and for any deÑciency incurred under its shipment obligation for the contract period beginning July 1,
2003 and ending December 23, 2003.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows and Capital Expenditures
Net cash provided by operating activities was $161.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
$135.3 million for 2001 and $55.1 million for 2000.
‚ Net income for 2002 beneÑted from higher revenues and reduced expenses for the Williams Pipe Line
system and greater terminals proÑts due to the Little Rock and Gibson acquisitions and higher
utilization at the Gulf Coast facilities. The reduction in income taxes more than oÅset the increased
interest expense. Changes in operating assets and liabilities provided additional net cash. Inventories
decreased during 2002 due to the elimination of butane blending inventories as we now perform butane
blending as a service provider without carrying the relevant inventory. As part of our acquisition of the
Williams Pipe Line system, Williams retained $15.0 million of its accounts receivables and the aÇliate
payables. Therefore, accounts receivables and aÇliate payables increased during 2002 as they were
replaced as part of the ongoing operations of that business. Further, increases in aÇliate receivables
were primarily oÅset by increases in environmental liabilities due to the indemniÑcation from Williams
for environmental liabilities occurring prior to our ownership of the Williams Pipe Line system.
‚ Net income increased from 2000 to 2001 due to the acquisition of our New Haven, Little Rock and
Gibson terminals and reduced interest expense. Changes in operating assets and liabilities also
impacted cash from operations. Accounts receivable signiÑcantly declined due to the 2001 collection of
receivables related to reimbursable construction projects. In addition, aÇliate receivables declined due
to the 2001 collection of a large outstanding short-term aÇliate receivable due from an aÇliate of
Williams. Inventories increased between periods due to higher commodity prices during 2001. Further,
changes to other current and noncurrent assets and liabilities resulted from collection of unbilled
reimbursable construction projects at year-end 2000 and long-term aÇliate receivables related to
reimbursable Longhorn construction costs.
Net cash used by investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was
$727.0 million, $87.5 million and $74.4 million, respectively. During 2002, we acquired the Williams Pipe
Line system and the Aux Sable natural gas liquids pipeline. During 2001, we acquired our two Little Rock
inland terminals and the Gibson marine facility. During 2000, we acquired our interest in the Southlake inland
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terminal and the New Haven marine facility. We also invested capital to maintain our existing assets.
Maintenance capital spending before reimbursements was $26.4 million, $24.4 million and $25.9 million in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Please see Capital Requirements below for further discussion of capital
expenditures.
Net cash provided (used) by Ñnancing activities for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
was $627.3 million, $(34.0) million and $19.4 million, respectively. The cash provided during 2002 principally
included the debt and equity funding that were completed in conjunction with our acquisition of Williams Pipe
Line. Cash was used in 2001 to repay aÇliate notes associated with our initial public oÅering assets as well as
payments made by Williams Pipe Line to decrease its aÇliate note balance, partially oÅset by proceeds from
debt borrowings and equity issued in our initial public oÅering and subsequent debt borrowings for
acquisitions. The 2000 cash inÖow primarily represents aÇliate loans we received from Williams to fund our
terminal acquisitions, partially oÅset by repayments of the aÇliate note payable associated with Williams Pipe
Line using free cash Öow generated by the system.
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission Notice of Proposed Rulemaking Ì On August 1, 2002, the
FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking that, if adopted, would amend its Uniform Systems of
Accounts for public utilities, natural gas companies and oil pipeline companies by requiring speciÑc written
documentation concerning the management of funds from a FERC-regulated subsidiary by a non-FERCregulated parent. Under the proposed rule, as a condition for participating in a cash management or money
pool arrangement, the FERC-regulated entity would be required to maintain a minimum proprietary capital
balance (stockholder's equity or partners' capital) of 30%, and the FERC-regulated entity and its parent
would be required to maintain investment grade credit ratings. If either of these conditions is not met, the
FERC-regulated entity would not be eligible to participate in the cash management or money pool
arrangement. As of December 31, 2002, all of our debt was issued to private lenders and is not rated; therefore,
we do not currently meet the second requirement. The period for interested companies to make comments to
the FERC relative to this proposed rule has ended, and the FERC is evaluating its position on the issue. We
do not know when or if the rule will be enacted. However, we have established separate bank accounts for
Williams Pipe Line and we believe we could easily comply with the proposed rule.
Capital Requirements
The transportation, storage and distribution business requires continual investment to upgrade or enhance
existing operations and to ensure compliance with safety and environmental regulations. The capital
requirements of our businesses consist primarily of:
‚ maintenance capital expenditures, such as those required to maintain equipment reliability and safety
and to address environmental regulations; and
‚ payout capital expenditures to acquire additional complementary assets to grow our business and to
expand or upgrade our existing facilities, such as projects that increase storage or throughput volumes
or develop pipeline connections to new supply sources.
Williams agreed to reimburse us for maintenance capital expenditures incurred in 2001 and 2002 in
excess of $4.9 million per year related to our initial public oÅering assets. This reimbursement obligation was
subject to a maximum combined reimbursement for both years of $15.0 million. During 2001 and 2002, we
recorded reimbursements from Williams associated with these assets of $3.9 million and $11.0 million,
respectively.
In connection with our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, Williams has agreed to reimburse us for
maintenance capital expenditures incurred in 2002, 2003 and 2004 in excess of $19.0 million per year related
to the Williams Pipe Line system, subject to a maximum combined reimbursement for all years of
$15.0 million. Our maintenance capital expenditure expectations related to the Williams Pipe Line system are
less than $19.0 million per year and we do not anticipate reimbursement by Williams.
During 2002, our maintenance capital spending net of reimbursements was $15.4 million. We expect to
incur maintenance capital expenditures for 2003 for all of our businesses of $22.0 million.
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In addition to maintenance capital expenditures, we also incur payout capital expenditures at our existing
facilities for expansion and upgrade opportunities. During 2002, we spent $11.3 million of payout capital,
excluding acquisitions. Based on projects currently in process, we plan to spend approximately $6.5 million of
payout capital in 2003. This amount does not include capital expenditures made in connection with any future
acquisitions. We expect to fund our payout capital expenditures, including any acquisitions, from:
‚ cash provided by operations;
‚ borrowings under the revolving credit facility discussed below and other borrowings; and
‚ the issuance of additional common units.
If capital markets tighten and we are unable to fund these expenditures, our business may be adversely
aÅected and we may not be able to acquire additional assets and businesses.
Liquidity
Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured Notes. In connection with the Ñnancing of the Williams Pipe Line
system acquisition, we and our subsidiary, Williams Pipe Line Company, entered into a note purchase
agreement on October 1, 2002. The private placement allowed for two separate borrowings: (i) $420.0 million
to be used to repay the Williams Pipe Line short-term loan and related debt placement fees and
(ii) $60.0 million for general corporate purposes. We borrowed a total of $480.0 million under the debt
agreement. The incremental $60.0 million was used primarily to repay the outstanding acquisition sub-facility
of the OLP term loan and credit facility, described below. The Williams Pipe Line borrowing included
Series A and Series B notes. The maturity date of both notes is October 7, 2007, with scheduled prepayments
equal to 5% of the outstanding balance due on both October 7, 2005 and October 7, 2006. The debt is secured
by our membership interests in and the assets of Williams Pipe Line. Payment of interest and principal is
guaranteed by Williams Energy Partners L.P.
The Series A notes include $178.0 million of borrowings that incur interest based on the six-month
Eurodollar rate plus 4.3%. The Series B notes include $302.0 million of borrowings that incur interest at a
weighted-average Ñxed rate of 7.8%.
The debt agreement contains various covenants limiting Williams Pipe Line Company's ability to:
‚ incur additional indebtedness;
‚ grant liens other than tax liens, mechanic's and materialman's liens and other liens and encumbrances
incurred in the ordinary course of business;
‚ make investments, other than investments in the Williams Pipe Line system, cash and short-term
securities and acquisitions;
‚ dispose of assets;
‚ engage in any business other than the transportation, storage and distribution of hydrocarbons;
‚ create obligations for some lease payments; and
‚ engage in transactions with aÇliates other than arm's-length transactions.
In addition, the debt agreement prohibits us from redeeming the Class B units except with proceeds from
an equity oÅering. It also prohibits our General Partner from incurring any indebtedness. The Williams Pipe
Line notes also contain Ñnancial covenants, that apply to both Williams Pipe Line and us, to maintain
speciÑed ratios of:
‚ EBITDA (as deÑned in the Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured debt agreement) to interest expense of
not less than 2.5 to 1.0; and
‚ total debt to EBITDA of not more than 4.5 to 1.0.
We are in compliance with all of these covenants.
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In the event of a change in control of the General Partner, each holder of the notes would have 30 days
within which they could exercise a right to put their notes to Williams Pipe Line unless the new owner of the
General Partner has: (i) a net worth of at least $500 million and (ii) long-term unsecured debt rated as
investment grade by both Moody's Investor Service Inc. and Standard & Poor's Rating Service. A change of
control is an event in which Williams or its aÇliates no longer own 50% or more of the General Partner's
interest in us. If this put right were to be exercised, Williams Pipe Line would be obligated to repurchase any
such notes at par value and repay any accrued interest within sixty days.
OLP term loan and revolving credit facility. Subsequent to the closing of our initial public oÅering on
February 9, 2001, we relied on cash generated from operations as our primary source of funding, except for
payout capital expenditures. Additional funding requirements are met by a $175.0 million credit facility of one
of our operating partnerships that expires on February 5, 2004. This credit facility is comprised of a
$90.0 million term loan and an $85.0 million revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility is comprised
of a $73.0 million acquisition sub-facility and a $12.0 million working capital sub-facility. Indebtedness under
this credit facility bears interest at the Eurodollar rate plus an applicable margin that ranges from 1.0% to
1.5%. We also incur a commitment fee on the unused portions of the credit facility. As of December 31, 2002,
the $90.0 million term loan is outstanding with the entire $85.0 million revolving credit facility available for
future borrowings.
Obligations under the credit facility are unsecured but are guaranteed by all of the subsidiaries of the
operating partnership. Indebtedness under the credit facility ranks equally with all the outstanding unsecured
and unsubordinated debt of our operating partnership. Williams Pipe Line is a separate operating subsidiary of
ours and is not a borrower or guarantor under this credit facility.
The credit facility contains various operational and Ñnancial covenants limiting our operating partnership's ability to:
‚ incur additional unsecured indebtedness of more than $75.0 million, subordinated debt owed to
aÇliates of more than $50.0 million and secured purchase money debt of more than $5.0 million,
including maintaining the ratios described below;
‚ grant liens other than tax liens, mechanic's and materialman's liens and other liens and encumbrances
incurred in the ordinary course of the operating partnership's business;
‚ make investments, other than investments in the operating partnership's subsidiaries, cash and short
term securities and acquisitions;
‚ merge or consolidate;
‚ sell all of the operating partnership's assets;
‚ make distributions other than from available cash;
‚ engage in any business other than the transportation, storage and distribution of hydrocarbons and
ammonia;
‚ create obligations for some lease payments; or
‚ engage in transactions with aÇliates other than arm's-length transactions.
The credit facility also contains covenants requiring the operating partnership to maintain speciÑed
ratios of:
‚ EBITDA (as deÑned in the credit facility), pro forma for any asset acquisitions, to interest expense of
not less than 3.0 to 1.0; and
‚ total debt to EBITDA, pro forma for any asset acquisitions, of not more than 4.0 to 1.0.
We are in compliance with all of these covenants.
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Under terms of this facility, a change of control whereby Williams and its aÇliates no longer own 100% of
the General Partner's equity would result in an event of default, in which case the maturity date of the
outstanding amounts under this facility may be accelerated by the lenders in the facility.
The following table summarizes the principal payment schedule for each of our borrowings as of
December 31, 2002:
Total

Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured Notes
OLP term loan and revolving credit facility

$480.0
$ 90.0

Debt principal payments due by period
G 1 year
1-3 years
3-5 years
H 5 years
($ in millions)

Ì
Ì

$24.0
$90.0

$456.0
Ì

Ì
Ì

Debt-to-Total Capitalization Ì The ratio of debt-to-total capitalization is a measure frequently used by
the Ñnancial community to assess the reasonableness of a company's debt levels compared to total
capitalization, calculated by adding total debt and total partners' capital. Based on the Ñgures shown in our
balance sheet, debt-to-total capitalization is 56% at December 31, 2002. Because accounting rules required the
acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system to be recorded at historical book value due to the aÇliate nature
of the transaction, the $474.5 million diÅerence between the purchase price and book value at the time of the
acquisition was recorded as a decrease to the General Partner's capital account, thus lowering our overall
partners' capital. If Williams Pipe Line had been purchased from a third party, the asset would have been
recorded at market value, resulting in a debt-to-total capitalization of 38%, which is consistent with
management's indicated target level of 40%.
Environmental
Our operations are subject to environmental laws and regulations, adopted by various governmental
authorities, in the jurisdictions in which these operations are conducted. We have accrued liabilities for
estimated site restoration costs to be incurred in the future at our facilities and properties, including liabilities
for environmental remediation obligations at various sites where we have been identiÑed as a possibly
responsible party. Under our accounting policies, liabilities are recorded when site restoration and environmental remediation and cleanup obligations are either known or considered probable and can be reasonably
estimated.
In conjunction with our initial public oÅering, and with respect solely to the petroleum products terminals
and ammonia pipeline system owned at the time of that oÅering, an aÇliate of Williams agreed to indemnify
us against environmental liabilities up to $15.0 million resulting from events that arose prior to February 9,
2001, become known within three years after February 9, 2001 and exceed all amounts recovered or
recoverable by us under contractual indemnities from third parties or under any applicable insurance policies.
As of December 31, 2002, we had collected $1.7 million against Williams Energy Services' indemnity and
had recorded $3.3 million of environmental liabilities associated with our petroleum products terminals and
ammonia systems, substantially all of which were covered by Williams Energy Services' indemniÑcation. Of
these environmental liabilities, $3.2 million is expected to be recovered from Williams Energy Services.
Further, we expect to incur $0.3 million of environmental capital, which could also be covered by this
indemniÑcation. Management estimates that these expenditures for environmental remediation liabilities will
be paid over the next Ñve years. Please read ""Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations Ì Other Known Trends and Events Ì Change of Control'' for additional
discussion of possible changes associated with Williams Energy Services' indemniÑcation to us.
In connection with our acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system on April 11, 2002, Williams Energy
Services agreed to indemnify us for losses and damages related to breach of environmental representations and
warranties and the failure to comply with environmental laws prior to closing in excess of $2.0 million up to a
maximum of $125.0 million. This $125.0 million will also cover claims made by us for breaches of other
Williams Energy Services' representations and warranties. The environmental indemniÑcation obligation
applies to liabilities that resulted from conduct prior to the closing of our acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line
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system and are discovered within six years of closing. Williams has provided a performance guarantee for these
environmental indemnities. As of December 31, 2002, we had collected $3.3 million against this
indemniÑcation.
As of December 31, 2002, we had accrued environmental remediation liabilities associated with the
Williams Pipe Line system of $19.0 million. Management estimates that these expenditures will be paid over
the next Ñve years. Of these environmental liabilities, $18.7 million are expected to be recoverable from
aÇliates. In addition, we are forecasting capital expenditures associated with environmental projects of
$3.9 million, which are expected to be indemniÑed but are not included in our aÇliate accounts receivable.
Impact of InÖation
Although inÖation has slowed in recent years, it is still a factor in the United States economy and may
increase the cost to acquire or replace property, plant and equipment and may increase the costs of labor and
supplies. To the extent permitted by competition, regulation and our existing agreements, we have and will
continue to pass along increased costs to our customers in the form of higher fees.
Critical Accounting Estimates
Goodwill Impairment
In January 2002, we began applying the new rules established by Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (""SFAS'') No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangibles'', relative to accounting for goodwill and
other intangible assets. Under this standard we no longer amortize goodwill because it is an asset with an
indeÑnite useful life but test it for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The Ñrst step of the impairment test is to determine if
the fair value of our reporting units exceed their carrying amount. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount then the goodwill may be impaired. The second step compares the implied fair value
of goodwill to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized equal to that excess. The implied fair value of goodwill should be calculated in
the same manner that goodwill is calculated in a business combination.
We had recognized $22.3 million of goodwill on October 1, 2002 and $22.3 million of goodwill on
December 31, 2002. All of the goodwill and other intangibles recognized by us are associated with the
petroleum products terminals segment and were acquired as part of the Gibson, Louisiana and Little Rock,
Arkansas terminals acquisitions (see Note 5 Ì Acquisitions and Divestitures). We performed our annual
testing of goodwill, as required by SFAS No. 142 as of October 1, 2002.
We believe that the accounting estimate related to goodwill impairment is a ""critical accounting
estimate'' of our petroleum products terminals segment because: (1) signiÑcant judgment is exercised during
the process of determining the petroleum products terminals segment fair value and (2) because diÅerent
assumptions could result in material charges to our operating results.
For the 2002 test, fair value of the petroleum products terminals was assessed using three approaches:
(1) a market value approach, (2) a discounted future cash Öows approach and (3) an EBITDA multiple
approach. Under the market value approach, we calculated the total enterprise value on October 1, 2002 and
allocated that total value between our three operating segments based on the relative discounted future cash
Öows of all three operating segments. The carrying value of the segment was allocated based on our total
partners' capital. Under the discounted future cash Öows method, the cash Öows of the petroleum products
terminals segment were estimated using our internal forecasts to project revenues and costs in the short term
and assumed incremental revenues and costs for periods beyond based on historical trends. The discounted
future cash Öows model assumed a 9% discount rate based on an expected 10% return on equity and a 7.5%
cost of debt and a 60/40 debt to equity ratio. Under the EBITDA multiple approach, we applied a multiple of
9 times the adjusted EBITDA of the petroleum products terminals segment to determine fair value. We deÑne
EBITDA as income before income taxes plus interest expense (net of interest income) and depreciation and
amortization expense. EBITDA multiples are used industry-wide in assessing values for business assets similar
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to those in our petroleum products terminals segment. The EBITDA of the petroleum products terminals
segment was adjusted to exclude a portion of the general and administrative expenses to take into
consideration expected synergies.
Under each of the three methodologies the fair value of the petroleum products terminals segment
exceeded the carrying value of the segment and therefore we did not recognize an impairment in 2002. In
reaching the conclusion above, more conÑdence was placed on the EBITDA multiple approach because
management determined this approach more closely represented the amount at which the petroleum products
terminals segment could be sold in a transaction between willing parties.
The critical factor in the EBITDA multiple approach is the multiple itself. When valuing potential
acquisitions or assets to be disposed of, we generally use multiples between 7 times EBITDA to 11 times
EBITDA, depending on factors such as the size of the transaction, the prospects for revenue growth or cost
reductions, the overall condition of the assets, the age of facility, the location of the facility, the reputation of
the seller and the intended use of the facility. For our goodwill impairment testing on October 1, 2002, we used
a multiple of 9 times EBITDA to determine the fair value of the petroleum products segment. If that multiple
were reduced to 8.5 times EBITDA, the EBITDA multiple approach would have suggested that we would
need to recognize an impairment of approximately $4.0 million. If the multiple were further decreased to 8.0
times EBITDA, the EBITDA multiple approach would have suggested that the full carrying value of goodwill
was impaired and we would have been required to recognize an impairment loss of $22.3 million.
The impact of an impairment under the latter scenario would have increased our leverage ratio beyond
the maximum allowed in our OLP term loan and revolving credit facility. Under this scenario, the lenders in
the OLP facility could choose to accelerate the repayment of the loan, which would materially negatively
impact our liquidity and cash Öows. In today's markets it is diÇcult to assess how lenders would react to such
a scenario; however, we currently do not believe that, under this latter scenario, the OLP lenders would choose
this course of action.
Based on our test of goodwill as of October 1, 2002, management concluded that there was no
impairment of goodwill required. Our management has discussed the development and selection of this critical
accounting estimate with the Audit Committee of our General Partner's Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee has reviewed our disclosure relating to it in this Management Discussion and Analysis section of
our Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Asset Impairments
We evaluate our property, plant and equipment (""PP&E'') for impairment whenever indicators of
impairment exist. Accounting standards require that if the sum of the future cash Öows expected to result from
a company's assets, undiscounted and without interest charges, is less than the reported value of the asset, an
asset impairment must be recognized in the Ñnancial statements. The amount of impairment to recognize is
calculated by subtracting the fair value from the reported value of the asset.
We operate in three segments: Williams Pipe Line system, petroleum products terminals and the
ammonia pipeline system. We reviewed our ammonia pipeline system for possible impairment as of
December 31, 2002, because there are only three customers transporting product on that system and
Farmland, the largest of the three, Ñled for protection under the United States Bankruptcy Codes in May
2002. (Please read Farmland discussion under ""Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations Ì Other Known Trends and Events)''.
We believe that the accounting estimate related to an impairment of our ammonia pipeline is a ""critical
accounting estimate'' because: (1) it is susceptible to change from period to period because it requires
management to make assumptions about future sales and cost of sales, in markets which have been highly
volatile in certain periods during the last few years, over the remaining depreciable life of the ammonia
pipeline system, which includes assets that are depreciated over a period of 30 years; (2) it is susceptible to
change because of the assumptions management made relative to the future volume of shipments on our
system; and (3) of the impact that recognizing an impairment on the ammonia assets would have on net
48

income. The ammonia pipeline system accounts for only approximately 3% of our total assets so the impact of
a PP&E impairment on the balance sheet, while signiÑcant, would not be considered material.
Management's assumptions about future ammonia shipments and future operating costs require signiÑcant judgment because: (1) Farmland's bankruptcy raises concerns over their ability to continue to ship
product on our line and it is diÇcult to assess the impact that a sale of Farmland's facilities to a third party
might have on our shipments or the impact that Farmland's bankruptcy might have on the two other
competing companies on our ammonia pipeline system; (2) the primary feedstock for producing ammonia is
natural gas. As the price of natural gas increases, production costs for anhydrous ammonia also increase. The
impact on our customers is that they generally experience a reduction in the demand for their product and
consequently ship fewer tons of ammonia on our pipeline system. Natural gas prices have Öuctuated widely
over the past several years and have increased to unprecedented high levels during the Ñrst quarter of 2003;
and (3) possible increases in the operating costs of the pipeline due to the loss of synergies due to Williams'
sale of the Mid-America Pipeline Company, a former aÇliate whose pipeline ran parallel to our ammonia
pipeline system in some areas.
Our estimates of future cash Öows evaluated four separate scenarios involving the potential impact of
Farmland's bankruptcy on our operations, along with an estimate of the probability of each scenario occurring.
The estimates cover a range from 25% of Farmland's future shipment volumes being lost to all of Farmland's
future shipment volumes being lost. We used our internal forecasts to project revenues and costs in the short
term and assumed incremental revenues and costs for periods beyond based on historical trends. Probabilities
were assigned to each scenario based on management's best estimates applying existing market conditions,
historical trends and knowledge of our customers, the anhydrous fertilizer markets and competitors. The
highest probability of occurrence was assigned to the scenario of losing 25% of Farmland's volumes and the
lowest probability of occurrence was assigned to the scenario of losing all of Farmland's volumes. Based on our
model, the sum of the expected future cash Öows, undiscounted and without interest charges, exceeded the
reported value and therefore we did not recognize an impairment in 2002.
As of December 31, 2002, our investment in the ammonia pipeline system's PP&E was $21.1 million.
Any increase in the estimated future cash Öows would have no impact on our recorded value of the ammonia
pipeline system. However, if we were to assign a 30% probability to the scenario that all of Farmland's volumes
are lost, 35% probability that 75% of Farmland's volumes are lost and a 35% probability that 50% of
Farmland's volumes would be lost, we would have been required to recognize an impairment loss of
approximately $13.9 million. Average tons shipped under this scenario would be 440 thousand tons per year
over most of the 30-year period evaluated, which management views as unlikely. If we further changed our
assumptions such that the increase in ammonia revenues beyond our short-term plan assumptions were
reduced from 5% growth to 4% growth per year, that impairment loss would increase to $21.1 million. The
impact of such an impairment would have increased our leverage ratio beyond the maximum allowed in our
term loan and revolving credit facility which would materially negatively impact our liquidity and cash Öows.
In this scenario, the lenders in the OLP facility could choose to accelerate the repayment of the loan. In
today's markets it is diÇcult to assess how lenders would react to such a scenario; however, management
currently does not believe that, under this scenario, the lenders in the OLP facility would take this course of
action.
Based on our assessment of the ammonia pipeline system at December 31, 2002, management concluded
that an impairment of the system was not required. Our management has discussed the development and
selection of this critical accounting estimate with the Audit Committee of our General Partner's Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed this disclosure.
Environmental Liabilities
We estimate the liabilities associated with environmental expenditures based on site-speciÑc project plans
for remediation, taking into account prior remediation experience. Experienced remediation project managers
evaluate each known case of environmental liability to determine what phases and associated costs can be
reasonably estimated and to ensure compliance with all applicable federal and/or state requirements. We
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believe the accounting estimate relative to environmental remediation costs to be a ""critical accounting
estimate'' because: (1) estimated expenditures, which will generally be made over the next 1 to 10 years, are
subject to price Öuctuations and could change materially, (2) unanticipated third party liabilities may arise,
and/or (3) changes in federal, state and local environmental regulations could also signiÑcantly increase the
amount of the liability. The estimate for environmental liabilities is a critical accounting estimate for all three
of our operating segments.
A deÑned process for project reviews is integrated into our System Integrity Plan. SpeciÑcally, our
remediation project managers meet once a year with accounting, operations, legal and other personnel to
evaluate, in detail, the known environmental liabilities associated with each of our operating units. The
purpose of the annual project review is to assess all aspects of each project, evaluating what will be required to
achieve regulatory compliance, estimating the costs associated with executing the regulatory phases that can
be reasonably estimated and estimating the timing for those expenditures. During the site-speciÑc evaluations,
all known information is utilized in conjunction with professional judgment and experience to determine the
appropriate path forward and assess liabilities. The general remediation process to achieve regulatory
compliance is: site investigation/delineation, site remediation, and long-term monitoring. Each of these phases
can, and often do, include unknown variables which complicate the task of evaluating the estimated costs to
complete. During 2002, the recommendations that came from the annual review process resulted in our
increasing our environmental liabilities by $10.7 million, which was largely attributable to our quantifying the
liability (remediation and long-term monitoring) at six state-mandated sites. Based on known liabilities, this
large accrual adjustment is not anticipated to be a recurring event.
Each quarter, we reevaluate our environmental estimates taking into account any new incidents that have
occurred since the last annual meeting of the remediation project managers, any changes in the site situation
and additional Ñndings and/or changes in federal or state regulations. The estimated environmental liability
accruals are adjusted as necessary.
Assuming a 20% increase in our estimated environmental liabilities and further assuming that 80% of
those additional liabilities would be indemniÑed by Williams, our expenses would increase by $1.0 million and
operating proÑt and net income would decrease by $1.0 million, which represented 1% of both our operating
proÑt and net income for 2002. Such a change would result in less than a 1% increase in our total liabilities and
decrease our equity by less than 1%. The impact of such an increase in environmental costs would likely not
have aÅected our liquidity and capital resources because, even with the increased costs, we would still be
within the covenants of our long-term debt agreements as discussed above under ""Liquidity and Capital
Resources Ì Liquidity'' and in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The impact on our results
is critically dependent on our reliance on Williams' performance related to these indemnities Ì See discussion
of AÇliate Receivables below.
Our management has discussed the development and selection of this critical accounting estimate with
the Audit Committee of our General Partner's Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed this
disclosure.
AÇliate Receivables
We have agreements with Williams related to the assets acquired at the time of our initial public oÅering
in February 2001 and to the Williams Pipe Line system acquired in April 2002. These agreements indemnify
us against environmental losses up to $15.0 million relating to the assets our aÇliates contributed to us at the
time of our initial public oÅering. In connection with the acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system,
Williams agreed to indemnify us for environmental losses up to $110.0 million, after a $2.0 million deductible.
Beyond the $110.0 million indemnity, Williams is responsible for one-half of all environmental losses up to
$140.0 million, for a total indemnity of $125.0 million. When a site-speciÑc environmental liability is
recognized, a determination is made as to whether or not the liability is indemniÑed by Williams. If so, an
aÇliate receivable for the amount of the indemniÑed liability is also recognized. We do not require payment
from Williams until actual remediation work is performed on the site. At that time, Williams is billed for the
remediation work and the cash received is used to reduce the aÇliate environmental receivable. As of
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December 31, 2002, we had recognized aÇliate receivables of $27.3 million, of which $22.9 million were
associated with environmental indemnities.
We believe that the accounting estimate related to aÇliate receivables is a ""critical accounting estimate''
because: (1) its carrying amount is subject to all of the same estimates as those used to develop the underlying
environmental liabilities (See Critical Accounting Estimates Ì Environmental Liabilities above); and
(2) given Williams' current Ñnancial status it requires our management's estimations involving our ability to
collect the receivable amount from Williams.
In preparing our Ñnancial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002, management's assumptions
were that we would be able to collect the full amount of these receivables from Williams. Should Williams be
unable to perform on its existing debt obligations, we may be unable to collect part, or all, of our aÇliate
accounts receivable.
If we change our estimate of the amount of the aÇliate receivable we believe we can ultimately collect
from Williams, we would be required to take a charge against income because we have not recorded any
allowance for doubtful accounts associated with this receivable. Assuming that none of the receivable is
collectable would require a charge against income of $27.3 million, which represents 28% of our net income
for the year. The impact of such an impairment would have increased our leverage ratio beyond the maximum
allowed in our credit facility which would materially negatively impact our liquidity and cash Öows. In this
scenario, the lenders in the OLP facility could choose to accelerate the repayment of the loan. In today's
markets it is diÇcult to assess how lenders would react to such a scenario; however, management currently
does not believe that, even under this scenario, the lenders in the OLP facility would take that course of
action.
Our management has discussed the development and selection of this critical accounting estimate with
the Audit Committee of our General Partner's Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed this
disclosure.
New Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued SFAS No. 148,
""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123''. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation'', to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure
requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim Ñnancial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the eÅect of the
method used on reported results. This Statement improves the prominence and clarity of the pro forma
disclosures required by Statement 123 by prescribing a speciÑc tabular format and by requiring disclosure in
the ""Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies'' or its equivalent. The standard is eÅective for Ñscal periods
ending after December 15, 2002. We account for stock-based compensation under provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, hence, adoption of this standard will have no impact on our operations or
Ñnancial position. We have adopted the additional disclosure requirements of this standard in 2002.
In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities''. This Statement addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nulliÑes Emerging Issues Task Force (""EITF'') Issue No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring)''. The provisions of this Statement are eÅective for exit or disposal activities that
are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged. We adopted this standard in January
2003, and it did not have a material impact on our results of operations or Ñnancial position.
In the second quarter of 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,
44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement 13 and Technical Corrections''. The rescission of SFAS No. 4
""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,'' and SFAS No. 64, ""Extinguishment of Debt
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Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements,'' requires that gains or losses from extinguishment of debt only
be classiÑed as extraordinary items in the event they meet the criteria in Accounting Principles Board Opinion
(""APB'') No. 30, ""Reporting the Results of Operations Ì Reporting the EÅects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions''. SFAS No. 44,
""Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers,'' established accounting requirements for the eÅects of
transition to the Motor Carriers Act of 1980 and is no longer required now that the transitions have been
completed. Finally, the amendments to SFAS No. 13 ""Accounting for Leases'' are eÅective for transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002. All other provisions of this Statement will be eÅective for Ñnancial statements
issued on or after May 15, 2002. We adopted this standard in January 2003, and it did not have a material
impact on our results of operations or Ñnancial position. However, in subsequent reporting periods, any gains
and losses from debt extinguishments will not be accounted for as extraordinary items.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of LongLived Assets''. This Statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of'' and amends APB No. 30. The Statement retains the
basic framework of SFAS No. 121, resolves certain implementation issues of SFAS No. 121, extends
applicability to discontinued operations and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include a
component of an entity. The Statement was to be applied prospectively and was eÅective for Ñnancial
statements issued for Ñscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. There was no initial impact on our
results of operations or Ñnancial position upon adoption of this standard.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143 ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,'' which is
eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Statement requires legal obligations associated
with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are
incurred. Upon initial recognition of a liability, that cost should be capitalized as a part of the related longlived asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. We adopted the new rules on asset
retirement obligations on January 1, 2003. Application of the new rules did not have a material impact on our
results of operations or Ñnancial position as retirement obligations were not recorded for assets for which the
remaining life is not currently determinable, including pipeline transmission and terminals assets.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, ""Business Combinations'', and SFAS No. 142,
""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets''. SFAS No. 141 establishes accounting and reporting standards for
business combinations and requires all business combinations to be accounted for by the purchase method.
The Statement is eÅective for all business combinations for which the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001 or
later. SFAS No. 142 addresses accounting and reporting standards for goodwill and other intangible assets.
Under this Statement, goodwill and intangible assets with indeÑnite useful lives will no longer be amortized
but will be tested annually for impairment. The Statement became eÅective for all Ñscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. We applied the new rules on accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
beginning January 1, 2002. Based on the amount of goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2001, application of
the non-amortization provision of the Statement resulted in a decrease to amortization expense in 2002 of
approximately $0.8 million.
Related Party Transactions
We have entered into a number of commercial agreements with aÇliates, including Williams Energy
Marketing & Trading, Williams Midstream Marketing & Risk Management, Williams ReÑning & Marketing,
Williams Ethanol Services, Inc. and Mid-America Pipeline Company. Each of these entities was a subsidiary
of Williams and an aÇliate of ours and of our General Partner during the periods presented. The principal
business of Williams Energy Marketing & Trading is the marketing and trading of energy commodities
including natural gas, natural gas liquids, power, crude oil and reÑned petroleum products. Williams
ReÑning & Marketing primarily owned and operated a reÑnery in Memphis, Tennessee and engaged in the
purchase and sale of crude and reÑned petroleum products (Please read ""Petroleum Products Terminals Ì
Inland Terminals'' for a discussion of the sale of the Williams ReÑning & Marketing's reÑnery in Memphis,
Tennessee). Williams Midstream Marketing & Risk Management manages sales, marketing and risk
management for Williams' midstream business. Williams Ethanol Services operates two ethanol plants and an
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ethanol distribution system and also engages in the purchase and sale of ethanol. Mid-America Pipeline is an
interstate common carrier pipeline company engaged in the transportation and distribution of natural gas
liquids. Williams sold Mid-America Pipeline in August 2002. During 2003 Williams ReÑning & Marketing
sold its reÑnery in Memphis, Tennessee and its travel center operations. Also, Williams has announced that it
has an agreement to sell Williams Ethanol Services, which it expects to complete in 2003.
The agreements with our aÇliates vary depending upon location and the types of services provided.
Approximately $16.6 million and $15.9 million of our revenues in 2002 and 2001, respectively, were generated
from agreements with aÇliates at our petroleum products terminals while approximately $42.0 million and
$78.4 million of revenue in 2002 and 2001, respectively, was generated from agreements with aÇliates on the
Williams Pipe Line system. In addition, approximately $22.3 million and $81.0 million of expenses were
incurred in 2002 and 2001, respectively, from product purchases with our aÇliates on the Williams Pipe Line
system. A summary of the signiÑcant agreements follows:
The Williams Pipe Line System
TariÅ-based shipments. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading, Williams ReÑning & Marketing and
Williams Midstream Marketing & Risk Management ship reÑned petroleum products on our pipeline system.
We charge rates for the shipments based upon tariÅs Ñled with the FERC or the applicable state agency that
are the same rates we charge to non-aÇliated entities. These tariÅs serve as individual contractual agreements
that commit our aÇliate to pay for volume transported on our system as long as we abide by the terms of the
tariÅ. As a result, contracts generally do not exist that obligate our aÇliates to ship volume or make payments
to us in the future. The principal exceptions to this are: (i) our throughput and deÑciency agreement with
Williams Energy Marketing and Trading for product movements through a third-party capacity lease and
(ii) for propane movements from El Dorado, Kansas to Carthage, Missouri. The throughput and deÑciency
agreement for the propane movements from El Dorado, Kansas to Carthage, Missouri expires on March 31,
2003. The total revenues associated with tariÅ-based shipments were approximately $6.6 million and
$5.0 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
System lease storage agreements. We have entered into several agreements with Williams Energy
Marketing & Trading and Williams ReÑning & Marketing for the access and utilization of storage along the
Williams Pipe Line system. We also have an agreement with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading, which
expires on March 31, 2003, for the lease of our Carthage, Missouri cavern. These agreements provide for a
Ñxed monthly storage capacity on the pipeline system at a Ñxed rate. The rates charged to our aÇliates are
consistent with those charged to non-aÇliated entities. Services provided under these agreements include the
receipt of reÑned petroleum products into our system at any origin point on our system. Our aÇliates remain
responsible for tariÅ charges related to the actual shipment of product and delivery through our terminals.
These contracts have one-year terms and, as they expire, are usually renewed for a one-year term. These
agreements generated approximately $2.6 million and $2.2 million of revenue in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Ethanol storage and throughput agreements. We have entered into several agreements with Williams
Ethanol Services for the access and utilization of storage along the Williams Pipe Line system. These
agreements provide for a Ñxed monthly ethanol storage capacity at our terminals at a Ñxed storage rate. The
rates charged to our aÇliates are consistent with those charged to non-aÇliated entities. In addition, we charge
additional fees ranging from $0.80 per barrel to over $1.25 per barrel for blending services and handling fees at
certain terminals. A majority of these contracts have a term ranging from less than one year and up to two
years. These agreements generated approximately $4.5 million and $3.2 million of revenue in 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
Facility rental agreement. We have entered into an agreement to lease to Mid-America Pipeline
approximately 292 miles of pipeline, three active pump stations and a propane storage and loading facility in
Canton, South Dakota. Mid-America Pipeline is responsible for utilities and other operating costs. The
agreement, entered into in 1998, was renewed yearly until 2002. The rate charged for this lease has not
changed from year to year. This agreement generated approximately $0.3 million of revenue in 2001 and
approximately $0.2 million of revenue in 2002 during that portion of the year that Mid-America Pipeline was
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still an aÇliate of ours. In July 2002, Mid-America Pipeline was sold by Williams; consequently, any revenues
associated with this agreement since that time has been classiÑed as third-party revenues.
System services agreements. We have entered into agreements with Williams Energy Marketing &
Trading, Williams ReÑning & Marketing and Williams Ethanol Services providing them with a non-exclusive
and non-transferable sublicense to use the ATLAS 2000 software system. The system can be utilized to access
data for monitoring shipment and inventory status and performing other functions related to shipment
activities. The agreements establish Ñxed rates at which we provide certain services. These agreements
generated approximately $0.5 million and $0.3 million of revenue in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Over and short settlement and product purchases and sales agreements. During part of 2002, we had
agreements with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading and Williams Midstream Marketing & Risk
Management to buy natural gas liquids blendstocks and sell the reÑned petroleum products related to our
blending program. We also had agreements with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading to purchase from or
sell to us reÑned petroleum products needed to maintain inventory balances on our pipeline system (which we
refer to as over and short settlements). These transactions were subject to master purchase and sale
agreements for reÑned petroleum products or a master purchase agreement for natural gas liquids. Each
transaction with our aÇliate was recorded on a conÑrmation statement, which was subject to the general terms
outlined in the master agreements. These conÑrmation statements determined the volume, price and timing
associated with the product purchases and sales. The revenue associated with these agreements was
approximately $25.1 million and $66.4 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, while the expenses incurred to
purchase products from our aÇliates were approximately $22.3 million and $81.0 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Additional details related to the activities that produce the purchase and sale opportunities are as
follows:
‚ Blending. Historically, Williams Pipe Line Company purchased natural gas liquids from Williams
Energy Marketing & Trading at cost plus a Ñxed fee of $0.105 per barrel. Williams Energy
Marketing & Trading purchased at prevailing market prices a majority of the Ñnished gasoline that was
produced from blending. In connection with the acquisition of the Williams Pipe Line system in April
2002, we and Williams Energy Services agreed that the Williams Pipe Line system would no longer
take title to the natural gas liquids it blends or the resulting product. We now perform these blending
services for Williams Energy Services under a separate agreement (see below).
‚ Over and short settlement. Generally, the physical volumes on our system will not match the balances
recorded by our customers. These diÅerences are either product quality diÅerences or absolute volume
diÅerences. Quality diÅerences usually result from the commingling of product on the pipeline during
times when we change the product being shipped on our pipeline. When these diÅerences occur, we
purchase and sell product at prevailing market prices to manage the imbalances.
Butane blending agreement. We perform blending services on the Williams Pipe Line System for
Williams Energy Services under a ten-year agreement which provides for an annual fee of approximately
$4.2 million, of which $0.6 million is attributable to blending services provided at one of our inland petroleum
products terminals not connected to the Williams Pipe Line system. We do not take title to any of the product
used in or resulting from the blending process. This agreement, entered into at the time of our acquisition of
Williams Pipe Line in April 2002, generated approximately $2.8 million in 2002, of which $2.3 million was for
services performed on the Williams Pipe Line system and $0.5 million was for services performed at one of our
inland petroleum products terminals.
Longhorn Partners Pipeline Construction Revenue Agreement. Prior to its acquisition by us in April of
2002, Williams Pipe Line Company had agreements with Longhorn Partners Pipeline to provide engineering,
design, construction, start-up and pipeline operating services. Under these agreements, Williams Pipe Line
Company was reimbursed for costs incurred and received contractor and operating fees. The revenue
associated with these agreements was approximately $0.2 million and $1.0 million in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. In connection with our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line Company, these agreements were
transferred to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Williams and consequently we no longer provide these services and
receive these fees.
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Natural gas and fuel oil supply agreements. During part of 2002, we had agreements with Williams
Energy Marketing & Trading and Williams ReÑning & Marketing for the supply of natural gas and fuel oil
used at pump stations throughout the Williams Pipe Line system. We purchased fuel oil from Williams
ReÑning & Marketing at the prevailing market price. These purchases were identiÑed on conÑrmation
statements that were subject to the master reÑned products purchase and sale agreements used in the blending
and over and short program. We purchased natural gas from Williams Energy Marketing & Trading either
based on indexed prices or at Ñxed prices. In 2002, we elected to purchase a majority of our natural gas at Ñxed
prices, which required that we commit to a deÑnite volume of natural gas purchases. The natural gas purchase
agreement for Ñxed price natural gas expired in August 2002. These agreements generated operating expenses
of $2.6 million and $4.2 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Petroleum Products Terminals
Inland terminal use and access agreements. We have entered into several agreements with Williams
ReÑning & Marketing for the access and utilization of our inland terminals. The services provided under these
agreements include the receipt and delivery of reÑned petroleum products via connecting common carrier
pipelines. Additional services include product handling, storage, inventory management, and additive injection. These agreements establish a market-based fee at which these services are provided at rates consistent
with those charged to non-aÇliated entities. A majority of these contracts have a term of one year and are
renewed on an annual basis. The revenue associated with these agreements was approximately $4.0 million
and $6.5 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The sale of Williams ReÑning & Marketing's reÑnery in
Memphis, Tennessee and their travel center operations during the Ñrst quarter of 2003, will result in
signiÑcantly lower revenues from Williams ReÑning & Marketing during 2003.
Products terminals and storage agreement for the Galena Park, Texas marine terminal facility. We
entered into an agreement with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading to provide approximately 2.8 million
barrels of storage capacity and to provide other ancillary services at our Galena Park, Texas marine terminal
facility. Because the storage fees are Ñxed and the storage capacity is already committed, revenues Öuctuate to
the extent other ancillary services are utilized and/or a tank is out of service as part of our System Integrity
Program. The primary services provided include receipt and delivery of reÑned petroleum products and
blendstocks via marine vessel, pipeline, tank truck or other transfers from customers within the terminal
facility. The prices charged under this agreement are consistent with those charged to non-aÇliated entities.
The agreement, which generated approximately $7.6 million and $7.4 million of revenue in 2002 and 2001,
respectively, expires on September 30, 2004. We have negotiated the termination of this agreement with
Williams Energy Marketing & Trading, eÅective in March 2003. We expect to receive cash of approximately
$3.0 million from Williams Energy Marketing & Trading to terminate this agreement.
Products terminalling agreement for the Gibson, Louisiana marine terminal facility. We entered into an
agreement to provide Williams Energy Marketing & Trading capacity utilization rights to substantially all of
the capacity of the Gibson, Louisiana facility for nine years starting November 1, 2001. This agreement allows
for the delivery of crude oil and condensate to our facility by barge, truck and pipeline where we then provide
storage, blending and throughput services. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading has committed to utilize
substantially all of the capacity at our facility at a Ñxed rate which is consistent with rates charged by other
service providers for similar services at other locations. As a result, the revenues we receive should not
signiÑcantly vary as long as the services we provide do not fall below certain performance standards. This
contract generated approximately $4.1 million of revenue in 2002 and approximately $0.6 million of revenue
for the two months we owned the facility in 2001.
Other aÇliate agreements
In addition to the expenses incurred under the commercial agreements with our aÇliates discussed above,
we also incur aÇliate expenses for general and administrative, operating and maintenance services under the
terms of our partnership agreement and our omnibus agreement, which governs the relationship between us,
our general partner and Williams.
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Risks Related to our Business
We may not be able to generate suÇcient cash from operations to allow us to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution following establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses,
including payments to our General Partner.
The amount of cash we can distribute on our common units principally depends upon the cash we
generate from our operations. Because the cash we generate from operations will Öuctuate from quarter to
quarter, we may not be able to pay the minimum quarterly distribution for each quarter. Our ability to pay the
minimum quarterly distribution each quarter depends primarily on cash Öow, including cash Öow from
Ñnancial reserves and working capital borrowings, and not solely on proÑtability, which is aÅected by non-cash
items. As a result, we may make cash distributions during periods when we record losses and may not make
cash distributions during periods when we record net income.
Potential future acquisitions and expansions, if any, may aÅect our business by substantially increasing
the level of our indebtedness and contingent liabilities and increasing our risk of being unable to
eÅectively integrate these new operations.
From time to time, we evaluate and acquire assets and businesses that we believe complement our
existing assets and businesses. Acquisitions may require substantial capital or the incurrence of substantial
indebtedness. If we consummate any future acquisitions, our capitalization and results of operations may
change signiÑcantly, and you will not have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, Ñnancial and other
relevant information that we will consider in determining the application of these funds and other resources.
Acquisitions and business expansions involve numerous risks, including diÇculties in the assimilation of
the assets and operations of the acquired businesses, ineÇciencies and diÇculties that arise because of
unfamiliarity with new assets and the businesses associated with them and new geographic areas and the
diversion of management's attention from other business concerns. Further, unexpected costs and challenges
may arise whenever businesses with diÅerent operations or management are combined, and we may
experience unanticipated delays in realizing the beneÑts of an acquisition. Following an acquisition, we may
discover previously unknown liabilities associated with the acquired business for which we have no recourse
under applicable indemniÑcation provisions.
Our Ñnancial results depend on the demand for the reÑned petroleum products that we transport, store
and distribute.
Any sustained decrease in demand for reÑned petroleum products in the markets served by our pipeline
and terminals could result in a signiÑcant reduction in the volume of products that we transport in our pipeline,
store at our marine terminal facilities and distribute through our inland terminals, and thereby reduce our cash
Öow and our ability to pay cash distributions. Factors that could lead to a decrease in market demand include:
‚ an increase in the market price of crude oil that leads to higher reÑned product prices, which may
reduce demand for gasoline and other petroleum products. Market prices for reÑned petroleum
products are subject to wide Öuctuation in response to changes in global and regional supply over which
we have no control;
‚ a recession or other adverse economic condition that results in lower spending by consumers and
businesses on transportation fuels such as gasoline, jet fuel and diesel;
‚ higher fuel taxes or other governmental or regulatory actions that increase the cost of gasoline;
‚ an increase in fuel economy, whether as a result of a shift by consumers to more fuel-eÇcient vehicles
or technological advances by manufacturers; and
‚ the increased use of alternative fuel sources, such as fuel cells and solar, electric and battery-powered
engines. Several state and federal initiatives mandate this increased use.
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When prices for the future delivery of petroleum products that we transport through our pipeline system
or store in our marine terminals fall below current prices, customers are less likely to store these
products, thereby reducing our storage revenues.
This market condition is commonly referred to as ""backwardation.'' When the petroleum product market
is in backwardation, the demand for storage capacity at our facilities may decrease. If the market becomes
strongly backwardated for an extended period of time, it may aÅect our ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations
and pay cash distributions.
We depend on petroleum products pipelines owned and operated by others to supply our terminals.
Most of our inland and marine terminal facilities depend on connections with petroleum product pipelines
owned and operated by third parties. Reduced throughput on these pipelines because of testing, line repair,
damage to pipelines, reduced operating pressures or other causes could result in our being unable to deliver
products to our customers from our terminals or receive products for storage and could adversely aÅect our
ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and pay cash distributions.
Collectively, our aÇliates Williams Energy Marketing & Trading and Williams ReÑning & Marketing
have historically been our largest customer, and any reduction in their use of our services could reduce
the amount of cash we generate.
For the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, our aÇliates Williams Energy Marketing & Trading
and Williams ReÑning & Marketing collectively accounted for approximately 11% and 18%, respectively, of
our revenues. Williams has begun the process of reducing its marketing and trading activities. As a result, we
have experienced a reduction of revenues related to their activities. We are currently in the process of
replacing this aÇliate revenue with third party revenue. If we are unable to do so, it could impact our ability to
meet our Ñnancial obligations and pay cash distributions.
Terrorist attacks aimed at our facilities could adversely aÅect our business.
On September 11, 2001, the United States was the target of terrorist attacks of unprecedented scale.
Since the September 11 attacks, the U.S. government has issued warnings that energy assets, speciÑcally our
nation's pipeline infrastructure, may be the future target of terrorist organizations. These developments have
subjected our operations to increased risks. Any future terrorist attack on our facilities, those of our customers
and, in some cases, those of other pipelines, could have a material adverse eÅect on our business.
Our business involves many hazards and operational risks, some of which may not be covered by
insurance.
Our operations are subject to many hazards inherent in the transportation of reÑned petroleum products
and ammonia, including ruptures, leaks and Ñres. These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal
injury or loss of life, severe damage to and destruction of property and equipment and pollution or other
environmental damage and may result in curtailment or suspension of our related operations. We are not fully
insured against all risks incident to our business. In addition, as a result of market conditions, premiums for
our insurance policies have increased substantially and could escalate further. In some instances, insurance
could become unavailable or available only for reduced amounts of coverage. For example, insurance carriers
are now requiring broad exclusions for losses due to war risk and terrorist and sabotage acts. If a signiÑcant
accident or event occurs that is not fully insured, it could adversely aÅect our Ñnancial position or results of
operations.
Rate regulation or a successful challenge to the rates we charge on the Williams Pipe Line system may
reduce the amount of cash we generate.
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or the FERC, regulates the tariÅ rates for the Williams
Pipe Line system. Shippers may protest the pipeline system's tariÅs, and the FERC may investigate the
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lawfulness of new or changed tariÅ rates and order refunds of amounts collected under rates ultimately found
to be unlawful. The FERC may also investigate tariÅ rates that have become Ñnal and eÅective.
The FERC's ratemaking methodologies may limit our ability to set rates based on our true costs or may
delay the use of rates that reÖect increased costs. The FERC's primary ratemaking methodology is price
indexing. We use this methodology to establish our rates in approximately one-third of our interstate markets.
The indexing method allows a pipeline to increase its rates by a percentage equal to the change in the producer
price index, or PPI. Please read ""Narrative Description of Business Ì TariÅ Regulation'' for further
discussion of tariÅ rates and how they have been impacted by the PPI. If the PPI rises by less than 1% or falls,
we could be required to reduce our rates that are based on the FERC's price indexing methodology if they
exceed the new maximum allowable rate. In addition, changes in the PPI might not be large enough to fully
reÖect actual increases in the costs associated with the pipeline.
In recent decisions involving unrelated pipeline limited partnerships, the FERC has ruled that these
partnerships may not claim an income tax allowance for income attributable to non-corporate limited partners.
A shipper could rely on these decisions to challenge our indexed rates and claim that, because we now own the
Williams Pipe Line system, the Williams Pipe Line system's income tax allowance should be reduced. If the
FERC were to disallow all or part of our income tax allowance, it may be more diÇcult to justify our rates. If a
challenge were brought and the FERC found that some of the indexed rates exceed levels justiÑed by the cost
of service, the FERC would order a reduction in the indexed rates and could require reparations for a period of
up to two years prior to the Ñling of a complaint. Any reduction in the indexed rates or payment of reparations
could have a material adverse eÅect on our operations and reduce the amount of cash we generate.
Mergers among our customers and competitors could result in lower volumes being shipped on our
pipelines and/or products stored in our terminals, thereby reducing the amount of cash we generate.
Mergers between existing customers could provide strong economic incentives for the combined entities
to utilize their existing systems instead of ours in those markets where the systems compete. As a result, we
could lose some or all of the volumes and associated revenues from these customers and we could experience
diÇculty in replacing those lost volumes and revenues. Because most of our operating costs are Ñxed, a
reduction in volumes would result not only in a reduction of revenues, but also a decline in net income and
cash Öow of a similar magnitude, which would reduce our ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and pay
cash distributions.
The closure of mid-continent reÑneries that supply the Williams Pipe Line system could result in
disruptions or reductions in the volumes transported on the Williams Pipe Line system and the amount
of cash we generate.
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency recently adopted requirements that require reÑneries to
install equipment to lower the sulfur content of gasoline and some diesel fuel they produce. The requirements
relating to gasoline will take eÅect and be implemented in 2004, and the requirements relating to diesel fuel
will take eÅect in 2006 and be implemented through 2010. If reÑnery owners that use the Williams Pipe Line
system determine that compliance with these new requirements is too costly, they may close some of these
reÑneries, which could reduce the volumes transported on the Williams Pipe Line system and the amount of
cash we generate.
Our business is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations that govern the environmental
and operational safety aspects of its operations.
Each of our operating segments are subject to the risk of incurring substantial costs and liabilities under
environmental and safety laws. These costs and liabilities arise under increasingly strict environmental and
safety laws, including regulations and governmental enforcement policies, and as a result of claims for
damages to property or persons arising from our operations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may result in assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, imposition of cleanup and site
restoration costs and liens and, to a lesser extent, issuance of injunctions to limit or cease operations. If we
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were unable to recover these costs through increased revenues, our ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and
pay cash distributions could be adversely aÅected.
The terminal and pipeline facilities that comprise the Williams Pipe Line system have been used for
many years to transport, distribute or store petroleum products. Over time, operations by us, our predecessors
or third parties may have resulted in the disposal or release of hydrocarbons or solid wastes at or from these
terminal properties and along such pipeline rights-of-way. In addition, some of our terminals and pipelines are
located on or near current or former reÑning and terminal sites, and there is a risk that contamination is
present on those sites. We may be held jointly and severally liable under a number of these environmental laws
and regulations for such disposal and releases of hydrocarbons or solid wastes or the existence of contamination, even in circumstances where such activities or conditions were caused by third parties not under our
control or were otherwise lawful at the time that they occurred.
In addition, we own a number of properties that have been used for many years to distribute or store
petroleum products by third parties not under our control. In some cases, owners, tenants or users of these
properties have disposed of or released hydrocarbons or solid wastes on or under these properties. In addition,
some of our terminals are located on or near current or former reÑning and terminal operations, and there is a
risk that contamination is present on these sites. The transportation of ammonia by our pipeline is hazardous
and may result in environmental damage, including accidental releases that may cause death or injuries to
humans and farm animals and damage to crops.
Competition with respect to our operating segments could ultimately lead to lower levels of proÑts and
reduce the amount of cash we generate.
We face competition from other pipelines and terminals in the same markets as the Williams Pipe Line
system, as well as from other means of transporting, storing and distributing petroleum products. For a
description of the competitive factors facing the Williams Pipe Line system, please read ""Business Ì
Williams Pipe Line System Ì Competition.'' In addition, our marine and inland terminals face competition
from large, generally well-Ñnanced companies that own many terminals, as well as from small companies. Our
marine and inland terminals also encounter competition from integrated reÑning and marketing companies
that own their own terminal facilities. Our customers demand delivery of products on tight time schedules and
in a number of geographic markets. If our quality of service declines or we cannot meet the demands of our
customers, they may use our competitors. We compete primarily with rail carriers for the transportation of
ammonia. If our customers elect to transport ammonia by rail rather than pipeline, we may realize lower
revenues and cash Öows and our ability to pay cash distributions may be adversely aÅected. Our ammonia
pipeline also competes with another ammonia pipeline in Iowa and Nebraska.
Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership for federal income tax purposes, as well as our
not being subject to entity-level taxation by states. If the IRS treats us as a corporation or we become
subject to entity-level taxation for state tax purposes, it would reduce the amount of cash we generate.
The after-tax economic beneÑt of an investment in the common units depends largely on our being
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. If we were classiÑed as a corporation for federal
income tax purposes, we would pay federal income tax on our income at the corporate rate. Some or all of the
distributions made to unitholders would be treated as dividend incomes, and no income, gains, losses or
deductions would Öow through to unitholders. Treatment of us as a corporation would cause a material
reduction in the anticipated cash Öow, which would reduce our ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and
pay cash distributions. Moreover, treatment of us as a corporation would materially and adversely aÅect our
ability to make payments on our debt securities.
In addition, because of widespread state budget deÑcits, several states are evaluating ways to subject
partnerships to entity-level taxation through the imposition of state income, franchise or other forms of
taxation. If any state were to impose a tax upon us as an entity, the cash available to pay distributions would be
reduced. The partnership agreement provides that, if a law is enacted or existing law is modiÑed or interpreted
in a manner that subjects us to taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects us to entity-level taxation for
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federal, state or local income tax purposes, then the minimum quarterly distribution and the target distribution
levels will be decreased to reÖect that impact on us.
Our ammonia pipeline system is dependent on three customers.
Three customers ship all of the ammonia on our pipeline and utilize the six terminals that we own and
operate on the pipeline. We have contracts with Farmland Industries, Inc., Agrium U.S. Inc. and Terra
Nitrogen, L.P. through June 2005 that obligate them to ship-or-pay for speciÑed minimum quantities of
ammonia. Farmland Industries, Inc., the largest of our three customers, Ñled for bankruptcy protection in May
2002, has exercised its right to terminate its contract with us eÅective December 23, 2003 (Please read
""Business Ì Ammonia Pipeline System Ì Farmland'' and Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for further discussions of Farmland). Another of these customers has a credit rating below investment grade.
The loss of any one of these three customers or their failure or inability to pay us could adversely aÅect our
ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and pay cash distributions.
High natural gas prices can increase ammonia production costs and reduce the amount of ammonia
transported through our ammonia pipeline system.
The proÑtability of our customers that produce ammonia partially depends on the price of natural gas,
which is the principal raw material used in the production of ammonia. Natural gas prices increased late in the
fourth quarter of 2002 and have reached unprecedented levels in the Ñrst quarter of 2003. An extended period
of high natural gas prices may cause our customers to produce and ship lower volumes of ammonia, which
could adversely aÅect our ability to meet our Ñnancial obligations and pay cash distributions.
Williams has announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner. A sale of our General
Partner could result in the acceleration of payment of our debt obligations. In addition, it could result in
the termination of our Omnibus Agreement with Williams and our General Partner or the termination of
Williams' obligation to provide general and administrative services for a Ñxed charge, which could result
in higher general and administrative expenses, increased maintenance capital expenditures and increased
environmental expenditures, which could limit our ability to pay cash distributions.
On February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner and
its common, Class B and subordinated units. A sale of the General Partner could result in the holders of our
debt obligations accelerating the payments due to them under those agreements. Also, a change of control in
the General Partner may result in the termination of the general and administrative expense limitation under
the Omnibus Agreement, which could result in higher general and administrative costs to us. The termination
of the Omnibus Agreement could also terminate the agreements we have with Williams to reimburse us for
maintenance capital costs associated with Williams Pipe Line maintenance capital over the next two years,
which could increase our maintenance capital costs which, in turn, could limit our ability to pay cash
distributions. Also, the environmental indemnities associated with the assets acquired at the time of our initial
public oÅering could be terminated.
Williams provides a variety of services for us. A sale of Williams' interests in our General Partner would
require us to separate from Williams, which in turn, would require us to obtain these services from
independent sources, which could increase our costs and limit our ability to pay cash distributions.
Williams provides a number of services to us that are billed to the Partnership as general and
administrative expense. These costs include: accounting, building administration, human resources, information technology, legal and security, among others. In addition, Williams provides us several key software
applications critical to our business including our general ledger, SCADA and accounts payable systems, as
well as our desktop and networking systems. Separating ourselves from Williams will entail acquiring similar
services and systems, which could increase our costs and limit our ability to pay cash distributions.
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Our relationship with Williams subjects us to potential risks that are beyond our control.
Due to our relationship with Williams, adverse developments or announcements concerning Williams,
including bankruptcy proceedings, could adversely aÅect our Ñnancial condition, even if we have not suÅered
any similar development. In addition, further downgrades by one or more credit rating agencies of the
outstanding indebtedness of Williams could increase our borrowing costs or generally impede our access to
capital markets. We also have signiÑcant right-of-way and environmental indemnities from Williams. Further
adverse developments could result in Williams being unable to perform on its existing obligations, including
their right-of-way and environmental indemnities with us, which could adversely aÅect our ability to Ñnance
acquisitions, reÑnance existing indebtedness and pay cash distributions.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We currently do not engage in interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate or commodity price-hedging
transactions.
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. The principal
market risk to which we are exposed is interest rate risk. Debt we incur under our credit facility and our
Floating Rate Series A Senior Secured notes bear variable interest based on the Eurodollar rate. If the
LIBOR changed by 0.125%, our annual interest obligations associated with the $90.0 million of outstanding
borrowings under the term loan and revolving credit facility at December 31, 2002, and the $178.0 million of
outstanding borrowings under the Floating Rate Series A Senior Secured Notes would change by approximately $0.3 million. Unless interest rates change signiÑcantly in the future, our exposure to interest rate
market risk is minimal.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The Board of Directors of WEG GP LLC
General Partner of Williams Energy Partners L.P.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Williams Energy Partners L.P. as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash Öows and partners'
capital for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These Ñnancial statements are the
responsibility of the Partnership's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated Ñnancial position of Williams Energy Partners L.P. at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Tulsa, Oklahoma
March 3, 2003
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WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000
(In thousands)

Transportation and terminals revenues:
Third partyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product sales revenues:
Third partyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate construction and management fee revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Costs and expenses:
Operating ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental indemniÑed by Williams ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate construction expensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate general and administrativeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating proÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest expense:
AÇliate interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt placement fee amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other (income) expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Income before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$330,545
33,195

$313,683
25,729

$294,617
23,504

45,339
25,188
210
434,477

40,646
67,523
1,018
448,599

15,849
91,024
1,852
426,846

152,832
16,814
(14,500)
63,982
Ì
35,096
43,182
297,406
137,071

153,057
11,559
(3,736)
95,268
Ì
35,767
47,365
339,280
109,319

132,809
12,090
Ì
94,141
1,025
31,746
51,206
323,017
103,829

407
22,500
(1,149)
9,950
(2,112)
107,475
8,322
$ 99,153

9,770
4,836
(2,493)
253
(431)
97,384
29,512
$ 67,872

27,009
Ì
(1,680)
Ì
(816)
79,316
30,414
$ 48,902

Allocation of net income:
Portion applicable to period after February 9, 2001 (April 11, 2002
as it relates to the operations of Williams Pipe Line):
Limited partners' interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
General partner's interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Portion applicable to partners' interests ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Portion applicable to non-partnership interests ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 80,713
4,402
85,115
14,038
$ 99,153

$ 21,217
226
21,443
46,429
$ 67,872

Basic net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

$

Weighted average number of limited partner units outstanding used for
basic net income per unit calculation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Weighted average number of limited partner units outstanding used for
diluted net income per unit calculation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
See accompanying notes.
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3.68
21,911

$

3.67
21,968

1.87
11,359

$

1.87
11,370

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,
2002
2001
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $457 and $510 at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other accounts receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate accounts receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inventory ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes Ì aÇliateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Property, plant and equipment, at cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Less: accumulated depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Goodwill (less amortization of $141 and $145 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other intangibles (less amortization of $297 and $310 at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term aÇliate receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other noncurrent assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash overdraftsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate income taxes payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued aÇliate payroll and beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued taxes other than incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued interest payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued environmental liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued casualty losses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquisition payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total current liabilitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term debtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term aÇliate note payableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Long-term aÇliate payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other deferred liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes Ì aÇliateÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interestÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Commitments and contingencies
Partners' capital:
Common unitholders (13,680 units and 5,680 units outstanding at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Subordinated unitholders (5,680 units outstanding at both December 31, 2002 and 2001)
Class B units (7,831 units outstanding at December 31, 2002) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
General partnerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total partners' capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total liabilities and partners' capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

See accompanying notes.
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$

75,151

$

13,837

18,038
6,619
15,608
5,224
Ì
4,584
125,224
1,334,527
401,396
933,131

16,828
11,598
8,228
21,057
1,690
1,828
75,066
1,338,393
374,653
963,740

22,295

22,282

2,432
11,656
9,268
12,355
$1,116,361

2,639
21,296
8,809
10,727
$1,104,559

$

$

16,967
11,510
1,967
Ì
4,921
13,697
67
10,359
11,550
2,925
655
3,278
Ì
77,896
570,000
Ì
4,293
488
Ì
11,927
Ì

12,636
10,157
Ì
8,544
4,606
9,948
277
8,650
5,103
2,711
927
4,865
8,853
77,277
139,500
138,172
1,262
1,127
147,029
8,260
2,250

399,837
101,148
131,194
121,237
313,651
Ì
(391,954)
367,297
(971)
Ì
451,757
589,682
$1,116,361
$1,104,559

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
2002

Operating Activities:
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt issuance costs amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Minority interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred compensation expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
(Gain)/loss on sale of assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (Note 4) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash provided by operating activitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Investing Activities:
Additions to property, plant & equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds from sale of assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Purchases of businesses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash used by investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Financing Activities:
Distributions paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Borrowings under credit facilityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payments under credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Borrowings under short-term noteÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payments on short-term noteÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Borrowings under long-term note ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Capital contributions by aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Sales of Common Units to public (less underwriters' commissions
and payment of formation and oÅering costs)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Debt placement costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Redemption of 600,000 Common Units from aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payments on aÇliate note payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Proceeds from aÇliate note payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Payment of interest rate hedge ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net cash provided by (used in) Ñnancing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Change in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of periodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Cash and cash equivalents at end of periodÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Supplemental non-cash investing and Ñnancing transactions:
Contributions by aÇliate of long-term debt, deferred income tax
liabilities, and other assets and liabilities to Partnership capital
Purchase of business through the issuance of Class B equity
securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Purchase of Aux Sable pipeline ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred equity oÅering costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
See accompanying notes.
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$

Year Ended December 31,
2001
2000
(In thousands)

99,153

$

67,872

$ 48,902

35,096
9,950
Ì
2,508
1,641
(2,088)
14,773
161,033

35,767
253
229
2,048
6,438
249
22,477
135,333

31,746
Ì
Ì
Ì
2,229
Ì
(27,821)
55,056

(37,248)
2,706
(692,493)
(727,035)

(39,743)
1,650
(49,409)
(87,502)

(43,346)
Ì
(31,100)
(74,446)

(53,373)
8,500
(58,000)
700,000
(700,000)
480,000
21,293

(16,599)
139,500
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
1,792

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

279,290
89,362
(19,666)
(909)
Ì
(12,060)
(29,780)
(235,090)
Ì
Ì
(995)
Ì
47
Ì
627,316
(34,004)
61,314
13,827
13,837
10
$ 75,151
$ 13,837

Ì
Ì
Ì
(12,679)
32,069
Ì
Ì
19,390
Ì
10
$
10

$ 198,117

$

304,388
Ì
Ì

$

73,671
Ì
8,853
Ì

Ì
Ì
Ì
2,539

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PARTNERS' CAPITAL

Common

Balance, January 1, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, December 31, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Contribution of net assets of
predecessor companies (1.7 million
common units and 5.7 million
subordinated units issued) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Redemption of common units
(0.6 million) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of common units to public
(4.6 million units) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate capital contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Distributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, December 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Comprehensive income:
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net loss on cash Öow hedge ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total comprehensive income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Conversion of minority interest
liability to partners' capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Conversion of Williams Pipe Line
equity to partnership equity and
contribution by aÇliate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of Class B units (7.8 million
units) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Issuance of common units to public
(8 million units) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate capital contributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Distributions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Balance, December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

66,851
3,005

Accumulated
Other
General
Comprehensive
Subordinated
Class B
Partner
Income
(In thousands, except unit amounts)

$

Ì
Ì

$

Ì
Ì

$ 272,750
45,897

$

Total
Partners'
Capital

Ì
Ì

$ 339,601
48,902

69,856
10,608

Ì
10,609

Ì
Ì

318,647
46,655

Ì
Ì

388,503
67,872

(49,362)

117,884

Ì

2,290

Ì

70,812

(12,060)

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

(12,060)

Ì
Ì
Ì

Ì
36
(331)

Ì
Ì
Ì

89,362
1,792
(16,599)
589,682

89,362
878
(8,134)

Ì
878
(8,134)

101,148

121,237

Ì

367,297

Ì

40,545
Ì

22,734
Ì

17,434
Ì

18,440
Ì

Ì
(971)

99,153
(971)
98,182

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

Ì

304,388

279,290
4,536
(25,640)
(42)
$ 399,837

Ì
1,883
(14,642)
(18)
$131,194

Ì
2,597
(10,768)
Ì
$313,651

See accompanying notes.
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2,270

(789,910)
Ì
Ì
12,277
(2,323)
(5)
$(391,954)

Ì

2,270

Ì

(789,910)

Ì

304,388

Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì

279,290
21,293
(53,373)
(65)

$(971)

$ 451,757

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Organization and Presentation

Williams Energy Partners L.P. (the ""Partnership'') is a Delaware limited partnership that was formed in
August 2000 to own, operate and acquire a diversiÑed portfolio of complementary energy assets. At the time of
the Partnership's initial public oÅering in February 2001, the Partnership owned: (a) selected petroleum
products terminals previously owned by Williams Energy Ventures, Inc., and (b) an ammonia pipeline
system, Williams Ammonia Pipeline Inc., previously owned by Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.
(""WNGL''). Prior to the closing of the Partnership's initial public oÅering in February 2001, Williams Energy
Ventures, Inc. was owned by Williams Energy Services, LLC (""Williams Energy Services''). Both Williams
Energy Services and WNGL are wholly owned subsidiaries of The Williams Companies, Inc. (""Williams'').
Williams GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of Williams, was also
formed in August 2000, to serve as general partner for the Partnership.
On February 9, 2001, the Partnership completed its initial public oÅering of 4 million common units
representing limited partner interests in the Partnership at a price of $21.50 per unit. The proceeds of
$86.0 million were used to pay underwriting discounts and commissions of $5.6 million and legal, professional
fees and costs associated with the initial public oÅering of $3.1 million, with the remainder used to reduce
aÇliate note balances with Williams.
As part of the initial public oÅering, the underwriters exercised their over-allotment option and purchased
600,000 common units, also at a price of $21.50 per unit. The net proceeds of $12.1 million, after underwriting
discounts and commissions of $0.8 million, from this over-allotment option were used to redeem 600,000 of
the common units held by Williams Energy Services to reimburse it for capital expenditures related to the
Partnership's assets. The Partnership maintained the historical costs of the net assets in connection with the
initial public oÅering. Following the exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option, 40% of the
Partnership was owned by the public and 60%, including the General Partner's ownership, was owned by
aÇliates of the Partnership. Generally, the limited partners' liability in the Partnership is limited to their
investment.
On April 11, 2002, the Partnership acquired all of the membership interests of Williams Pipe Line
Company (""Williams Pipe Line'') for approximately $1.0 billion (see Note 5 Ì Acquisitions and Divestitures). Because Williams Pipe Line was an aÇliate of the Partnership at the time of the acquisition, the
transaction was between entities under common control and, as such, has been accounted for similarly to a
pooling of interests. Accordingly, the consolidated Ñnancial statements and notes of the Partnership have been
restated to reÖect the combined historical results of operations, Ñnancial position and cash Öows of Williams
Energy Partners and Williams Pipe Line throughout the periods presented. Williams Pipe Line's operations
are presented as a separate operating segment of the Partnership (see Note 15 Ì Segment Disclosures).
The historical results for Williams Pipe Line included income and expenses and assets and liabilities that
were conveyed to and assumed by an aÇliate of Williams Pipe Line prior to its acquisition by the Partnership.
The assets principally included Williams Pipe Line's interest in and agreement related to Longhorn Partners
Pipeline (""Longhorn''), an inactive reÑnery site at Augusta, Kansas, a pipeline construction project, the
ATLAS 2000 software system and the pension assets and obligations associated with the non-contributory
deÑned-beneÑt pension plan which covered union employees assigned to Williams Pipe Line's operations. The
liabilities principally included the environmental liabilities associated with the inactive reÑnery site in
Augusta, Kansas and current and deferred income taxes and aÇliate note payable. The current and deferred
income taxes and the aÇliate note payable were contributed to the Partnership in the form of a capital
contribution by an aÇliate of Williams. The income and expenses associated with Longhorn have not been
included in the Ñnancial results of the Partnership since the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line by the
Partnership in April 2002. Also, as agreed between the Partnership and Williams, revenues from Williams
Pipe Line's blending operations, other than an annual blending fee of approximately $3.0 million, have not
been included in the Ñnancial results of the Partnership since April 2002. In addition, general and
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administrative expenses related to the Williams Pipe Line system that the Partnership has been reimbursing to
its General Partner, have been limited to $30.0 million on an annual basis.
On April 11, 2002, the Partnership issued 7,830,924 Class B units representing limited partner interests to
Williams GP LLC. The securities, valued at $304.4 million and along with $6.2 million of additional general
partner equity interests were issued as partial payment for the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line (See
Note 5 Ì Acquisitions and Divestitures). According to the provisions in the Williams Pipe Line private
placement debt agreement dated November 15, 2002, the Partnership can redeem the Class B units only with
proceeds from an equity oÅering. When the Class B units are redeemed, the price will be based on the 20-day
average closing price of the common units prior to the redemption date. If the Class B units are not redeemed
by April 11, 2003, then upon the request of the holder of the Class B units and approval of the holders of a
majority of the common units voting at a meeting of the unitholders, the Class B units will convert into
common units. If the approval of the conversion by the common unitholders is not obtained within 120 days of
this request, the holder of the Class B units will be entitled to receive distributions with respect to its Class B
units, on a per unit basis, equal to 115% of the amount of distributions paid on a common unit.
In May 2002, the Partnership issued 8,000,000 common units representing limited partner interests in the
Partnership at a price of $37.15 per unit for total proceeds of $297.2 million. Associated with this oÅering,
Williams contributed $6.1 million to the Partnership to maintain its 2% general partner interest. A portion of
the total proceeds was used to pay underwriting discounts and commissions of $12.6 million. Legal,
professional fees and costs associated with this oÅering were approximately $5.3 million. The remaining cash
proceeds of $289.0 million were used to partially repay the $700.0 million short-term note assumed by the
Partnership to help Ñnance the Williams Pipe Line acquisition (see Note 12 Ì Long-Term Debt).
During November 2002, amendments were made to the Partnership's agreement of limited partnership
and a limited liability company agreement for WEG GP LLC (see discussion of WEG GP LLC below) was
adopted. The Ñrst change requires the Partnership and the general partner to maintain separateness from
Williams including formalities on interaction between the Partnership, the public and Williams. Changes were
also made to require the approval of the ConÖicts Committee (consisting of three independent directors)
before the general partner can make bankruptcy-related decisions for the Partnership. In addition, adjustments
were made to the voting rights of units held by Williams. Williams' Class B units no longer have voting rights
except with respect to matters that would have a material impact on the holders of such units, its subordinated
units generally have one-half vote for every one unit owned and all common units will be allowed to vote in any
subordinated class vote. Finally, election of the board members of the general partner has been moved to a
vote of the common unitholders, with the Ñrst vote to be held in 2003. The voting right changes and board
member changes will be voided and reversed in the event of a foreclosure in a Williams-related bankruptcy
proceeding. In addition, the Partnership eliminated from its agreements the requirement that the Board of
Directors of the Partnership's General Partner approve any proposed disposition of any membership interest of
the General Partner.
During November 2002, Williams created a new general partner, WEG GP LLC (""General Partner'').
The new General Partner, which is owned by aÇliates of Williams, has all of the rights, privileges and
responsibilities relative to the Partnership previously held by the old general partner, Williams GP LLC.
Williams GP LLC will continue to own the Class B units issued by the Partnership in April 2002.
Recent Developments
During 2002, Williams began to experience signiÑcant Ñnancial and liquidity diÇculties and no longer
maintains an investment grade credit rating. In the event that Williams' Ñnancial condition does not improve,
or becomes worse, it may have to consider other options including the possibility of Ñling for bankruptcy under
the United States Bankruptcy Code. Management has reviewed the situation with outside counsel and
believes that should Williams and its aÇliates Ñle for bankruptcy protection that the Partnership would not
68

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
necessarily become a party to such bankruptcy Ñlings. However, we cannot assure you that Williams and its
aÇliates, or the creditors of Williams and its aÇliates, would not attempt to utilize various remedies available
in a bankruptcy (including substantive consolidation), in an eÅort to make the assets of the Partnership
available to the creditors of Williams and its aÇliates, or how a bankruptcy court would resolve such issues.
Likewise, there can be no assurances as to the ultimate impact a bankruptcy by Williams and its aÇliates
would have on Williams' and its aÇliates' ability to perform obligations owed to the Partnership and its
aÇliates, including our General Partner.
WEG GP LLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Williams. Williams owns approximately 55% of the
Partnership, including its 2% general partner interest. However, the Partnership operates its business in a
manner separate and distinct from Williams. Among other things: (i) the Partnership either owns or leases the
assets used in its business in its own name, (ii) the Partnership has three independent board members who
serve on a conÖicts committee that must approve any material transaction between the Partnership and
Williams or its aÇliates, as well as approve certain signiÑcant transactions (such as the Ñling of a bankruptcy
petition) and (iii) other than aÇliate receivables and payables generated from product sales and services
rendered in the normal course of business, the Partnership does not provide any credit support to Williams or
its aÇliates and Williams does not provide credit support to us.
Provisions of the General Partner's limited liability company agreement speciÑcally provide that decisions
regarding a voluntary bankruptcy Ñling of WEG GP LLC or the Partnership must be approved by the
ConÖicts Committee, which is comprised of the independent board members of WEG GP LLC.
If WEG GP LLC were to Ñle for bankruptcy relief under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code, the Ñling would be an ""Event of Withdrawal'' under the Partnership's Partnership Agreement and
WEG GP LLC will be deemed to have withdrawn. A Chapter 11 Ñling would not be considered an ""Event of
Withdrawal'' and the Partnership would continue to operate under its existing agreements. Upon the
occurrence of an Event of Withdrawal, WEG GP LLC is required to give notice to the Partnership's limited
partners within 30 days after such occurrence. An Event of Withdrawal triggers dissolution and winding up of
the aÅairs of the Partnership unless: (i) a successor general partner is elected and admitted to the Partnership
within 90 days of receiving the General Partner's withdrawal notice, (ii) a written opinion of counsel is issued
that such withdrawal would not result in the loss of the limited liability of any limited partner or of the limited
partner of any of the Partnership's operating limited partnerships or cause the Partnership or any of the
Partnership's operating limited partnerships to be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or
otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes, and (iii) the new general partner executes a
new partnership agreement and executes and Ñles a new certiÑcate of limited partnership. Election of a
successor general partner requires a vote of a majority of the outstanding units to reconstitute the Partnership
and approve the successor general partner. Despite the provisions of the Partnership's Partnership Agreement
discussed in this section, if WEG GP LLC were to Ñle for bankruptcy protection, the bankruptcy court may
refuse to enforce these provisions or may require diÅerent or additional procedures and consideration to allow
these provisions to be followed.
2.

Description of Businesses

The Partnership owns and operates a petroleum products pipeline system, petroleum products terminals
and an ammonia pipeline system.
Williams Pipe Line System
Williams Pipe Line is a petroleum products pipeline system that covers an 11-state area extending from
Oklahoma through the Midwest to North Dakota, Minnesota and Illinois. The system includes a 6,700-mile
pipeline and 39 terminals that provide transportation, storage and distribution services. The products
transported on the Williams Pipe Line system are largely petroleum products, including gasoline, diesel fuels,
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LPGs and aviation fuels. Product originates on the system from direct connections to reÑneries and
interconnects with other interstate pipelines for transportation and ultimate distribution to retail gasoline
stations, truck stops, railroads, airlines and other end-users.
Petroleum Products Terminals
Most of the Partnership's 28 petroleum products terminals are strategically located along or near third
party pipelines or petroleum reÑneries. The petroleum products terminals provide a variety of services such as
distribution, storage, blending, inventory management and additive injection to a diverse customer group
including governmental customers and end-users in the downstream reÑning, retail, commercial trading,
industrial and petrochemical industries. Products stored in and distributed through the petroleum products
terminal network include reÑned petroleum products, blendstocks and heavy oils and feedstocks. The terminal
network consists of marine terminal facilities and inland terminals. Four marine terminal facilities are located
along the Gulf Coast and one marine terminal facility is located in Connecticut near the New York harbor.
The inland terminals are located primarily in the southeastern United States.
Ammonia Pipeline System
The ammonia pipeline system consists of an ammonia pipeline and six company-owned terminals.
Shipments on the pipeline primarily originate from ammonia production plants located in Borger, Texas and
Enid and Verdigris, Oklahoma for transport to terminals throughout the Midwest for ultimate distribution to
end-users in Iowa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, Oklahoma, South Dakota and Texas. The
ammonia transported through the system is used primarily as nitrogen fertilizer.
3.

Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated Ñnancial statements include Williams Pipe Line, the petroleum products terminals and
the ammonia pipeline system. For 11 of these petroleum products terminals, the Partnership owns varying
undivided ownership interests. From inception, ownership of these assets has been structured as an ownership
of an undivided interest in assets, not as an ownership interest in a partnership, limited liability company, joint
venture or other form of entity. Marketing and invoicing are controlled separately by each owner, and each
owner is responsible for any loss, damage or injury that may occur to their own customers. As a result, the
Partnership applies proportionate consolidation for its interests in these assets.
ReclassiÑcations
Certain previously reported balances have been classiÑed diÅerently to conform with current year
presentation. Net income and total assets were not aÅected by these reclassiÑcations.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the amounts reported in
the consolidated Ñnancial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could diÅer from those
estimates.
Regulatory Reporting
Williams Pipe Line is regulated by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (""FERC''), which
prescribes certain accounting principles and practices for the annual Form 6 Report Ñled with the FERC that
diÅer from those used in these Ñnancial statements. Such diÅerences relate primarily to capitalization of
70

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
interest, accounting for equity investments and other adjustments and are not signiÑcant to the Ñnancial
statements.
Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include demand and time deposits and other marketable securities with
maturities of three months or less when acquired. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value of those instruments due to their short maturity.
Inventory Valuation
Inventory is comprised primarily of reÑned products and materials and supplies. ReÑned products and
natural gas liquids inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market. The average cost method is
used for materials and supplies.
Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are recognized when products are sold or services are rendered. An allowance for
doubtful accounts is established for all amounts deemed uncollectable and reserves are evaluated no less than
quarterly to determine their adequacy.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged
to operations in the period incurred. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided on the straightline basis. For petroleum products terminal and ammonia pipeline system assets, the costs of property, plant
and equipment sold or retired and the related accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts, and
any associated gains or losses are recorded in the income statement, in the period of sale or disposition. For
Williams Pipe Line, gains or losses from the ordinary sale or retirement of property, plant and equipment are
credited or charged to accumulated depreciation under FERC accounting guidelines.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
In January 2002, WEG GP LLC adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (""SFAS'')
No. 142, ""Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.'' In accordance with this Statement, beginning on January 1,
2002, goodwill, which represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of businesses acquired, is no longer
amortized but must be evaluated periodically for impairment. The determination of whether goodwill is
impaired is based on management's estimate of the fair value of the Partnership's operating segments as
compared to their carrying values. If an impairment has occurred, the amount of the impairment recognized is
determined by subtracting the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill from the carrying amount of the
goodwill. Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of up to 25 years.
Judgments and assumptions are inherent in management's estimates used to determine the fair value of
its operating segments. The use of alternate judgments and/or assumptions could result in the recognition of
diÅerent levels of impairment charges in the Ñnancial statements.
Previously, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 20 years for those assets
acquired prior to July 1, 2001. Based on the amount of goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2001, application
of the non-amortization provision of SFAS No. 142 resulted in a decrease to amortization expense in 2002 of
approximately $0.8 million.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
In January 2002, the Partnership adopted SFAS No. 144 ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.'' There was no initial impact on the Partnership's results of operations or Ñnancial position
upon adoption of this standard.
In accordance with this Statement, the Partnership evaluates its long-lived assets of identiÑable business
activities for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate, in management's judgment, that
the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable. The determination of whether an impairment has
occurred is based on management's estimate of undiscounted future cash Öows attributable to the assets as
compared to the carrying value of the assets. If an impairment has occurred, the amount of the impairment
recognized is determined by estimating the fair value for the assets and recording a provision for loss if the
carrying value is greater than fair value.
For assets identiÑed to be disposed of in the future, the carrying value of these assets is compared to the
estimated fair value less the cost to sell to determine if an impairment is required. Until the assets are disposed
of, an estimate of the fair value is redetermined when related events or circumstances change.
Judgments and assumptions are inherent in management's estimate of undiscounted future cash Öows
used to determine recoverability of an asset and the estimate of an asset's fair value used to calculate the
amount of impairment to recognize. The use of alternate judgments and/or assumptions could result in the
recognition of diÅerent levels of impairment charges in the Ñnancial statements.
Capitalization of Interest
Interest on borrowed funds is capitalized on projects during construction based on the approximate
average interest rate on debt owed by the Partnership. Capitalized interest for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000 were $0.2 million, $0.8 million and $1.3 million, respectively.
Revenue Recognition
Williams Pipe Line transportation revenues are recognized when shipments are complete and estimated
pipeline revenues are deferred for shipments in transit. Ammonia pipeline revenues are recognized when
product is delivered to the customer. Injection service fees associated with customer proprietary additives are
recognized upon injection to the customer's product, which occurs at the time the product is delivered. Leased
tank storage, pipeline capacity leases, terminalling, throughput, blending services, ethanol loading and
unloading services, laboratory testing and data services, pipeline operating fees and other miscellaneous
service-related revenues are recognized upon completion of contract services. Sales of products produced from
fractionation activities and other miscellaneous product sales, are recognized upon sale of the product.
Income Taxes
Prior to February 9, 2001, the Partnership's operations were included in Williams' consolidated federal
income tax return. The Partnership's income tax provisions were computed as though separate returns were
Ñled. Deferred income taxes were computed using the liability method and were provided on all temporary
diÅerences between the Ñnancial basis and tax basis of the Partnership's assets and liabilities.
EÅective with the closing of the Partnership's initial public oÅering on February 9, 2001 (See Note 1),
the Partnership was no longer a taxable entity for federal and state income tax purposes. Accordingly, for the
petroleum products terminals and ammonia pipeline system operations, after the initial public oÅering, no
recognition has been given to income taxes for Ñnancial reporting purposes.
Prior to its acquisition by the Partnership, Williams Pipe Line was included in Williams' consolidated
federal income tax return. Deferred income taxes were computed using the liability method and were provided
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on all temporary diÅerences between the Ñnancial basis and the tax basis of Williams Pipe Line's assets and
liabilities. Williams Pipe Line's federal provision was computed at existing statutory rates as though a separate
federal tax return were Ñled. Williams Pipe Line paid its tax liability to Williams as per its tax sharing
arrangement with Williams. No recognition has been given to income taxes associated with Williams Pipe
Line for Ñnancial reporting purposes for periods subsequent to its acquisition by the Partnership.
The tax on Partnership net income is borne by the individual partners through the allocation of taxable
income. Net income for Ñnancial statement purposes may diÅer signiÑcantly from taxable income of
unitholders as a result of diÅerences between the tax basis and Ñnancial reporting basis of assets and liabilities
and the taxable income allocation requirements under the Partnership's partnership agreement. The aggregate
diÅerence in the basis of the Partnership's net assets for Ñnancial and tax reporting purposes cannot be readily
determined because information regarding each partner's tax attributes in the Partnership is not available to
the Partnership.
Employee Stock-Based Awards
Williams' employee stock-based awards are accounted for under provisions of Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, ""Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,'' and related interpretations. Williams'
Ñxed plan common stock options do not result in compensation expense because the exercise price of the stock
options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
The General Partner has issued incentive awards of phantom units of the Partnership to Williams
employees assigned to the Partnership. These awards are also accounted for under provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Since the exercise price of the unit awards is less than the market price of
the underlying units on the date of grant, compensation expense is recognized by the General Partner and
directly allocated to the Partnership.
Environmental
Environmental expenditures that relate to current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized based
upon the nature of the expenditures. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past
operations that do not contribute to current or future revenue generation are expensed. Environmental
liabilities are recorded independently of any potential claim for recovery. Receivables are recognized in cases
where the realization of reimbursements of remediation costs are considered probable. Accruals related to
environmental matters are generally determined based on site-speciÑc plans for remediation, taking into
account prior remediation experience of the Partnership and Williams.
Earnings Per Unit
Basic earnings per unit are based on the average number of common, Class B and subordinated units
outstanding. Diluted earnings per unit include any dilutive eÅect of phantom unit grants. Limited partners'
earnings are determined after the net income allocation to the General Partner consistent with its distribution
under the incentive distribution rights declared for each period presented.
Recent Accounting Standards
In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (""FASB'') issued SFAS No. 148
""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Ì Transition and Disclosure Ì an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123''. This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation'', to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure
requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim Ñnancial
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statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the eÅect of the
method used on reported results. This Statement improves the prominence and clarity of the pro forma
disclosures required by Statement 123 by prescribing a speciÑc tabular format and by requiring disclosure in
the ""Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies'' or its equivalent. The standard is eÅective for Ñscal periods
ending after December 15, 2002. The Partnership accounts for stock-based compensation for Williams
employees assigned to the Partnership under provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
hence, adoption of this standard will have no impact on the Partnership's operations or Ñnancial position. The
Partnership adopted the additional disclosure requirements of this standard in 2002.
In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, ""Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities''. This Statement addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and nulliÑes Emerging Issues Task Force (""EITF'') Issue No. 94-3, ""Liability Recognition
for Certain Employee Termination BeneÑts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring).'' The provisions of this Statement are eÅective for exit or disposal activities that
are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged. The Partnership adopted this
standard in January 2003 and it did not have a material impact on the Partnership's results of operations or
Ñnancial position.
In the second quarter of 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, ""Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,
44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement 13 and Technical Corrections''. The rescission of SFAS No. 4
""Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,'' and SFAS No. 64, ""Extinguishment of Debt
Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements,'' requires that gains or losses from extinguishment of debt only
be classiÑed as extraordinary items in the event they meet the criteria in Accounting Principle Board Opinion
(""APB'') No. 30, ""Reporting the Results of Operations Ì Reporting the EÅects of Disposal of a Segment of
a Business and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions''. SFAS No. 44,
""Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers,'' established accounting requirements for the eÅects of
transition to the Motor Carriers Act of 1980 and is no longer required now that the transitions have been
completed. Finally, the amendments to SFAS No. 13 ""Accounting for Leases'' are eÅective for transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002. All other provisions of this Statement will be eÅective for Ñnancial statements
issued on or after May 15, 2002. The Partnership adopted this standard in January 2003, and it did not have a
material impact on our results of operations or Ñnancial position. However, in subsequent reporting periods,
any gains and losses from debt extinguishments will not be accounted for as extraordinary items.
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, ""Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of LongLived Assets''. This Statement supersedes SFAS No. 121, ""Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of'' and amends APB No. 30. The Statement retains the
basic framework of SFAS No. 121, resolves certain implementation issues of SFAS No. 121, extends
applicability to discontinued operations and broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include a
component of an entity. The Statement was to be applied prospectively and was eÅective for Ñnancial
statements issued for Ñscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. There was no initial impact on our
results of operations or Ñnancial position upon adoption of this standard.
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, ""Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,'' which is
eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Statement requires legal obligations associated
with the retirement of long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time that the obligations are
incurred. Upon initial recognition of a liability, that cost should be capitalized as a part of the related longlived asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. The Partnership adopted the new rules on
asset retirement obligations on January 1, 2003. Application of the new rules did not have a material impact on
the Partnership's results of operations or Ñnancial position as retirement obligations were not recorded for
assets for which the remaining life is not currently determinable, including pipeline transmission and terminal
assets.
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In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, ""Business Combinations'' and SFAS No. 142, ""Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets''. SFAS No. 141 establishes accounting and reporting standards for business
combinations and requires all business combinations to be accounted for by the purchase method. The
Statement is eÅective for all business combinations for which the date of acquisition is July 1, 2001 or later.
SFAS No. 142 addresses accounting and reporting standards for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under
this Statement, goodwill and intangible assets with indeÑnite useful lives will no longer be amortized but will
be tested annually for impairment. The Statement became eÅective for all Ñscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The Partnership applied the new rules on accounting for goodwill and other intangible
assets beginning January 1, 2002. Based on the amount of goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2001,
application of the non-amortization provision of the Statement resulted in a decrease to amortization expense
in 2002 of approximately $0.8 million. Following are the historical results of Williams Energy Partners on a
consolidated basis assuming goodwill amortization had not been recorded (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Reported net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Goodwill amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$99,153
Ì

$67,872
145

$48,902
Ì

Adjusted net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$99,153

$68,017

$48,902

For the year ended December 31, 2001, basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit would have
increased by $.01 assuming goodwill amortization had not been recorded.
4.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Changes in the components of operating assets and liabilities excluding certain assets and liabilities of
Williams Pipe Line which were not acquired by the Partnership (see Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation) are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Accounts receivable and other accounts receivableÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate accounts receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate income taxes payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued aÇliate payroll and beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued taxes other than income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Accrued interest payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Current and noncurrent environmental liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other current and noncurrent assets and liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
5.

$(5,007) $ 10,393
$ (9,726)
(8,876)
15,758
(1,943)
5,361
(12,919)
2,494
4,331
2,456
(6,636)
9,634
1,175
(4,146)
487
3,079
2,570
315
(822)
(169)
3,749
(364)
1,756
(210)
277
Ì
7,542
2,669
4,511
(2,553)
775
(16,532)
$14,773

$ 22,477

$(27,821)

Acquisitions and Divestitures
Williams Pipe Line

On April 11, 2002, the Partnership acquired all of the membership interests of Williams Pipe Line from
Williams Energy Services for approximately $1.0 billion. The Partnership remitted to WES consideration in
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the amount of $674.4 million and WES retained $15.0 million of Williams Pipe Line's receivables. The
$310.6 million balance of the consideration consisted of $304.4 million of Class B units representing limited
partner interests in the Partnership issued to Williams GP LLC and aÇliates of WES and Williams'
contribution to the Partnership of $6.2 million to maintain its 2% general partner interest. The Partnership
borrowed $700.0 million from a group of Ñnancial institutions, paid WES $674.4 million and used
$10.6 million of the funds to pay debt fees and other transaction costs (see Note 12 Ì Long-Term Debt). The
Partnership retained $15.0 million of the funds to meet working capital needs.
Williams Pipe Line primarily provides petroleum products transportation, storage and distribution
services and is reported as a separate business segment of the Partnership. Because of the Partnership's
aÇliate relationship with Williams Pipe Line, the transaction was between entities under common control and,
as such, has been accounted for similarly to a pooling of interest. Accordingly, the consolidated Ñnancial
statements and notes of the Partnership have been restated to reÖect the historical results of operations,
Ñnancial position and cash Öows as if the companies had been combined throughout the periods presented.
The results of operations for the separate companies and the combined amounts presented in the
Consolidated Income Statement follow (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Revenues:
Pre-acquisition:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Post-acquisition:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CombinedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net Income:
Pre-acquisition:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Post-acquisition:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
CombinedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 27,249
86,119

$ 86,054
362,545

$ 72,492
354,354

65,329
255,780

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

$434,477

$448,599

$426,846

$

9,362
14,038

$ 21,747
46,125

$

17,722
58,031

Ì
Ì

Ì
Ì

$ 99,153

$ 67,872

$ 48,902

3,005
45,897

Because Williams Pipe Line was an aÇliate of the Partnership at the time of the acquisition, the
transaction was between entities under common control. As such, generally accepted accounting principles
required that Williams Pipe Line's assets and liabilities be recorded on the Partnership's consolidated Ñnancial
statements at their historical values, despite their having been acquired at market value. As a result, the
General Partner's capital account was decreased by $474.5 million, which equaled the diÅerence between the
historical and market values of Williams Pipe Line. The eÅect of this treatment on the Partnership's overall
capital balance resulted in a debt-to-total capitalization ratio at December 31, 2002, of 56%.
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Other Acquisitions
The assets identiÑed below were acquired for cash during the periods presented and are described below.
All acquisitions, except the Aux Sable transaction (described below), were accounted for as purchases of
businesses and the results of operations of the acquired petroleum products terminals are included with the
combined results of operations from their acquisition dates.
On December 31, 2001, the Partnership purchased an 8.5-mile, 8-inch natural gas liquids pipeline in
northeastern Illinois from Aux Sable Liquid Products L.P. (""Aux Sable'') for $8.9 million. The Partnership
then entered into a long-term lease arrangement under which Aux Sable is the sole lessee of these assets. The
Partnership has accounted for this transaction as a direct Ñnancing lease. The lease expires in December 2016
and has a purchase option after the Ñrst year. The minimum lease payments to be made by Aux Sable are
$18.1 million in total over the remaining life of the lease and $1.3 million per year over each of the next Ñve
years. Aux Sable has the right to re-acquire the pipeline at the end of the lease for a de minimis amount. The
fair value of the lease at December 31, 2002, approximates its carrying value.
In October 2001, the Partnership acquired the crude oil storage and distribution assets of Geonet
Gathering, Inc. (""Geonet'') located in Gibson, Louisiana. The Partnership acquired these assets with the
intent to use the facility as a crude storage and distribution facility with an aÇliate company as its primary
customer. The purchase price and allocation to assets acquired and liabilities assumed was as follows (in
thousands):
Purchase price:
Cash paid, including transaction costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Liabilities assumed ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$20,261
856

Total purchase price ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$21,117

Allocation of purchase price:
Current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
GoodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Intangible assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total allocation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

62
4,607
13,719
2,729

$21,117

Factors contributing to the recognition of goodwill are the market in which the facility is located and the
opportunity to enter into a long-term throughput agreement with an aÇliate company. Of the amount
allocated to intangible assets, $2.0 million represents the value of the leases associated with this facility, which
have amortization periods of up to 25 years. The remaining $0.7 million allocated to intangible assets
represents covenants not-to-compete and has an amortization period of Ñve years. The total weighted average
amortization period of intangible assets was approximately 16 years at the time of the acquisition. Of the
consideration paid for the facility, $0.2 million was held in escrow at December 31, 2002, pending Ñnal
evaluation of reimbursable repairs by the Partnership.
In June 2001, the Partnership purchased two petroleum products terminals located in Little Rock,
Arkansas from TransMontaigne, Inc. (""TransMontaigne'') at a cost of $28.9 million, of which $20.2 million
was allocated to property, plant and equipment and $8.7 million to goodwill and other intangibles.
In April 2001, the Partnership purchased a 6-mile pipeline for $0.3 million from Equilon Pipeline
Company LLC, enabling connection of the Partnership's existing Dallas, Texas area petroleum storage and
distribution facility to Dallas Love Field. The acquisition was made in conjunction with an agreement for the
Partnership to provide jet fuel delivery services into Dallas Love Field for Southwest Airlines. In December
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2001, the Partnership completed construction of additional jet fuel storage tanks at its distribution facility in
Dallas to support delivery of jet fuel to the airport. Total cost of the pipeline and construction of the additional
jet fuel storage tanks totaled $5.5 million.
The following summarized unaudited pro forma Ñnancial information for the year ended December 31,
2001, reÖects the historical results of Williams Energy Partners on a consolidated basis and assumes each
other acquisition had occurred on January 1 of each year presented (in thousands):
2001

2000

Revenues:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquired businesses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$448,599
5,552

$426,846
14,354

Combined ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$454,151

$441,200

Net income:
Williams Energy Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Acquired businesses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 67,872
659

$ 48,902
1,083

Combined ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 68,531

$ 49,985

Basic net income per limited partner unitÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

1.93

Diluted net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

1.92

The pro forma results include operating results prior to the acquisitions and adjustments to interest
expense, depreciation expense and income taxes. The pro forma consolidated results do not purport to be
indicative of results that would have occurred had the acquisitions been in eÅect for the periods presented, nor
do they purport to be indicative of results that will be obtained in the future.
Divestitures
During the fourth quarter of 2002, the Partnership sold its Mobile, Alabama and Jacksonville, Florida
inland terminals. Total cash proceeds of approximately $1.3 million were received, with a gain of approximately $1.1 million recognized.
During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Partnership sold its Meridian, Mississippi inland terminal. Cash
proceeds of approximately $1.7 million were received, with a gain of approximately $1.1 million recognized.
6.

Inventories
Inventories at December 31, 2002 and 2001 were as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2002
2001

ReÑned petroleum products ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Natural gas liquidsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additives ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$3,863
Ì
897
464

$ 5,926
14,210
480
441

Total inventoriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$5,224

$21,057

The decrease in the natural gas liquids inventory is the result of the Partnership's changing its butane
blending operations to that of a service provider only (see Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation for more
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information about activities associated with Williams Pipe Line's operations that are not being conducted by
the Partnership.) The decrease in reÑned petroleum products is the result of the Partnership selling inventories
due to favorable market conditions in 2002.
7.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
Estimated
Depreciable
Lives

December 31,
2002
2001

Construction work-in-progress ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Land and right-of-wayÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Carrier property ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Buildings ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Storage tanks ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Pipeline and station equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Processing equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

4,909
30,199
898,829
8,281
172,865
57,551
138,180
23,713

$1,334,527

$

19,193
30,033
905,144
8,957
169,066
58,157
124,945
22,898

6 - 59
30
30
30 - 67
30
10 - 30

years
years
years
years
years
years

$1,338,393

Carrier property is deÑned as pipeline assets regulated by the FERC. Other includes $18.6 million of
capitalized interest at both December 31, 2002 and 2001. Depreciation expense for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $34.9 million, $35.2 million and $31.7 million, respectively.
8.

Major Customers and Concentration of Risk

No customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenues during 2002. Williams Energy Marketing &
Trading, an aÇliate customer, and Customer A accounted for more than 10% of total revenues during 2001
and 2000. Williams Energy Marketing & Trading and Customer A are customers of the petroleum products
terminals segment and the Williams Pipe Line system segment. The percentage of revenues derived by
customer is provided below:
2002

2001

2000

Customer A ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Energy Marketing & Trading ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

9%
9%

10%
17%

10%
26%

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

18%

27%

36%

Accounts receivable from Williams Energy Marketing & Trading accounted for 7% and 9% of total
accounts and aÇliate receivables at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Williams Pipe Line transports reÑned petroleum products for reÑners and marketers in the petroleum
industry. The major concentration of Williams Pipe Line's revenues is derived from activities conducted in the
central United States. The size and quality of the companies with which the Partnership conducts its
businesses hold our credit losses to a minimum. Sales to our customers are generally unsecured and the
Ñnancial condition and creditworthiness of customers are routinely evaluated. The Partnership has the ability
with many of its terminals contracts to sell stored customer products to recover unpaid receivable balances, if
necessary. The concentration of ammonia revenues is derived from customers with plants in Oklahoma and
Texas and sales are generally unsecured. Any issues impacting the petroleum reÑning and marketing and
anhydrous ammonia industries could impact the Partnership's overall exposure to credit risk.
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Williams Pipe Line's labor force of 538 employees is concentrated in the central United States. At
December 31, 2002, 41% of the employees were represented by a union and covered by collective bargaining
agreements that expire in February 2006. The petroleum products terminals operation's labor force of
192 people is concentrated in the southeastern and Gulf Coast regions of the United States. Other than at
Galena Park, Texas marine terminal facility, none of the terminal operations employees are represented by
labor unions. The employees at the Partnership's Galena Park marine terminal facility are currently
represented by a union, but indicated in 2000 their unanimous desire to terminate their union aÇliation.
Nevertheless, the National Labor Relations Board (""NLRB'') ordered the Partnership to bargain with the
union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of the employees at the facility. The Partnership
appealed this decision to the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. Subsequently, the NLRB indicated the possibility
that it would overturn its decision and requested that the Court of Appeals return the Partnership's and other
matters to the NLRB for further review and decision. A Ñnal decision by the NLRB had not been issued. Our
General Partner considers its employee relations to be good.
9.

Employee BeneÑt Plans

All employees dedicated to or otherwise supporting the Partnership are employees of Williams and many
participate in Williams sponsored employee beneÑt plans.
The Partnership participates in a non-contributory deÑned-beneÑt pension plan with Williams and its
aÇliates that provides pension beneÑts for certain employees of Williams that are dedicated to or support the
Partnership. Cash contributions to the plan are made by Williams and are not speciÑcally identiÑable to the
Partnership's participation. AÇliate expense charges from Williams to the Partnership related to the
Partnership's participation in the plan totaled $2.9 million, $1.5 million and $1.2 million in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.
Employees dedicated to or supporting the Partnership also participate in a Williams deÑned-contribution
plan. The Partnership provides for matching contribution within speciÑed limits of the deÑned-contribution
plan. These contributions are included in compensation expense totaling $2.3 million, $2.4 million and
$2.0 million, respectively in 2002, 2001 and 2000.
The historical results for Williams Pipe Line included certain pension assets and obligations associated
with a non-contributory deÑned-beneÑt pension plan for union employees that are assigned to Williams Pipe
Line's operations. These pension assets and obligations were conveyed to and assumed by an aÇliate of
Williams Pipe Line prior to its acquisition by the Partnership. Subsequent to our acquisition of Williams Pipe
Line, the Partnership bears all compensation costs associated with the plan.
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The following table presents the changes in beneÑt obligations and plan assets for pension beneÑts for the
union plan for the years indicated. These assets and liabilities are not included in the Partnership's
consolidated balance sheets for any periods presented but are included in the balance sheets of our aÇliate (in
thousands):
2002

Change in beneÑt obligation:
BeneÑt obligation at beginning of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Service costÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Actuarial loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2001

$21,597
$19,021
939
889
1,531
1,490
905
1,279
(1,041)
(1,082)

BeneÑt obligation at end of year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Employer contribution ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Loss on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
BeneÑts paid ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

23,931

21,597

18,700
1,000
(2,267)
(1,041)

21,422
Ì
(1,640)
(1,082)

Fair value of plan assets at end of yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

16,392

18,700

(7,539)
10,236
368
Ì

(2,897)
5,399
420
Ì

Funded status ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized prior service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Unrecognized transition asset ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Prepaid beneÑt cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 3,065

$ 2,922

Net pension beneÑt cost for the union plan consists of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Components of net periodic pension expense:
Service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Interest cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of transition assetÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Amortization of prior service cost ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Recognized net actuarial lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net periodic pension expense (income)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

939
1,531
(1,715)
Ì
53
50

$

858
2002

Discount rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected return on plan assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Rate of compensation increase ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

81

7.5%
8.5%
5.0%

$

889
1,490
(2,182)
(126)
53
Ì

$

124
2001

7.5%
10.0%
5.0%

$

688
1,340
(2,075)
(135)
53
Ì

$ (129)
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10.

Related Party Transactions

The Partnership has entered into agreements with various Williams aÇliates. The Partnership has several
agreements with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading, which provide for: (i) approximately 2.5 million
barrels of storage and other ancillary services at the Partnership's marine terminal facilities, (ii) capacity
utilization rights to substantially all of the capacity of the Gibson, Louisiana marine terminal facility, (iii) the
lease of the Carthage, Missouri propane storage cavern and (iv) throughput and deÑciency agreements for
product movements through a third-party capacity lease. Williams Pipe Line has entered into agreements with
Mid-America Pipeline Company (""MAPL'') and Williams Bio Energy to provide tank storage and pipeline
system storage, respectively. Williams Bio Energy is an aÇliate entity and MAPL was an aÇliate entity until
August 1, 2002, when it was sold to Enterprise Products Partners L.P. (""Enterprise'').
Historically, Williams Pipe Line also has been a party to an agreement with Williams Energy
Marketing & Trading for sales of blended gasoline. (See Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation for more
information about income and expenses associated with Williams Pipe Line's historical operations). Also,
both Williams Energy Marketing & Trading and Williams ReÑning & Marketing have agreements for the
access and utilization of storage on Williams Pipe Line system and for the access and utilization of the inland
terminals. The Partnership also has agreements with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading, Williams
ReÑning & Marketing and Williams Bio Energy for the non-exclusive and non-transferable sub-license to use
the ATLAS 2000 software system. Payment terms for aÇliate entities are generally the same as for third-party
companies. Generally, at each month-end, the Partnership is in a net payable position with Williams. The
Partnership deducts any amounts owed to it by Williams before remitting the monthly cash amounts owed to
Williams. The following are revenues from various Williams' subsidiaries (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Williams 100%-Owned AÇliates:
Williams Energy Marketing & Trading ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams ReÑning & Marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Bio EnergyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Energy Services ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Midstream Marketing & Risk Management ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Mid-America Pipeline ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Partially-Owned AÇliates:
Longhorn Pipeline Partners ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$40,119
8,164
4,842
2,725
1,719
165
649

$75,717
13,519
3,448
Ì
Ì
285
Ì

$111,847
Ì
2,379
Ì
Ì
282
20

210

1,301

1,852

$58,593

$94,270

$116,380

Historically, Williams Pipe Line had an agreement with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading to
purchase transmix for fractionation activity and product to settle shortages. MAPL, which was an aÇliate
entity until August 2002, provided operating and maintenance support, in the years presented, to the ammonia

82

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)
pipeline and leased storage space to Williams Pipe Line. The following are costs and expenses from various
aÇliate companies to Williams Pipe Line and the Partnership (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Williams Energy Services Ì direct and directly allocable
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Ì allocated general corporate expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Ì product purchases ÏÏÏÏ
Mid-America Pipeline Ì operating and maintenanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 8,231
34,951
22,268
1,318

$29,242
18,123
80,959
2,730

$35,826
15,380
47,466
2,060

The above costs are reÖected in the cost and expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. Management's estimates of actual general and administrative costs required for the operation of the
Partnership on a stand-alone basis signiÑcantly exceed the actual amounts charged to the Partnership due in
part to signiÑcant increases in insurance premiums and additional operating and general and administrative
expenses associated with the new operating agreement with Enterprise (see discussion below). Amounts owed
to aÇliate entities are paid on a monthly basis. Through a change of control or with 90 days written notice,
Williams can terminate its obligations to provide services to us, which would also eliminate Williams'
obligations under the general and administrative expense limitation included in the Omnibus Agreement.
On August 1, 2002, Williams announced that it had sold 98% of Mapletree LLC, which owns MAPL to
Enterprise. The Partnership and MAPL had an operating agreement whereby MAPL operated the ammonia
pipeline system for the Partnership for a fee. The Partnership has entered into a new agreement with
Enterprise for the continued operation of the Partnership's ammonia pipeline system. This new agreement,
eÅective February 1, 2003, will increase the operating expenses of the pipeline by approximately $0.5 million
annually and general and administrative expenses by approximately $1.5 million annually. The incremental
general and administrative expenses to be incurred under this agreement will be subject to the general and
administrative expense limit under the Partnership's Omnibus agreement.
Historically, Williams charged interest expense to its aÇliates based on their inter-company debt
balances (see Note 12 Ì Long-Term Debt). The Partnership entities also participate in employee beneÑt
plans and long-term incentive plans sponsored by Williams (see Note 9 Ì Employee BeneÑt Plans and
Note 14 Ì Long-Term Incentive Plan).
Williams allocates both direct and indirect general and administrative expenses to its aÇliates. Direct
expenses allocated by Williams are primarily salaries and beneÑts of employees and oÇcers associated with
the business activities of the aÇliate. Indirect expenses include legal, accounting, treasury, engineering,
information technology and other corporate services. Williams allocates expenses to the General Partner based
on the expense limitation provided for in the Omnibus Agreement. The Partnership reimburses the General
Partner and its aÇliates for expenses charged to the Partnership by the General Partner on a monthly basis.
In connection with its initial public oÅering, and with respect solely to the petroleum products terminals
and ammonia pipeline assets held at the time of that oÅering, the Partnership and the General Partner agreed
with Williams that the general and administrative expenses to be reimbursed to the General Partner by the
Partnership would not exceed $6.0 million for 2001, excluding expenses associated with the Partnership's longterm incentive plan, regardless of the amount of the direct and indirect general and administrative expenses
actually incurred by Williams and its aÇliates. The reimbursement limitation will remain in place through
2011 and may increase by no more than the greater of 7% per year or the percentage increase in the consumer
price index for that year. If the Partnership makes an acquisition, general and administrative expenses may
also increase by the amount of these expenses included in the valuation of the business acquired. As a result of
the acquisitions made during 2001, the annual amount of general and administrative expense reimbursement
limitation increased to $6.3 million, excluding expenses associated with the long-term incentive plan. Based on
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the 7% escalation, the Partnership's reimbursement for general and administrative expenses in 2002 for the
petroleum products terminals and ammonia pipeline system operations was $6.7 million before long-term
incentive plan charges.
In connection with the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, the Partnership and the General Partner agreed
with Williams that the general and administrative expenses to be reimbursed to the General Partner by the
Partnership for charges related to the Williams Pipe Line system would be $30.0 million for 2002, prorated for
the actual period that the Partnership owned Williams Pipe Line. In each year after 2002, these expenses may
increase by the lesser of 2.5% per year or the percentage increase in the consumer price index for that year.
The additional general and administrative costs incurred, but not charged to the Partnership, totaled
$10.4 million for the period February 10, 2001 through December 31, 2001, and $19.7 million for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2002.
Williams agreed to reimburse the Partnership for maintenance capital expenditures incurred in 2001 and
2002 in excess of $4.9 million per year related to our initial public oÅering assets. This reimbursement
obligation was subject to a maximum combined reimbursement for both years of $15.0 million. During 2001
and 2002, the Partnership recorded reimbursements from Williams associated with these assets of $3.9 million
and $11.0 million, respectively. In connection with our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, Williams has agreed
to reimburse the Partnership for maintenance capital expenditures incurred in 2002, 2003 and 2004 in excess
of $19.0 million per year related to the Williams Pipe Line system, subject to a maximum combined
reimbursement for all years of $15.0 million. The Partnership's maintenance capital expenditure expectations
related to the Williams Pipe Line system are less than $19.0 million per year and we do not anticipate
reimbursement by Williams.
Williams and certain of its aÇliates have indemniÑed the Partnership against certain environmental costs.
Receivables from Williams or its aÇliates of $22.9 million and $5.1 million at December 31, 2002 and
December 31, 2001, respectively, associated with these environmental costs have been recognized as aÇliate
accounts receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheet (see Note 16 Ì Commitments and Contingencies).
11.

Income Taxes

The Partnership does not currently pay income taxes due to its legal structure. However, earnings
generated prior to the Partnership's initial public oÅering in 2001, and earnings of Williams Pipe Line prior to
the Partnership's acquisition of it in April 2002, were subject to income taxes. The provision for income taxes
is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Current:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred:
Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

84

$6,313
874

$19,405
3,669

$24,779
3,406

987
148

5,597
841

1,743
486

$8,322

$29,512

$30,414
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Reconciliations from the provision for income taxes at the U.S. federal statutory rate to the eÅective tax
rate for the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,
2002
2001
2000

Income taxes at statutory rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Less: income taxes at statutory rate on income applicable to
partners' interest ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Increase resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal income tax beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$37,616

496
Ì

2,931
1

2,529
125

Provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 8,322

$29,512

$30,414

(29,790)

$34,084
(7,504)

$27,760
Ì

SigniÑcant components of deferred tax liabilities and assets as of December 31, 2001 are as follows (in
thousands):
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$147,775
841

Total deferred tax liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwardÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

148,616

Total deferred tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Valuation allowance ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

5,266
1,989

Net deferred tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

3,277

Net deferred tax liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$145,339

Ì
5,266

The Partnership recognized a pre-initial public oÅering federal net operating loss for income tax purposes
of $3.9 million and $57.0 million for the years 2001 and 2000, respectively. The $3.9 million federal net
operating loss expires in 2021. The $57.0 million federal net operating loss carry-forward expires in 2020. As a
result of the initial public oÅering and the concurrent transactions on February 9, 2001, the net deferred tax
liability on that date was assumed by Williams in exchange for an additional equity investment in the
Partnership. The deferred tax assets and liabilities of Williams Pipe Line at the time of its acquisition by the
Partnership on April 11, 2002, were contributed to the Partnership in the form of a capital contribution by an
aÇliate of Williams (see Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation for further discussion of this matter).
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12.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt and long-term aÇliate notes payable for the Partnership at December 31, 2002 and 2001
were as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2002
2001

Long-term debt:
OLP term loan and revolving credit facility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured Notes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate note payable:
Williams Energy Services aÇliate note ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total long-term debt and aÇliate note payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 90,000
480,000

$139,500
Ì

Ì

138,172

$570,000

$277,672

Williams OLP L.P. term loan and revolving credit facility Ì At December 31, 2002, Williams OLP L.P.
(""OLP''), an operating subsidiary of the Partnership which operates our petroleum products terminals and
ammonia pipeline system segments, had a $175.0 million bank credit facility, led by Bank of America. Longterm debt and available borrowing capacity under this facility at December 31, 2002, were $90.0 million and
$85.0 million, respectively. The credit facility is comprised of a $90.0 million term loan facility and an
$85.0 million revolving credit facility, which includes a $73.0 million acquisition sub-facility and a $12.0 million working capital sub-facility. On February 9, 2001, the OLP borrowed $90.0 million under the term loan
facility, which remained outstanding at December 31, 2002. All amounts previously borrowed under the
acquisition and working capital facility were repaid in full during the fourth quarter of 2002. The credit
facility's term extends through February 5, 2004, with all amounts due at that time. Borrowings under the
credit facility carry an interest rate equal to the Eurodollar rate plus a spread from 1.0% to 1.5%, depending on
the OLP's leverage ratio. Interest is also assessed on the unused portion of the credit facility at a rate from
0.2% to 0.4%, depending on the OLP's leverage ratio. The OLP's leverage ratio is deÑned as the ratio of
consolidated total debt to consolidated earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization
for the period of the four Ñscal quarters ending on such date. Closing fees associated with the initiation of the
credit facility were $0.9 million, which are being amortized over the life of the facility. Weighted average
interest rates were 3.3% for the twelve months ended December 31, 2002 and 5.0% for the period February 10,
2001 through December 31, 2001. The interest rates for amounts borrowed against this facility on
December 31, 2002 and 2001 were 2.8% and 3.2%, respectively. At both December 31, 2002 and 2001, the fair
value of this debt approximates its carrying value because of the Öoating interest rate applied to the debt
facility.
Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured Notes Ì In April 2002, the Partnership borrowed $700.0 million from
a group of Ñnancial institutions. This short-term loan was used to help Ñnance the Partnership's acquisition of
Williams Pipe Line. During the second quarter of 2002 the Partnership repaid $289.0 million of the short-term
loan with net proceeds from an equity oÅering. The weighted average interest rate on this note was 5.1% for
the period April 11, 2002 through November 15, 2002. Debt placement fees associated with the note were
$7.1 million and were amortized over the life of the note. In October 2002, the Partnership negotiated an
extension to the maturity of this note from October 8, 2002, to November 27, 2002. The Partnership paid
additional fees of approximately $2.1 million associated with this maturity date extension.
During September 2002, in anticipation of a new debt placement to replace the short-term debt assumed
to acquire Williams Pipe Line, the Partnership entered into an interest rate hedge. The eÅect of this interest
rate hedge was to set the coupon rate on a portion of the Ñxed-rate debt at 7.75% prior to actual execution of
the debt agreement. The loss on the hedge, approximately $1.0 million, was recorded in accumulated other
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comprehensive loss and is being amortized over the Ñve-year life of the Ñxed-rate debt secured during October
2002.
During October 2002, Williams Pipe Line entered into a private placement debt agreement with a group
of Ñnancial institutions for up to $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Series A-1 and
Series A-2 Senior Secured Notes and up to $340.0 million aggregate principal amount of Fixed Rate
Series B-1 and Series B-2 Senior Secured Notes. Both notes are secured with the Partnership's membership
interest in and assets of Williams Pipe Line Company. The maturity date of both notes is October 7, 2007;
however, the Partnership will be required on each of October 7, 2005 and October 7, 2006, to repay 5% of the
then outstanding principal amount of the Senior Secured Notes.
Two borrowings have occurred in relation to these notes. The Ñrst borrowing was completed in November
2002 and was for $420.0 million, of which $156.0 million was borrowed under the Series A-1 notes and
$264.0 million under the Series B-1 notes. The proceeds from this initial borrowing were used to repay
Williams Pipe Line's $411.0 million short-term loan and pay related debt placement fees. The second
borrowing was completed in December 2002 for $60.0 million, of which $22.0 million was borrowed under the
Series A-2 notes and $38.0 million under the Series B-2 notes. $58.0 million of the proceeds from this second
borrowing were used to repay the acquisition sub-facility of the OLP and $2.0 million were used for general
corporate purposes. The Series A-1 and Series A-2 notes bear interest at a rate equal to the six month
Eurodollar Rate plus 4.25%. The rate on the Series A-1 and Series A-2 notes is currently 5.7% and will be
reset on April 7, 2003. The Series B-1 notes bear interest at a Ñxed rate of 7.7%, while the Series B-2 notes
bear interest at a Ñxed rate of 7.9%. The weighted-average rate for the Williams Pipe Line Senior Secured
Notes at December 31, 2002 was 7.0%. Debt placement fees associated with these notes were $10.5 million,
and are being amortized over the life of the notes. Payment of interest and repayment of the principal is
guaranteed by the Partnership. The fair value of the long-term debt at December 31, 2002, approximated its
carrying value, because of the Öoating interest rate applied to the Series A-1 and Series A-2 notes and because
the rates on the Series B-1 and B-2 notes were near market rates at December 31, 2002.
The new debt agreement imposes certain restrictions on Williams Pipe Line and the Partnership.
Generally, the agreement restricts the amount of additional indebtedness Williams Pipe Line can incur,
prohibits Williams Pipe Line from creating or incurring any liens on its property, and restricts Williams Pipe
Line from disposing of its property, making any debt or equity investments, or making any loans or advances of
any kind. The agreement also requires transactions between Williams Pipe Line and any of its aÇliates to be
on terms no less favorable than those Williams Pipe Line would receive in an arms-length transaction. As part
of this agreement, the Partnership agreed that it will not redeem or retire the Partnership's Class B units
except with proceeds from equity issued by the Partnership (see Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation). In
the event of a change in control of the General Partner, each holder of the notes would have thirty days within
which they could exercise a right to put their notes to Williams Pipe Line unless the new owner of the General
Partner has (i) a net worth of at least $500.0 million and (ii) long-term unsecured debt rated as investment
grade by both Moody's Investor Service Inc. and Standard & Poor's Rating Service. If this put right were
exercised, Williams Pipe Line would be obligated to repurchase any such notes and repay any accrued interest
within sixty days.
WES AÇliate Note Ì At December 31, 2001, Williams Pipe Line had an aÇliate note payable to
Williams. This note was contributed by our General Partner to Williams Pipe Line in conjunction with the
Partnership's acquisition of Williams Pipe Line in April 2002. Interest was calculated and paid monthly while
the aÇliate note was outstanding. Interest rates varied with current market conditions. At December 31, 2001,
the fair value of this note approximated its carrying value because of the Öoating interest rate applied to the
note.
During the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, total cash payments for interest on all
indebtedness, net of amounts capitalized, were $22.9 million, $13.7 million and $11.3 million, respectively.
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13.

Leases

Leases Ì Lessee
The Partnership leases land, oÇce buildings, tanks and terminal equipment at various locations to
conduct its on-going business operations. Future minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable operating
leases as of December 31, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):
2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 478
480
482
236
158
Ì

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$1,834

Lease payments associated with the Partnership's lease of land, tanks and related terminal equipment at
its Gibson, Louisiana facility can be canceled at the Partnership's option after 2006 and include provisions for
renewal of the lease at Ñve-year increments which can extend the lease for a total of 25 years from their
inception in 2001. The lease terms require the Partnership to return the Gibson terminal facility property to
substantially its same condition at the time the lease was executed.
Leases Ì Lessor
On December 31, 2001, the Partnership purchased an 8.5-mile, 8-inch natural gas liquids pipeline in
northeastern Illinois from Aux Sable for $8.9 million. The Partnership then entered into a long-term lease
arrangement under which Aux Sable is the sole lessee of these assets. The Partnership has accounted for this
transaction as a direct Ñnancing lease. The lease expires in December 2016 and has a purchase option after the
Ñrst year. Aux Sable has the right to re-acquire the pipeline at the end of the lease for a de minimis amount.
The Partnership also has two Ñve-year pipeline capacity leases with Farmland. The Ñrst agreement, which is
accounted for as a direct Ñnancing lease, will expire on November 30, 2005 and the second agreement, which
is accounted for as an operating lease, will expire on April 30, 2007. Both leases contain options to extend the
agreement for another Ñve years. In addition, the Partnership has eight other capacity operating leases with
terms of four to Ñfteen years. All of the agreements provide for negotiated extensions.
Future minimum lease payments receivable under operating-type leasing arrangements as of
December 31, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):
2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Thereafter ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 8,925
8,395
6,377
3,333
3,023
17,138

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$47,191
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The net investment under direct Ñnancing leasing arrangements as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, are as
follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2002
2001

Total minimum lease payments receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Less: Unearned income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$20,154
9,923

$22,609
11,563

Recorded net investment in direct Ñnancing leases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$10,231

$11,046

As of December 31, 2002, the net investment in direct Ñnancing leases is classiÑed in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as $1.0 million current accounts receivable and $9.2 million noncurrent accounts receivable.
14.

Long-Term Incentive Plan

In February 2001, the General Partner adopted the Williams Energy Partners' Long-Term Incentive Plan
for Williams' employees who perform services for the Partnership and directors of the General Partner. The
General Partner subsequently amended and restated the Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2003. The Long-Term
Incentive Plan permits the granting of various types of awards, including units, options, phantom units and
bonus units but to-date only phantom units have been granted. The Long-Term Incentive Plan allows the
grant of awards up to an aggregate of 700,000 common units. The Long-Term Incentive Plan is administered
by the Compensation Committee of the General Partner's Board of Directors. In addition to units, members of
the General Partner's Board of Directors may receive phantom units as compensation for their director fees.
Members of the General Partner's Board of Directors received 873 units and 870 phantom units in 2001 and
3,344 units and 1,489 phantom units during 2002 as partial compensation for their services as board members.
In April 2001, the General Partner issued grants of 92,500 phantom units to certain key employees
associated with the Partnership's initial public oÅering in February 2001. These awards allowed for early
vesting if established performance measures were met prior to February 9, 2004. The Partnership met all of
these performance measures and all of the awards vested during 2002. The Partnership recognized
compensation expense of $2.1 million and $0.7 million associated with these awards in 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
In April 2001, the General Partner issued grants of 64,200 phantom units associated with the long-term
incentive compensation program. The actual number of units that will be awarded under this grant will be
determined by the Partnership in early 2004. At that time, the Partnership will assess whether certain
performance criteria have been met as of the end of 2003 and determine the number of units that will be
awarded, which could range from zero units up to a total of 128,400 units. These units are subject to forfeiture
if employment is terminated prior to vesting. These awards do not have an early vesting feature, except for a
change in control of the Partnership's General Partner or for speciÑc participants in the event of their death or
disability. In the event of a change of control of the General Partner, these awards will vest and payout
immediately at the number of units associated with achieving the highest performance level under the plan.
The Partnership is expensing compensation costs associated with these awards assuming the highest level of
performance will be achieved; accordingly, the Partnership recognized $1.5 million and $1.3 million of
compensation expense in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The fair market value of the phantom units associated
with this grant was $4.2 million and $5.4 million on December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
During 2002, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Partnership's General
Partner approved 22,650 phantom units associated with the 2002 long-term incentive compensation program.
The actual number of units that will be awarded under this grant will be determined by the Partnership in
early 2005. At that time, the Partnership will assess whether certain performance criteria have been met and
determine the number of units that will be awarded, which could range from zero units up to a total of
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45,300 units. These units are also subject to forfeiture if employment is terminated prior to the vesting date.
These awards do not have an early vesting feature, except in the event of a change in control of the
Partnership's General Partner or for speciÑc participants in the event of their death or disability. In the event
of a change of control of the General Partner, these awards will vest and payout immediately at the number of
units associated with achieving the highest performance level under the plan. The Partnership is expensing
compensation costs associated with these awards assuming 22,650 units will vest; accordingly, the Partnership
recorded incentive compensation expense of $0.2 million during 2002. Based on the closing price of $32.45 per
unit at December 31, 2002, these units were valued at $0.7 million.
In February 2003, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Partnership's General
Partner approved 52,825 phantom units associated with the 2003 long-term incentive compensation program.
The actual number of units that will be awarded under this grant will be determined by the Partnership in
early 2006. At that time, the Partnership will assess whether certain performance criteria have been met and
determine the number of units that will be awarded, which could range from zero units up to a total of
105,650 units. These units are also subject to forfeiture if employment is terminated prior to the vesting date.
These awards do not have an early vesting feature, except for (i) speciÑc participants in the event of their
death or disability or (ii) in the event a change in control of the Partnership's General Partner and the
participant is terminated for reasons other than cause within the two years following a change in control of the
General Partner, in which case the awards will vest and payout immediately at the highest performance level
under the plan. The value of these units on the date of grant was $1.9 million.
Certain employees of Williams dedicated to or otherwise supporting Williams Energy Partners L.P. also
receive stock-based compensation awards from Williams. Williams has several programs providing for
common-stock-based awards to employees and to non-employee directors. The programs permit the granting
of various types of awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock-appreciation rights, restricted
stock and deferred stock. The purchase price per share for stock options and the grant price for stockappreciation rights may not be less than the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
Depending upon terms of the respective plans, stock options generally become exercisable in one-third
increments each year from the date of the grant or after three or Ñve years, subject to accelerated vesting if
certain future Williams' stock prices or speciÑc Williams' Ñnancial performance targets are achieved. Stock
options expire 10 years after grant.
The following summary reÖects Williams' stock option activity for 2002, 2001 and 2000, for those
employees principally supporting Williams Energy Partners L.P. operations:
2002
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Options
Price

Outstanding Ì beginning of
year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 501,825
Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 191,120
Forfeited ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì
ExercisedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Ì

2001
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Options
Price

2000
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Options
Price

$33.04
10.53
Ì
Ì

405,813
108,303
(3,000)
(9,291)

$32.27
34.95
30.14
22.59

329,181
94,324
(109)
(17,583)

$28.40
43.05
34.54
17.76

Outstanding Ì ending of
year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

692,945

26.83

501,825

33.04

405,813

32.27

Exercisable at end of yearÏÏÏ

435,206

35.89

356,513

32.08

363,085

32.02
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The following summary provides information about outstanding and exercisable Williams' stock options,
held by employees principally supporting Williams Energy Partners L.P. operations, at December 31, 2002:

Options

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

$ 2.57 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$17.31 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$30.00 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
$46.06 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

76,600
153,119
110,328
352,898

$ 2.57
15.69
25.35
37.40

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

692,945

26.83

Range of Exercise Prices

$ 2.27
$12.22
$20.83
$31.56

to
to
to
to

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Life

9.9
7.7
5.1
7.1

years
years
years
years

7.2 years

The estimated fair value at the date of grant of options for Williams' common stock granted in 2002, 2001
and 2000, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, is as follows:
Weighted-average grant date fair value of options for Williams'
common stock granted during the year ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Assumptions:
Dividend yield ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Volatility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Risk-free interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Expected life (years) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

2002

2001

2000

$2.77

$11.08

$15.44

1.0%
56.3%
3.6%
5.0

1.9%
34.5%
4.8%
5.0

1.5%
31.0%
6.5%
5.0

Pro forma net income, assuming Williams Energy Partners L.P. had applied the fair-value method of
SFAS No. 123, ""Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation'' in measuring compensation costs beginning
with 2000 employee stock-based awards, are as follows (in thousands, except per unit amounts):
2002

2001

2000

Net income, as reportedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under
fair-value method for all awards, net of related tax eÅects ÏÏÏÏ

$99,153

$67,872

$48,902

Pro forma net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$98,840

$67,692

Basic net income per limited partner unit:
As reported ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

3.68

$

1.87

Pro formaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$

3.67

$

1.85

(313)

(180)

(903)
$47,999

Pro forma amounts for 2000 include the total compensation expense from the awards made in 2000, as
these awards fully vested in 2000 as a result of the accelerated vesting provisions. Pro forma amounts for 2001
include compensation expense from Williams' awards made in 2001. Pro forma amounts for 2002 include
compensation expense from Williams' awards made in 2001 and 2002. Because compensation expense from
stock options is recognized over the future years' vesting period for pro forma disclosure purposes, and
additional awards generally are made each year, pro forma amounts may not be representative of future years'
amounts.
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15.

Segment Disclosures

Management evaluates performance based upon segment proÑt or loss from operations, which includes
revenues from aÇliate and external customers, operating expenses, depreciation and aÇliate general and
administrative expenses. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 3 Ì
Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies. AÇliate revenues are accounted for as if the sales were to
unaÇliated third parties. AÇliate general and administrative costs associated with the assets owned at the
time of our initial public oÅering, other than equity-based incentive compensation, are based on the expense
limitations provided for in the Omnibus Agreement, and are allocated to the petroleum products terminals and
ammonia pipeline system segments based on their proportional percentage of revenues. AÇliate general and
administrative costs charged to Williams Pipe Line, other than equity-based incentive compensation, are
based on the expense limitations included in the Omnibus Agreement. Equity-based incentive compensation
expense was charged to the petroleum products terminals and ammonia pipeline system segments based on
proportional revenues. The Williams Pipe Line segment was not charged equity-based incentive compensation
expense in 2002 or prior periods because it was not acquired by the Partnership until 2002, and consequently
its employees did not participate in the Partnership's equity-based incentive compensation plan until 2003.
The Partnership's reportable segments are strategic business units that oÅer diÅerent products and
services. The segments are managed separately because each segment requires diÅerent marketing strategies
and business knowledge.
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2002
Petroleum
Ammonia
Williams
Products
Pipeline
Pipe Line
Terminals
System
Total
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Third party customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental indemniÑed by Williams ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate general and administrative expenses ÏÏÏ

$299,875
42,024
341,899
112,346
17,514
(15,176)
63,982
22,992
32,779

$ 62,874
16,569
79,443
35,619
(788)
768
Ì
11,447
8,921

$13,135
Ì
13,135
4,867
88
(92)
Ì
657
1,482

$ 375,884
58,593
434,477
152,832
16,814
(14,500)
63,982
35,096
43,182

Segment proÑtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$107,462

$ 23,476

$ 6,133

$ 137,071

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
GoodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions to long-lived assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$643,773
Ì
16,013

$434,942
22,295
20,792

$37,646
Ì
443

$1,116,361
22,295
37,248
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Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001
Petroleum
Ammonia
Williams
Products
Pipeline
Pipe Line
Terminals
System
Total
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Third party customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$284,174
78,371

Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental indemniÑed by Williams ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate general and administrative expenses ÏÏÏ

362,545
116,080
7,486
Ì
95,268
24,019
38,410

Segment proÑtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 81,282

$ 19,500

$ 8,537

$ 109,319

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
GoodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions to long-lived assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$705,115
Ì
24,232

$368,409
22,282
64,590

$31,035
Ì
330

$1,104,559
22,282
89,152

$ 55,611
15,899
71,510
33,170
3,477
(3,377)
Ì
11,099
7,641

$14,544
Ì
14,544
3,807
596
(359)
Ì
649
1,314

$ 354,329
94,270
448,599
153,057
11,559
(3,736)
95,268
35,767
47,365

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2000
Petroleum
Ammonia
Williams
Products
Pipeline
Pipe Line
Terminals
System
Total
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Third party customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$255,389
98,965

$ 43,367
17,415

$11,710
Ì

$ 310,466
116,380

Total revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Environmental indemniÑed by Williams ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Product purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate construction expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
AÇliate general and administrative expenses ÏÏÏ

354,354
100,544
10,866
Ì
94,141
1,025
22,413
39,243

60,782
28,272
1,224
Ì
Ì
Ì
8,688
10,351

11,710
3,993
Ì
Ì
Ì
Ì
645
1,612

426,846
132,809
12,090
Ì
94,141
1,025
31,746
51,206

Segment proÑtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$ 86,122

$ 12,247

$ 5,460

$ 103,829

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Additions to long-lived assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$731,654
32,697

$296,819
41,348

$21,686
401

$1,050,159
74,446

Non-cash charges for incentive compensation costs, included in 2002 and 2001 aÇliate general and
administrative expenses, were $3.1 million for the petroleum products terminal operations and $0.5 million for
the ammonia pipeline operations during 2002 and $1.7 million for the petroleum products terminal operations
and $0.3 million for the ammonia pipeline operations during 2001.
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16.

Commitments and Contingencies

WES has agreed to indemnify the Partnership against any covered environmental losses up to
$15.0 million relating to assets it contributed to the Partnership at the time of the initial public oÅering that
arose prior to February 9, 2001, that become known within three years after February 9, 2001, and that exceed
all amounts recovered or recoverable by the Partnership under contractual indemnities from third parties or
under any applicable insurance policies. Covered environmental losses are those non-contingent terminal and
ammonia system environmental losses, costs, damages and expenses suÅered or incurred by the Partnership
arising from correction of violations of, or performance of remediation required by, environmental laws in
eÅect at February 9, 2001, due to events and conditions associated with the operation of the assets and
occurring before February 9, 2001. Reimbursements from Williams relative to their environmental indemnities are received as remediation is performed. See Note 1 Ì Organization and Presentation Ì Recent
Developments relative to Williams. Changes in Williams' ability to perform on their indemnities could result
in the Partnership materially increasing its related aÇliate receivable reserves.
In connection with the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, WES agreed to indemnify the Partnership for
any breach of a representation or warranty that results in losses and damages of up to $110.0 million after the
payment of a $2.0 million deductible. With respect to any amount exceeding $110.0 million, WES will be
responsible for one-half of that amount up to $140.0 million. In no event will WES' liability under these
indemnities exceed $125.0 million. These indemniÑcation obligations will survive for one year, except that
those relating to employees and employee beneÑts will survive for the applicable statute of limitations and
those relating to real property, including title to WES' assets, will survive for ten years. This indemnity also
provides that the Partnership will be indemniÑed for an unlimited amount of losses and damages related to tax
liabilities. In addition, any losses and damages related to environmental liabilities that arose prior to the
acquisition will be subject only to a $2.0 million deductible, which was met during 2002, for claims made
within six years of our acquisition of Williams Pipe Line in April 2002. Williams has provided a performance
guarantee for the remaining amount of these environmental indemnities.
Estimated liabilities for environmental costs were $22.3 million and $16.9 million at December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2001, respectively. These estimates, provided on an undiscounted basis, were determined
based primarily on data provided by a third-party environmental evaluation service and Williams' internal
environmental engineers. These liabilities have been classiÑed as current or non-current based on management's estimates regarding the timing of actual payments. Management estimates that expenditures associated with these environmental remediation liabilities will be paid over the next Ñve years. Receivables from
Williams or its aÇliates of $22.9 million and $5.1 million at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001,
respectively, associated with indemniÑed environmental costs have been recognized as aÇliate accounts
receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Reimbursements from Williams and its aÇliates relative to
their environmental indemnities are received as remediation is performed. See Note 1 Ì Organization and
Presentation Ì Recent Developments relative to Williams.
In conjunction with the 1999 acquisition of the Gulf Coast marine terminals from Amerada Hess
Corporation (""Hess''), Hess has disclosed to the Partnership all suits, actions, claims, arbitrations, administrative, governmental investigation or other legal proceedings pending or threatened, against or related to the
assets acquired by the Partnership, which arise under environmental law. In the event that any pre-acquisition
releases of hazardous substances at the Partnership's Corpus Christi and Galena Park, Texas and Marrero,
Louisiana marine terminal facilities were unknown at closing but subsequently identiÑed by the Partnership
prior to July 30, 2004, the Partnership will be liable for the Ñrst $2.5 million of environmental liabilities, Hess
will be liable for the next $12.5 million of losses and the Partnership will assume responsibility for any losses in
excess of $15.0 million. Also, Hess agreed to indemnify the Partnership through July 30, 2014, against all
known and required environmental remediation costs at the Corpus Christi and Galena Park, Texas marine
terminal facilities from any matters related to pre-acquisition actions. Hess has indemniÑed the Partnership
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for a variety of pre-acquisition Ñnes and claims that may be imposed or asserted against the Partnership under
certain environmental laws. At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Partnership had accrued $0.6 million for
costs that may not be recoverable under Hess' indemniÑcation.
During 2001, the Partnership recorded an environmental liability of $2.3 million at its New Haven,
Connecticut facility, which was acquired in September 2000. This liability was based on third-party
environmental engineering estimates completed as part of a Phase II environmental assessment, routinely
required by the State of Connecticut to be conducted by the purchaser following the acquisition of a petroleum
storage facility. The Partnership completed a Phase III environmental assessment at this facility during 2002
and the results of that assessment are being evaluated. The environmental liabilities at the New Haven facility
are not expected to change materially once the evaluation of the assessment is completed, which should be by
the end of the Ñrst quarter of 2003. The seller of these assets agreed to indemnify the Partnership for certain of
these environmental liabilities. In addition, the Partnership purchased insurance for up to $25.0 million of
environmental liabilities associated with these assets, which carries a deductible of $0.3 million. Any
environmental liabilities at this location not covered by the seller's indemnity and not covered by insurance are
covered by the WES environmental indemniÑcations to the Partnership, subject to the $15.0 million
limitation.
During 2001, the Environmental Protection Agency (""EPA''), pursuant to Section 308 of the Clean
Water Act, preliminarily determined that Williams may have systemic problems with petroleum discharges
from pipeline operations. The inquiry primarily focused on Williams Pipe Line, which was subsequently
acquired by the Partnership. The response to the EPA's information request was submitted during November
2001. Any claims the EPA may assert relative to this inquiry would be covered by the Partnership's
environmental indemniÑcations from Williams.
WNGL will indemnify the Partnership for right-of-way defects or failures in the ammonia pipeline
easements for 15 years after the initial public oÅering closing date. WES has also indemniÑed the Partnership
for right-of-way defects or failures associated with the marine terminal facilities at Galena Park and Corpus
Christi, Texas and Marrero, Louisiana for 15 years after the initial public oÅering closing date.
On May 31, 2002, Farmland and several of its subsidiaries Ñled for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection.
Farmland, the largest customer on the ammonia pipeline system, is also a customer of Williams Pipe Line.
The Partnership received approximately $2.3 million in payments from Farmland during the preference period
prior to Farmland's Ñling for bankruptcy. Management believes that the Partnership will not be required to
reimburse these funds to the bankruptcy trustee because they were received in the ordinary course of business
with Farmland. The Partnership's receivable balance from Farmland at December 31, 2002, was $30 thousand. The Partnership also has two Ñve-year petroleum pipeline lease capacity agreements with Farmland. The
Ñrst of these agreements, which expires on November 30, 2005, requires an annual payment by Farmland of
$1.2 million on each November 30th during the contract period. The second agreement, which expires on
April 30, 2007, is for $0.5 million annually and is invoiced to Farmland on a monthly basis. Farmland has
remained current on both of these lease capacity agreements.
The Partnership is party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints arising in the ordinary
course of business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate resolution of all claims, legal actions and
complaints after consideration of amounts accrued, insurance coverage or other indemniÑcation arrangements
will not have a material adverse eÅect upon the Partnership's future Ñnancial position, results of operations or
cash Öows.
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17.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Summarized quarterly Ñnancial data is as follows (in thousands, except per unit amounts).

2002
RevenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Basic net income per limited partner unitÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Diluted net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏ
2001
RevenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Total costs and expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Basic and diluted net income per limited partner
unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$102,648
73,896
21,126
0.73
0.72

$104,124
67,433
24,628
1.05
1.05

$113,376
79,077
25,833
0.90
0.90

$114,329
77,000
27,566
0.95
0.95

$107,676
84,818
13,053

$108,890
75,376
22,887

$118,200
89,871
18,150

$113,833
89,215
13,782

0.31

0.64

0.49

0.42

Basic and diluted net income for the second, third and fourth quarters of 2002 include the impact of the
Partnership's ownership of Williams Pipe Line. Fourth quarter 2002 net income included a gain of $1.1 million
on the sale of the inland terminals. Second, third and fourth quarter net income for 2002 was impacted by the
amortization of debt placement costs of $7.1 million associated with the short-term note assumed at the time
of the Williams Pipe Line acquisition by the Partnership and interest expense associated with that note.
Fourth quarter results were impacted by the amortization of the $2.1 million debt placement costs associated
with the extension of the maturity date of the Williams Pipe Line short-term note and interest expense on the
new $480.0 million borrowings by Williams Pipe Line.
Basic and diluted net income for the Ñrst quarter of 2001 is calculated on the Limited Partners' interest in
net income applicable for the period after February 9, 2001, through the end of the quarter. Revenues and
expenses in 2001 were impacted by the acquisition of two terminals from TransMontaigne in June 2001 and
the Gibson terminal from Geonet in October 2001. See Note 5 Ì Acquisitions and Divestitures. Second
quarter 2001 revenues were impacted by a $1.0 million throughput deÑciency billing to an ammonia pipeline
customer. Fourth quarter net income included a gain of $1.1 million on the sale of the Meridian, Mississippi
terminal. Interest expense for 2001 reÖects the payment and forgiveness of the predecessor company's aÇliate
debt and new borrowings by the Partnership. Net income was also impacted by incentive compensation costs
of $2.0 million during 2001.
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18.

Distributions

Distributions paid by the Partnership during 2002 and 2001 are as follows (in thousands, except per unit
amounts):
Per Unit Cash
Distribution
Amount

Total Cash
Distribution

ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$0.5900
0.6125
0.6750
0.7000

$ 6,861
7,162
19,222
20,128

Total cash distributionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$2.5775

$53,373

05/15/01(a) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
08/14/01 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
11/14/01 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$0.2920
0.5625
0.5775

$ 3,385
6,520
6,694

Total cash distributionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$1.4320

$16,599

Date Cash Distribution Paid

02/14/02
05/15/02
08/14/02
11/14/02

(a) This distribution represented the prorated minimum quarterly distribution for the 50-day period following
the initial public oÅering closing date, which included February 10, 2001 through March 31, 2001.
On February 14, 2003, the Partnership paid cash distributions of $0.725 per unit on its outstanding
common, subordinated and Class B units to unitholders of record at the close of business on January 31, 2003.
The total distribution, including distributions paid to the General Partner on its equivalent units, was
$21.0 million.
19.

Net Income Per Unit

The following table provides details of the basic and diluted net income per unit computations (in
thousands, except per unit amounts):
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
Income
Units
Per Unit
(Numerator)
(Denominator)
Amount

Limited partners' interest in incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Basic net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EÅect of dilutive restrictive unit grants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$80,713
$80,713
Ì

21,911
57

$3.68
0.01

Diluted net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$80,713

21,968

$3.67

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
Income
Units
Per Unit
(Numerator)
(Denominator)
Amount

Limited partners' interest in income applicable to the
period after February 9, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Basic net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
EÅect of dilutive restrictive unit grants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$21,217
$21,217
Ì

11,359
11

$1.87
Ì

Diluted net income per limited partner unit ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$21,217

11,370

$1.87
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Units reported as dilutive securities are related to restricted unit grants associated with the one-time
initial public oÅering award (see Note 14 Ì Long-Term Incentive Plan).
20.

Partners' Capital

Of the 13,679,694 common units outstanding at December 31, 2002, 12,600,000 are held by the public,
with the remaining 1,079,694 held by aÇliates of the Partnership. All of the 5,679,694 subordinated units and
7,830,924 Class B units are held by aÇliates of the Partnership.
During the subordination period, the Partnership can issue up to 2,839,847 additional common units
without obtaining unitholder approval. In addition, the General Partner can issue an unlimited number of
common units as follows:
‚ upon exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option;
‚ upon conversion of the subordinated units;
‚ under employee beneÑt plans;
‚ upon conversion of the general partner interest and incentive distribution rights as a result of a
withdrawal of the General Partner;
‚ in the event of a combination or subdivision of common units;
‚ in connection with an acquisition or a capital improvement that increases cash Öow from operations per
unit on a pro forma basis; or
‚ if the proceeds of the issuance are used exclusively to repay up to $40.0 million of our indebtedness.
The subordination period will end when the Partnership meets certain Ñnancial tests provided for in the
Partnership agreement but it generally cannot end before December 31, 2005.
The limited partners holding common units of the Partnership have the following rights, among others:
‚ right to receive distributions of the Partnership's available cash within 45 days after the end of each
quarter;
‚ right to elect the board members of the Partnership's General Partner;
‚ right to remove Williams as the General Partner upon a 66.7% majority vote of outstanding
unitholders;
‚ right to transfer common unit ownership to substitute limited partners;
‚ right to receive an annual report, containing audited Ñnancial statements and a report on those Ñnancial
statements by our independent public accountants within 120 days after the close of the Ñscal year end;
‚ right to receive information reasonably required for tax reporting purposes within 90 days after the
close of the calendar year;
‚ right to vote according to the limited partners' percentage interest in the Partnership on any meeting
that may be called by the General Partner; and
‚ right to inspect our books and records at the unitholders' own expense.
The voting rights associated with the election of the board members of the Partnership's General Partner
and the right to remove Williams as the General Partner will be voided in the event of a foreclosure in a
Williams-related bankruptcy proceeding.
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Net income is allocated to the General Partner and limited partners based on their proportionate share of
cash distributions for the period. Cash distributions to the General Partner and limited partners are made
based on the following table:
Percentage of
Distributions
Limited
General
Partners
Partner

Quarterly Distribution Amount (per unit)

Up to $0.578ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $0.578 up to $0.656 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $0.656 up to $0.788 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Above $0.788 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

98
85
75
50

2
15
25
50

In the event of a liquidation, all property and cash in excess of that required to discharge all liabilities will
be distributed to the partners in proportion to the positive balances in their respective tax-basis capital
accounts.
21.

Registration Statement (Unaudited)

During 2002 the Partnership Ñled a shelf registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission to register common units representing limited partner interests and debt securities, including
guarantees. The Partnership, exclusive of its investment in all of its wholly-owned operating limited
partnerships and subsidiaries, has no independent assets or operations. If a series of debt securities is
guaranteed, such series will be guaranteed by all of the Partnership's operating limited partnerships and
subsidiaries on a full and unconditional and joint and several basis.
22.

Other Events

On February 14, 2003, the Partnership paid cash distributions of $0.725 per unit on its outstanding
common, subordinated and Class B units to unitholders of record at the close of business on January 31, 2003.
The total distribution, including distributions paid to the General Partner on its equivalent units, was
$21.0 million.
On February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner and
all of its limited partnership interests. It is uncertain what form this potential transaction may take and
management cannot currently determine what impact this sale may have on the on-going operations of the
Partnership.
In March 2003, the Partnership reached an agreement with Williams Energy Marketing & Trading to
terminate their storage capacity contract, which extended through September 30, 2004, at the Galena Park,
Texas marine terminal facility. The Partnership will receive $3.0 million from Williams Energy Marketing &
Trading, which will be under no further obligation under this long-term agreement to pay for tank storage or
any other ancillary services at the Galena Park, Texas facility.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
PART III
Item 10. Partnership Management
Our General Partner manages our operations and activities. Unitholders do not directly or indirectly
participate in our management or operations. Our General Partner is liable, as a general partner, for all of our
debts (to the extent not paid from our assets), except for speciÑc non-recourse indebtedness or other
obligations. Whenever possible, our General Partner intends to cause us to incur indebtedness or other
obligations that are non-recourse.
Three members of the Board of Directors of our General Partner serve on a ConÖicts Committee to
review speciÑc material matters that the Board of Directors believes may involve conÖicts of interest including
bankruptcy-related decisions involving us and our General Partner or as speciÑed in our agreement of limited
partnership or the General Partner's limited liability company agreement. When a potential conÖict arises, the
ConÖicts Committee will determine if the involved transaction is fair and reasonable to us. The members of
the ConÖicts Committee are not oÇcers or employees of our General Partner or directors, oÇcers or
employees of its aÇliates. Any matters approved by the ConÖicts Committee are conclusively deemed to be
fair and reasonable to us, approved by all of our partners, and not a breach by our General Partner of any
duties it may owe us or our unitholders. In addition, the members of the ConÖicts Committee also serve on the
Audit Committee and the Compensation Committee. The Audit Committee, among other things, reviews our
external Ñnancial reporting, retains our independent auditors, approves services provided by the independent
auditors and reviews procedures for internal auditing and the adequacy of our internal accounting controls.
The Compensation Committee oversees long-term incentive compensation decisions for the oÇcers and key
employees of WEG GP LLC as well as compensation plans adopted by the General Partner.
As is commonly the case with publicly-traded limited partnerships, we are managed and operated by the
oÇcers of, and are subject to the oversight of the directors of, our General Partner. All of our personnel are
employees of Williams or its subsidiaries.
Some oÇcers of our General Partner may spend a substantial amount of time managing the business and
aÅairs of Williams and its aÇliates. These oÇcers may face a conÖict regarding the allocation of their time
between our business and the other business interests of Williams. Our General Partner causes its oÇcers to
devote as much time as is necessary for the proper conduct of our business and aÅairs. Don R. Wellendorf
currently devotes approximately 100% of his time to our operations. John D. Chandler currently devotes 100%
of his time to us. Phillip D. Wright currently devotes approximately 2% of his time to us and Craig R. Rich
currently devotes approximately 90% of his time to our operations. Jay A. Wiese currently devotes
approximately 100% of his time to our operations, Michael N. Mears currently devotes approximately 90% of
his time to our operations, and Richard A. Olson currently devotes approximately 80% of his time to us. The
Board of Directors of the General Partner is presently composed of seven directors.
Directors and Executive OÇcers of WEG GP LLC
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the executive oÇcers and members of
the Board of Directors of our General Partner. Executive oÇcers are elected for one-year terms. Our General
Partner's limited liability company agreement provides for three classes of directors. Keith E. Bailey and
William W. Hanna are the initial members of Class I, whose terms will expire at the 2003 annual meeting of
limited partners and on each third succeeding year thereafter. Phillip D. Wright and Don J. Gunther are the
initial members of Class II, whose terms will expire at the 2004 annual meeting of limited partners and on
each third succeeding year thereafter. Steven J. Malcolm, Don R. Wellendorf, and William A. Bruckmann III
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are the initial members of Class III, whose terms will expire at the 2005 annual meeting of limited partners
and on each third succeeding year thereafter.
Name

Age

Position with General Partner

Phillip D. Wright ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Don R. WellendorfÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. ChandlerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. Mears ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Craig R. Rich ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Keith E. BaileyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
William A. Bruckmann, III ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Don J. Gunther ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
William W. HannaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

47
50
33
40
45
46
52
60
51
64
66
54

Chairman of the Board, Director
President and Chief Executive OÇcer, Director
Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer
Vice President, Transportation
Vice President, Pipeline Operations
Vice President, Terminal Services and Development
General Counsel
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Phillip D. Wright has served as a director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors of our General
Partner since November 15, 2002. He served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of our former general
partner from May 13, 2002 to November 15, 2002 and served as a director of the former general partner from
February 9, 2001 to November 15, 2002. From January 7, 2001 to May 13, 2002 he served as President and
Chief Operating OÇcer of our former general partner. Mr. Wright is currently the Chief Restructuring OÇcer
and a Senior Vice President of Williams and has served in that capacity since November 21, 2002. From
September 2001 until March 2003, Mr. Wright served as President and Chief Executive OÇcer of Williams
Energy Services, LLC (""Williams Energy Services''). He also served as Senior Vice President of Enterprise
Development and Planning for Williams Energy Services from November 1996 to September 2001. From
1989 to 1996 he held various senior management positions with Williams Pipe Line Company and Williams
Energy Ventures, Inc. Prior to 1989, he spent 13 years working for Conoco, Inc.
Don R. Wellendorf has served as a director and the President and Chief Executive OÇcer of our General
Partner since November 15, 2002. Mr. Wellendorf also served as President and Chief Executive OÇcer of our
former general partner from May 13, 2002 until November 15, 2002, and served as a director from February 9,
2001 until November 15, 2002. He served as Treasurer and Chief Financial OÇcer of our former general
partner from January 7, 2001 to July 24, 2002 and as Senior Vice President of our former general partner from
January 7, 2001 until May 13, 2002. From 1998 to March 2003, he served as Vice President of Strategic
Development and Planning for Williams Energy Services. Prior to Williams' merger with MAPCO Inc. in
1998, he was Vice President and Treasurer for MAPCO from 1995 to 1998. From 1994 to 1995, he served as
Vice President and Corporate Controller for MAPCO. He began his career in 1979 as an accountant with
MAPCO and held various accounting positions with MAPCO from 1979 to 1994.
John D. Chandler has served as the Chief Financial OÇcer and Treasurer of our General Partner since
November 15, 2002, and served in that capacity for our former general partner from July 24, 2002 until
November 15, 2002. He was Director of Financial Planning and Analysis for Williams Energy Services and
served in that capacity from September 2000 to July 2002. He also served as Director of Strategic
Development for Williams Energy Services from 1999 to 2000 and served as Manager of Strategic Analysis
from 1998 to 1999. Prior to Williams' merger with MAPCO Inc. in 1998, he was a Manager of Business
Development for MAPCO. He began his career in 1992 as an accountant with MAPCO in a professional
development rotational program and held various accounting and Ñnance positions with MAPCO from 1992 to
1998.
Michael N. Mears has served as the Vice President, Transportation of our General Partner since
November 15, 2002 and served in that capacity for our former general partner from April 22, 2002 until
November 15, 2002. He is currently Vice President of Williams Petroleum Services, LLC and has served in
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that capacity since March 2002. Mr. Mears served as Vice President of Transportation and Terminals for
Williams Pipe Line Company from 1998 to 2002. He also served as Vice President, Petroleum Development
for Williams Energy Services from 1996 to 1998. Prior to 1996, Mr. Mears served as Director of Operations
Control and Business Development for Williams Pipe Line Company from 1993 to 1996. From 1985 to 1993
he worked in various engineering, project analysis, and operations control positions for Williams Pipe Line
Company.
Richard A. Olson has served as the Vice President, Pipeline Operations of our General Partner since
November 15, 2002 and served in that capacity for our former general partner from April 22, 2002 until
November 15, 2002. He is currently Vice President of Mid Continent Operations for Williams Energy
Services and has served in that capacity since 1996. Mr. Olson was Vice President of Operations and Terminal
Marketing for Williams Pipe Line Company from 1996 to 1998, Director of Southern Operations from 1992 to
1996, Director of Product Movements from 1991 to 1992, and Central Division Manager from 1990 to 1991.
From 1981 to 1990, Mr. Olson held various positions with Williams Pipe Line Company.
Jay A. Wiese has served as the Vice President, Terminal Services and Development of our General
Partner since November 15, 2002, and served in that capacity for our former general partner from January 7,
2001 until November 15, 2002. He was Managing Director, Terminal Services and Commercial Development
for Williams Energy Services and has served in that capacity from 2000 to January 2001. From 1995 to 2000,
he served as Director, Terminal Services and Commercial Development of Williams' terminal distribution
business. Prior to 1995, Mr. Wiese held various operations, marketing and business development positions
with Williams Pipe Line Company, Williams Energy Ventures, Inc. and Williams Energy Services. He joined
Williams Pipe Line Company in 1982.
Craig R. Rich has served as the General Counsel of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and
served in that capacity for our former general partner from January 7, 2001 until November 15, 2002. Since
1996, he has also served as Associate General Counsel of Williams Energy Services. From 1993 to 1996, he
served as General Counsel of Williams' midstream gas and liquids division. Prior to that time, Mr. Rich was a
Senior Attorney representing Williams Gas Pipeline-West. He joined Williams in 1985.
Keith E. Bailey has served as a director of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and served as a
director of our former general partner from February 9, 2001 until November 15, 2002. Since 2001, Mr. Bailey
has also served as a Director for Aegis Insurance Services Inc. He served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive OÇcer of Williams from 1994 to 2002. He served as President of Williams
from 1992 to 1994 and as Executive Vice President of Williams from 1986 to 1992.
William A. Bruckmann, III has served as a director of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and
served as a director of our former general partner from May 9, 2001 until November 15, 2002. Mr. Bruckmann
also serves as a member of the Board's Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and is the Chairman
of the ConÖicts Committee. Since September 9, 2002, Mr. Bruckmann has been employed with UBS Paine
Webber as a Financial Advisor. He is a former managing director at Chase Securities, Inc. and has more than
25 years of banking experience, starting with Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company, where he became a
senior oÇcer in 1985. Mr. Bruckmann later served as managing director, sector head of the Manufacturers
Hanover's gas pipeline and midstream practices through the acquisition of Manufacturers Hanover by
Chemical Bank and the acquisition of Chemical Bank by Chase Bank.
Don J. Gunther has served as a director of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and served as a
director of our former general partner from May 9, 2001 until November 15, 2002. Mr. Gunther also serves as
a member of the Board's Audit Committee, the ConÖicts Committee and is the Chairman of the
Compensation Committee. He is a retired vice chairman of Bechtel Group Inc. He began his career with
Bechtel in 1961 and was promoted to a variety of positions, including Bechtel's executive committee in 1989;
president of Bechtel Petroleum in 1984; president of Europe, Africa, Middle East and southwest Asia
operations in 1992; and president of Bechtel Americas in 1995. He was named vice chairman in July 1997,
retiring from the position in 1998.
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William W. Hanna has served as a director of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and served
as a director of our former general partner from January 18, 2002 until November 15, 2002. Mr. Hanna also
serves as a member of the Board's Compensation Committee, the ConÖicts Committee and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. He is a retired vice chairman of Koch Industries where he held management and
leadership positions since he commenced employment in 1968. In 1981, he became executive vice president of
energy products for Koch. In 1984, he was elected to the board of directors, and in 1987, was named president
and chief operating oÇcer. In 1999, he was named vice chairman.
Steven J. Malcolm has served as a director of our General Partner since November 15, 2002 and served
as a director of our former general partner from February 9, 2001 until November 15, 2002. He served as the
Chief Executive OÇcer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of our former general partner from January 7,
2001 until May 13, 2002. He is currently President and Chief Executive OÇcer of Williams and has served in
the capacity as President since September 2001, and as Chief Executive OÇcer since January 2002. He has
also served as the Chairman of Williams' Board of Directors since May 2002. From 1998 to September 2001,
he served as President and Chief Executive OÇcer of Williams Energy Services. From 1994 to 1998, he
served as Senior Vice President for Williams' midstream gas and liquids division, and from 1993 to 1994,
worked as Senior Vice President of the mid-continent region for Williams Field Services. From 1984 to 1993,
he held various positions with Williams Natural Gas Company, including director of business development,
director of gas management and vice president of gas management and supply.
Annual Meeting of Limited Partners
The Partnership's agreement of limited partnership, as amended, provides for an annual meeting of the
limited partners for the election of directors to the Board of Directors of our General Partner. Our General
Partner has not yet announced the date and location of the 2003 annual meeting.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires directors, executive oÇcers and persons
who beneÑcially own more than 10% of our units to Ñle certain reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the New York Stock Exchange concerning their beneÑcial ownership of our equity securities.
The Securities and Exchange Commission regulations also require that a copy of all such Section 16(a) forms
Ñled must be furnished to us by the executive oÇcers, directors and greater than 10% unitholders. Based on a
review of the copies of such forms and amendments thereto with respect to 2002, we have determined that,
due to an administrative oversight, one transaction involving Keith E. Bailey that should have been reported
on a Form 4 was not timely reported. The transaction was reported on a Form 5 shortly after discovery of the
oversight.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table
We have no employees. We are managed by the oÇcers of our General Partner. Subject to maximum
reimbursement obligations that were met in 2002, we reimburse Williams for direct and indirect general and
administrative expenses incurred on our behalf, as discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Following are the approximate percentages of the direct and
indirect compensation expense of each named executive oÇcer allocated to us by Williams: Mr. Wellendorf,
80% for 2002 and 75% for 2001; Mr. Malcolm, 2% for 2002 and 3% for 2001; Mr. Chandler, 100% for 2002;
Mr. Mears, 80% for 2002; Mr. Olson, 72% for 2002; and Mr. Wiese, 100% for 2002 and 95% for 2001. The
following table represents compensation expense allocated to our General Partner by Williams for the Ñscal
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year ended December 31, 2002, for the Chief Executive OÇcer, former Chief Executive OÇcer and each of
the four other most highly compensated executive oÇcers of our General Partner.

Name and Principal Position

Don R. WellendorfÏÏÏÏÏÏ
President and Chief
Executive OÇcer
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Former Chief Executive
OÇcer
John D. ChandlerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Chief Financial OÇcer
and Treasurer
Michael N. Mears ÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Vice President,
Transportation
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Vice President, Pipeline
Operations
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Vice President, Terminal
Services and
Development

Allocated Annual
Compensation
Year
Salary(1) Bonus(1)

Allocated
Long-Term
Compensation
WMB Stock
Option Shares

4,240
4,289

Long-Term
Incentive Plan
Payouts(2)

All Other
Compensation(3)

2002
2001

$187,832
149,004

$86,458
86,964

2002
2001

17,423
15,360

-019,089

2002

117,445

53,984

2,200

2002

143,251

51,444

8,400

10,372

2002

123,258

49,158

7,560

9,333

2002
2001

154,098
139,474

55,743
66,861

3,139
3,881

13,500(4)
5,248

$439,400

$8,604
1,585

439,400

259
337

169,000

10,167

523,900

11,433
2,383

(1) Represents salary and bonus expense allocated to us by Williams.
(2) Represents vesting of phantom units granted on April 19, 2001 in association with our initial public
oÅering. These units were subject to early vesting if certain performance measures were met. These
measures were met, resulting in one-half of the units vesting on February 14, 2002 and the remaining
one-half vesting on November 15, 2002. The payout of these awards are valued as follows: (i) one-half at
$36.55, the closing common unit price on the vesting date February 14, 2002 and (ii) one-half at $31.05,
the closing common unit price on the vesting date November 15, 2002.
(3) Represents expense allocated to us by Williams for contributions made to the Investment Plus Plan, a
deÑned contribution plan subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 on behalf of
each named executive oÇcer.
(4) Represents options granted in both February and November 2002. The November 2002 grant was an
acceleration of the 2003 grant.

104

Williams Stock Option Grants in the Last Fiscal Year
The following table provides certain information concerning the grant by Williams of Williams' stock
options during the last Ñscal year to the named executive oÇcers. The number of options granted, percent of
total options granted and the grant date present values reported below reÖect the portion allocated to us by
Williams according to the approximate allocation percentages as described in the Summary Compensation
Table.

Name

Date
Granted

Don R. Wellendorf ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

02/11/02
02/11/02
11/27/02

John D. Chandler ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

02/11/02
09/18/02

Michael N. MearsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

02/11/02
02/11/02
02/11/02

Number of
WMB
Options
Granted

4,240
4,000
9,500
13,500
2,100
100
2,200
8,400
7,560
3,139

Individual Grants(1)
Percent of
Total
Options
Granted to
Williams
Exercise
Employees in
Price (per
Fiscal Year
share)

0.03%
0.03%
0.06%
0.09%
0.01%
0.00%
0.01%
0.05%
0.05%
0.02%

Expiration
Date

$15.86
$15.86
$ 2.58

02/11/12
02/11/12
11/27/12

$15.86
$ 2.27

02/11/12
09/18/12

$15.86
$15.86
$15.86

02/11/12
02/11/12
02/11/12

Grant Date
Present
Value(2)

$31,673
$29,880
$14,060
$43,940
$15,687
$ 148
$15,835
$62,748
$56,473
$23,448

(1) Options granted in 2002 are subject to accelerated vesting if certain future Williams' stock prices or
speciÑc Williams' Ñnancial performance targets are achieved. Williams granted these options under its
1996 Stock Plan, its Stock Plan for Non-oÇcer Employees and its 2002 Incentive Plan.
(2) The grant date present value is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and is based on
assumptions about future stock price volatility, risk-free rate of return and dividend yield over the life of
the options. The following weighted average values were determined based on the above grants. The
weighted average volatility of the expected market price of Williams' Common Stock is 36.7%. The
weighted average risk-free rate of return is 5.2%. The model assumes a dividend yield of 1% and an
exercise date at the end of the contractual term in 2012. The model does not take into account that the
stock options are subject to vesting restrictions and that executives cannot sell their options. The actual
value, if any, that may be realized by an executive will depend on the market price of Williams' Common
Stock on the date of exercise. The dollar amounts shown are not intended to forecast possible future
appreciation in Williams' Common Stock price.
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Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Values
The following table provides certain information on exercises of Williams' stock options during the last
Ñscal year by the named executive oÇcers and the value of such oÇcers' unexercised options at December 31,
2002. The number of unexercised options and the value of unexercised in-the-money options below reÖect the
portion allocated to us by Williams according to the approximate allocation percentages as described in the
Summary Compensation Table.
Option Exercises of Williams' Stock in Last Fiscal Year
and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

Name

Don R. Wellendorf ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. MalcolmÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. Chandler ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. Mears ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. OlsonÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Shares
Acquired
On Exercise

Value
Realized

0
0
0
0
0
0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

Number of Unexercised
Options at Fiscal Year-End
Exercisable
Unexercisable

1,526
1,166
0
0
0
1,362

Value of Unexercised In-theMoney Options at Fiscal
Year-End(1)
Exercisable
Unexercisable

7,290
15,832
2,200
8,400
7,560
5,862

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$

0
1,140
43
0
0
0

(1) Based on the closing price of Williams' Common Stock reported in the table entitled ""New York Stock
Exchange Composite Transactions'' contained in The Wall Street Journal for December 31, 2002
($2.70 per share), less the exercise price. The values shown reÖect the value of options accumulated over
periods of up to ten years. Such values had not been realized as of December 31, 2002 and may not be
realized. In the event the options are exercised, their value will depend on the market price of Williams'
Common Stock on the date of exercise.
Long-Term Incentive Plan-Awards in Last Fiscal Year
The following table provides certain information concerning the grant of phantom units under the
Williams Energy Partners' Long-Term Incentive Plan during the last Ñscal year to the named executive
oÇcers:

Name

Don R. Wellendorf ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. Chandler ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. Mears ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. WieseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Number of
Units(1)

6,000
0
2,500
0
0
2,000

Performance or
Other Period Until
Maturation or
Payout

26 months
26 months

26 months

Estimated Future Payouts under
Non-Unit Price-Based Plans
Threshold
Target
Maximum
# Units
# Units
# Units

3,000
0
1,250
0
0
1,000

6,000
0
2,500
0
0
2,000

12,000
0
5,000
0
0
4,000

(1) Represents phantom units of deferred limited interest granted on October 23, 2002 (Market values at
date of grant are noted as follows): Mr. Wellendorf, 6,000 units valued at $198,960; Mr. Chandler,
2,500 units valued at $82,900; and Mr. Wiese, 2,000 units valued at $66,320. At the end of the vesting
period, the number of units awarded under this grant will be determined based on an assessment of
whether certain performance criteria have been met. The number of units could range from zero to two
times the number of units granted.
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Retirement Plan
The Partnership participates in Williams' pension plan, which is a noncontributory, tax-qualiÑed deÑned
beneÑt plan subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The pension plan generally
includes salaried employees who have completed one year of service. Our named executive oÇcers participate
in the pension plan on the same terms as other full-time employees.
EÅective April 1, 1998, Williams converted its pension plan from a Ñnal average pay plan to a cash
balance pension plan. Each participant's accrued beneÑt as of that date was converted to a beginning account
balance. Account balances are credited with an annual Williams contribution and quarterly interest
allocations. Each year, Williams credits an employee's pension account an amount equal to the sum of a
percentage of eligible pay and a percentage of eligible pay greater than the Social Security wage base. We
reimburse Williams for these contributions according to the approximate allocation percentages described in
the Summary Compensation Table, subject to maximum reimbursement obligations as discussed in Part II,
Item 7 Ì ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations''.
According to the plan, eligible pay is the sum of salary and certain bonuses. Interest is credited to account
balances quarterly at a rate determined annually in accordance with the terms of the plan. The percentage
used in the calculation of the annual contribution is based upon the employee's age according to the following
table:
Percent of Eligible
Pay Greater than the
Social Security
Wage Base

Percentage of All
Eligible Pay(1)

Age

Less than 30 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
30-39 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
40-49 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
50 or over ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

4.5%
6%
8%
10%

°
°
°
°

1%
2%
3%
5%

(1) For employees, including the named executive oÇcers, who were active employees and plan participants
on March 31,1998, and April 1, 1998, the percentage of all eligible pay is increased by an amount equal to
0.3% multiplied by the participant's total years of beneÑt service prior to March 31, 1998.
The normal retirement beneÑt is a monthly annuity based on a participant's account balance as of beneÑt
commencement. Normal retirement age is 65. Early retirement may commence as early as age 55. At
retirement, employees are entitled to receive a single-life annuity or one of several optional forms of payment
having an equivalent actuarial value to the single-life annuity.
Participants who were age 50 or older as of March 31, 1998, were grandfathered under a transitional
provision that gives them the greater of the beneÑt payable under the cash balance formula or the Ñnal average
pay formula based on all years of service and compensation.
The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, currently limits the pension beneÑts that can be paid
from a tax-qualiÑed deÑned beneÑt plan, such as the pension plan, to highly compensated individuals. These
limits prevent such individuals from receiving the full pension beneÑt based on the same formula as is
applicable to other employees. As a result, Williams has adopted an unfunded supplemental retirement plan to
provide a supplemental retirement beneÑt equal to the amount of such reduction to eligible executives,
including the named executive oÇcers, whose beneÑt payable under the pension plan is reduced by Internal
Revenue Code limitations.
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Total unallocated estimated annual retirement beneÑts payable at normal retirement age under the cash
balance formula from both the tax qualiÑed pension plan and the supplemental retirement plan are as follows:
Estimated Annual
BeneÑts Payable at
Normal Retirement Age

Name of Individual
Don R. WellendorfÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. ChandlerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. Mears ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. WieseÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

$142,931
$338,038
$111,942
$148,304
$125,774
$101,205

Director Compensation
Directors who are employees of Williams or its aÇliates receive no additional compensation for service on
our general partner's Board of Directors or committees of the Board. In 2002, non-management directors,
including directors who are not employees of Williams or its aÇliates, received an annual retainer of $10,000
and 400 common units; and the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and ConÖicts
Committee received an annual retainer of $1,000. Non-management directors also received $1,000 for each
Board meeting attended and $500 for each Audit Committee, Compensation Committee or ConÖicts
Committee meeting attended. EÅective October 2002, the meeting fee for each Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and ConÖicts Committee meeting attended increased to $1,000. EÅective January 1, 2003,
non-management directors receive an annual retainer of $16,000 and common units valued at $16,000 on the
grant date and the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and ConÖicts Committee
each receive an annual retainer of $2,000. Non-management directors also receive $1,000 for each Board,
Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and ConÖicts Committee meeting attended. In lieu of individual
meeting fees for Committee meetings related to the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line and in recognition of
the extensive time investment related to the acquisition, members of the ConÖicts Committee also received
$25,000 in 2002 in addition to their annual retainer, meeting fee received for each Board and Committee
meeting attended (other than ConÖicts Committee meetings related to the acquisition) and the annual
retainer for the Chairmen of the Committees.
Non-management directors may elect to receive all or any part of cash fees in the form of common units
or phantom units. Phantom units may be deferred to any subsequent year or until such individual ceases to be
a director. Non-management directors may also elect to defer receipt of their annual unit retainer to any
subsequent year or until such individual ceases to be a director. Distribution equivalents are paid on phantom
units and may be received in cash or reinvested in additional phantom units. One director elected to defer fees
under this plan in 2002.
In addition, each non-management director will be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses in connection
with attending meetings of the Board of Directors or its committees. Each director will be fully indemniÑed by
us for actions associated with being a director to the extent permitted under Delaware law.
Employment Agreements and Executive Severance Program
Neither we nor Williams has any separate employment agreements with the named executive oÇcers.
However, Williams provides severance beneÑts for Messrs. Wellendorf, Mears and Olson through Williams'
executive severance program. The program provides severance beneÑts if one of these oÇcers is terminated
involuntarily other than for cause, disability or the sale of a business. The beneÑts include:
‚ severance pay equal to one month of the oÇcer's then current monthly base salary for each full,
completed year of service with Williams, with a minimum of six months and a maximum of twelve
months, payable in bi-weekly payments;
‚ six months of outplacement services; and
‚ continuation of health and welfare beneÑts at active employee rates for the covered severance period, if
oÇcer elects COBRA.
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Amounts payable under this program are in lieu of any payments that may otherwise be payable under any
other severance plan. Subject to maximum reimbursement obligations that were met in 2002, we reimburse
Williams for direct and indirect general and administrative expenses incurred on our behalf, as discussed in
Part II, Item 7 Ì ""Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations''.
As such, amounts payable under this program could be allocated to us by Williams according to the
percentage of time these persons devote to our matters.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
The following table provides information concerning the various types of awards that may be issued from
the Williams Energy Partners' Long-Term Incentive Plan, including units, options, phantom units and bonus
units as of December 31, 2002.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Equity Compensation plans approved
by security holders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Equity Compensation plans not
approved by security holders ÏÏÏÏÏ
TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Weighted-Average Exercise
Price of Outstanding
Options, Warrants and
Rights(2)

Number of Securities
Remaining
Available for Future
Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans
(Excluding Securities
ReÖected in the
1st Column of this Table)

123,748(3)

Ì

518,291

Ì
123,748

Ì
Ì

Ì
518,291

Number of Securities
to be Issued upon
Exercise/Vesting of
Outstanding Options,
Warrants and
Rights(1)

(1) Units delivered pursuant to an award consist, in whole or in part, of units acquired on the open market,
from any aÇliate, the Partnership, any other person, or any combination of the foregoing. We have the
right to issue new units as part of the Long-Term Incentive Plan.
(2) Units awarded pursuant to the William Energy Partners' Long-Term Incentive Plan are granted without
payment by the participant. Taxes are withheld from the award to cover the participant's mandatory tax
withholdings.
(3) Includes 36,898 units that have vested but for which participants elected to defer issuance until a future
date.
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Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management
The following table sets forth the number of units beneÑcially owned by each person who is known to us
to beneÑcially own 5% or more of a class of units, by directors and named executive oÇcers of our General
Partner, and by all directors and executive oÇcers as a group as of February 28, 2003. We obtained certain
information in the table from Ñlings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Name of BeneÑcial Owner
Williams Energy Services, LLC(1)
Williams Natural Gas Liquids,
Inc.(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Williams GP LLC(1) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Goldman Sachs Group Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Keith E. Bailey ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
William A. Bruckmann, III ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Don J. Gunther ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
William W. Hanna ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Don R. Wellendorf ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. Chandler ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. MearsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
All Directors and Executive OÇcers
as a Group (12 persons) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

*

Common
Units

Percentage
Percentage of
of Common Subordinated Subordinated
Percentage of
Units
Units
Units
Class B Units Class B Units

757,193(2)

5.5%

4,589,193(2)

80.0%

322,501(2)

2.4%

1,090,501(2)

20.0%

19.6%

6.1%
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

5.2%
28.8%
3.1%
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

*

*

7,830,924(2)
833,850(3)
3,540
3,251
2,485(4)
1,648
10,893(5)
6,196
1,801
500
0
5,203
45,452(4)(5)

Percentage
of Total
Units

100.0%

represents less than 1%

(1) Williams Energy Services, LLC, Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc., and Williams GP LLC are direct
or indirect subsidiaries of Williams and Williams may be deemed the beneÑcial owner of units held by
such subsidiaries. The address of each of each of these entities is One Williams Center, Tulsa, Oklahoma,
74104.
(2) Except for the right to vote on a matter that would have a material adverse eÅect on the rights of holders
of Class B units, such units do not have any voting rights. Under the terms of the Partnership's agreement
of limited partnership, Williams Energy Services, LLC and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. are
permitted in the aggregate to vote not more than 20% of the total number of outstanding units entitled to
vote at a meeting of the limited partners for the election of directors to the Board of Directors of our
General Partner. For this purpose, each subordinated unit held by those parties will count as 0.5 of a vote
and 0.5 of a unit. As of February 28, 2003, Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids
would be entitled to collectively cast approximately 3,303,908 votes at such a meeting out of the
approximately 16,519,541 votes that would be deemed outstanding for purposes of the meeting. Our
limited partnership agreement also provides for other limitations on the voting rights of subordinated
units.
(3) A Ñling with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 10, 2003, indicates that Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co., a direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc., a broker or dealer registered under Section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and an investment advisor registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, are or
may be deemed to be the beneÑcial owners of the number of Common Units indicated in the table. The
address of Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. is 85 Broad Street, New York, New
York 10004.
(4) Includes 2,359 Common Units which represent deferred compensation granted pursuant to the Williams
Energy Partners' Long-Term Compensation Plan subject to the right of conversion within 60 days. The
deferred units subject to conversion cannot be voted or invested.
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(5) Does not include any units owned by Williams Energy Services, LLC, Williams Natural Gas Liquids,
Inc., and Williams GP LLC, which may be deemed to be beneÑcially owned by Mr. Malcolm in his
capacity as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive OÇcer for Williams.
The following table sets forth, as of February 28, 2003, the amount of shares of Common Stock of
Williams, the corporate parent of the sole member of our General Partner, beneÑcially owned by each of the
General Partner's directors, each of the General Partner's executive oÇcers named in the Summary
Compensation Table, and by all directors, nominees for director and executive oÇcers of the General Partner
as a group.
Name of BeneÑcial Owner

Common Stock

Keith E. Bailey ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Don R. Wellendorf ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Steven J. Malcolm ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
John D. Chandler ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Michael N. MearsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Richard A. Olson ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Jay A. Wiese ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
All Directors and Executive oÇcers as a group
(12 persons)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
*

Percentage of Common Stock

2,085,480(1)
48,682(1)
469,455(1)
16,051(1)
82,273(1)
85,911(1)
49,183(1)

*
*
*
*
*
*
*

3,342,651(1)

*

Represents less than 1%

(1) Includes the following shares which represent stock options granted under the Williams' stock option
plans which are exercisable within 60 days and thus deemed to be beneÑcially owned by the following
individuals: Mr. Bailey, 381,243 shares; Mr. Wellendorf, 39,891 shares; Mr. Malcolm, 399,772 shares;
Mr. Chandler, 12,210; Mr. Mears, 71,363; Mr. Olson, 68,311; and Mr. Wiese, 33,183. The shares subject
to option cannot be voted or invested.
Changes in Control
Williams GP LLC, Williams Energy Services, LLC and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. have
pledged all of their units in us to a collateral trustee under debt instruments to which Williams and certain of
its aÇliates are debtor parties. In addition, Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids have
pledged all of their respective membership interests in the General Partner and Williams GP LLC, the former
general partner, to the collateral trustee and Williams pledged its membership interest in Williams Energy
Services and all of its stock in Williams Natural Gas Liquids to the trustee. If the Partnership units and the
membership interests in Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids are transferred to these
lenders as a result of a default with respect to such debt instruments, these holders would be able to elect all of
the members of the General Partners' Board of Directors. In addition, changes made to the partnership
agreement that limited the voting rights of the subordinated units and Class B units would be of no further
force and eÅect and the voting rights of such units would revert back to those in place prior to such changes.
Also, on February 20, 2003, Williams announced its intention to divest its interest in our General Partner and
all of its limited partnership interests.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Steve Malcolm, Phil Wright, and Don Wellendorf serve or have served in various capacities as executive
oÇcers of Williams, Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids. For more information with
respect to each individual's roles with these aÇliated entities, please read ""Item 10. Partnership Management Ì Directors and Executive OÇcers of WEG GP LLC.''
Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Company and Williams ReÑning & Marketing, Williams
Midstream Marketing & Risk Management, subsidiaries of Williams and aÇliates of ours, are signiÑcant
customers, representing 9%, 2% and less than 1%, respectively, of our total revenues for the year ended
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December 31, 2002. The services we provide them are conducted pursuant to various contracts. For additional
information relating to our commercial agreements with Williams and its aÇliates, please read ""Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Ì Related Party
Transactions.''
AÇliates of Williams own 1,079,694 common units, 7,830,924 Class B units and 5,679,694 subordinated
units representing an approximate aggregate ownership interest in us of 55%, including their 2% general
partner interest. The General Partner's ability, as general partner, to manage and operate us eÅectively gives
the General Partner the right to veto some actions of ours and to control our management. For more
information about the limited partnership interest in us held by aÇliates, please read ""Item 12. Security
Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters Ì Security
Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management.''
Distributions and Payments to the General Partner and its AÇliates
The following table summarizes the distributions and payments to be made by us to our General Partner
and its aÇliates in connection with our formation, ongoing operation and liquidation of Williams Energy
Partners. These distributions and payments were determined by and among aÇliated entities and are not the
result of arm's length negotiations.
Formation Stage
The consideration received by our
General Partner and its aÇliates,
Williams Energy Services and
Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.,
for the transfer of the aÇliates'
interests in the subsidiaries and a
capital contribution ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

1,679,694 common units and 5,679,694 subordinated units;
a combined 2% general partner interest in Williams Energy Partners L.P. and Williams OLP, L.P.;
the incentive distribution rights; and
$166.5 million of the net proceeds of our initial public oÅering of
the common units and the borrowings under the credit facility. In
addition, the net proceeds of $12.1 million from the exercise of the
underwriters' over-allotment option in our initial public oÅering
were used to redeem 600,000 common units from Williams Energy
Services, an aÇliate of the General Partner, as partial reimbursement for capital expenditures incurred by Williams Energy Services for assets we own after the initial public oÅering.
Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.,
aÇliates of Williams, transferred to us their interests in the entities
that became our subsidiaries in exchange for 1,679,694 common
units, 5,679,694 subordinated units, the incentive distribution rights
and the combined 2% general partner interest described above. The
common units and subordinated units received by Williams Energy
Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. were valued at
the $21.50 initial public oÅering price. In addition, the overallotment was exercised for 600,000 common units. Those units
were redeemed from the 1,357,193 common units initially owned
by Williams Energy Services. After the redemption of these units,
aÇliates of the Partnership owned 1,079,694 common units.
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Operational Stage
Distributions of available cash to our
General Partner and its aÇliatesÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Cash distributions will generally be made 98% to the unitholders,
including to aÇliates of the General Partner as holders of common
units and subordinated units, and 2% to the General Partner.
However, distributions that exceed the speciÑed target levels will
result in our General Partner receiving increasing percentages of
the distributions, up to 50% of the distributions above the highest
target level.
Assuming we have suÇcient available cash to continue to pay
distributions on all of our outstanding units for four quarters at our
current distribution level of $0.725 per unit per quarter, our
General Partner and its aÇliates would receive annual distributions
of approximately $1.6 million on the combined 2% general partner
interest, $3.7 million of incentive distributions and a distribution of
approximately $42.3 million on their common, Class B and subordinated units.

Payments to our General Partner and
its aÇliatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Withdrawal or removal of our general
partner ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Our general partner and its aÇliates will not receive any management fee or other compensation for the management of our
operations. Our general partner and its aÇliates will be reimbursed,
however, for direct and indirect expenses incurred on our behalf.
Per the Omnibus Agreement, in 2002 we were charged $6.7 million, for general and administrative expenses, for those assets
associated with our initial public oÅering and $21.7 million for
those assets associated with Williams Pipe Line ($30.0 million on
an annualized basis), excluding expenses associated with the longterm incentive compensation plans.
If our general partner withdraws in violation of the partnership
agreement or is removed for cause, a successor general partner has
the option to buy the General Partner interests and incentive
distribution rights for a cash price equal to fair market value. If our
General Partner withdraws or is removed under any other circumstances, the departing general partner has the option to require the
successor general partner to buy the departing general partner's
interests and its incentive distribution rights for a cash price equal
to fair market value.
If either of these options is not exercised, the departing general
partner's interests and incentive distribution rights will automatically convert into common units equal to the fair market value of
those interests. In addition, we will be required to pay the departing
general partner for expense reimbursements.

Liquidation Stage
Liquidation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

Upon our liquidation, the partners, including our General Partner,
will be entitled to receive liquidating distributions according to
their particular capital account balances.
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Rights of Our General Partner
Our General Partner and its aÇliates own 1,079,694 common units, 7,830,924 Class B units and
5,679,694 subordinated units, representing a 55% ownership interest in us, including their 2% general partner
interest. Through the General Partner's ability, as general partner, to manage and operate our business and
Williams aÇliates' ownership of 1,079,694 common units and all of the outstanding Class B and subordinated
units, the General Partner controls the management of our business.
Omnibus Agreement
We entered into an agreement in February 2001 with Williams and its aÇliates and our General Partner,
that governs:
‚ potential competition among us and the other parties to the agreement;
‚ reimbursement of general and administrative expenses;
‚ indemniÑcation for environmental liabilities and right-of-way defects or failures;
‚ the grant of a license for use of the ATLAS 2000 software system and other intellectual property; and
‚ reimbursement of maintenance capital expenditures.
This agreement was amended on three separate occasions in 2002 to: (i) clarify general and administrative expenses and rights to software, (ii) add Williams Pipe Line to certain provisions of the agreement as a
result of the Williams Pipe Line acquisition in April 2002 and (iii) further clarify license rights and
restrictions for software use. Through a change of control or with 90 days written notice, Williams can
terminate its obligations to provide services to us, which would also eliminate Williams' obligations under the
general and administrative expense limitation included in the Omnibus Agreement.
Competition
Williams and its aÇliates have agreed that they will not own or operate assets that are used to transport,
store or distribute ammonia in the United States or terminal and store reÑned petroleum products in the
continental United States. In addition, Williams and its aÇliates agreed that they will be prohibited from
engaging in or acquiring any business transporting reÑned products to a delivery point within a 50-mile radius
of any of our reÑned product delivery points before April 2005 or transport reÑnery grade butane from several
reÑneries on the northern most part of the Williams Pipe Line system. We refer to these assets below as
restricted assets. Williams will not be prohibited from owning or operating the following restricted assets:
‚ any restricted assets owned, leased or operated by Williams at the closing of our initial public oÅering
on February 9, 2001;
‚ any restricted assets acquired after February 9, 2001 with a fair market value not greater than
$20.0 million;
‚ any restricted assets constructed by Williams after February 9, 2001 with construction costs not greater
than $20.0 million; and
‚ any restricted assets constructed or acquired by Williams after February 9, 2001 that are connected to
assets owned by Williams or are primarily related to and located within 50 miles of Williams' reÑnery
in Memphis, Tennessee.
In return, we agreed that until April 2005, we would not engage in NGL transportation to a delivery point
within a 50-mile radius of a NGL delivery point owned or supplied by Williams as of April 2002 and we
agreed to use Mid-America Pipeline for propane and NGL blendstocks into certain markets.
If either Williams or we acquire or construct restricted assets other than those identiÑed above and with a
cost in excess of $20 million, the party in breach of the agreement shall oÅer to sell such asset to the other
party within six months of acquiring or completing construction. If we and Williams are unable to agree on the
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terms of the sale, we and Williams will appoint a mutually-agreed-upon, nationally-recognized investment
banking Ñrm to determine the fair market value of the restricted assets. Once the investment bank submits its
valuation of the restricted assets to Williams and us, the party not in breach of the Omnibus Agreement will
have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase the business in accordance with the following process:
‚ if the valuation of the investment bank is in the range between the proposed sale and purchase values of
Williams and us, the party not in breach will have the right to purchase the business at the valuation
submitted by the investment bank.
‚ if the valuation of the investment bank is less than the proposed purchase value submitted by the party
not in breach, that party we will have the right to purchase the business for the amount they submit.
‚ if the valuation of the investment bank is greater than the proposed sale value submitted by the party in
breach, the party not in breach will have the right to purchase the business for the amount submitted
by the party in breach.
If either party elects not to purchase any restricted assets, the other party will be permitted to own or
operate such assets without limitation.
General and Administrative Expenses
In 2003, we will reimburse the General Partner or Williams for general and administrative expenses of
not more than $6.9 million associated with assets at the time of our initial public oÅering and $31.0 million
associated with Williams Pipe Line's operations, excluding expenses associated with our Long-Term Incentive
Plan. Management estimates that actual general and administrative costs required for our operation could be
signiÑcantly higher due in part to increases in insurance premiums, increased general and administrative costs
for the ammonia pipeline associated with the new Enterprise operating contract and the $0.3 million of
increased general and administrative expense associated with the Rio Grande contract. The amount associated
with the assets at the time of our initial public oÅering may increase during the next eight years as follows:
‚ in each year after 2003, the amount of general and administrative expenses, excluding expenses
associated with the Long-Term Incentive Plan, allocated to us by Williams and the General Partner
may increase by no more than the greater of 7% or the percentage increase in the consumer price index
for that year.
‚ if we make an acquisition, our general and administrative expense allocation may increase by the
amount of these expenses included in our valuation of the business we acquire.
The amount of general and administrative expense associated with assets acquired from Williams Pipe
Line may increase during the next nine years as follows:
‚ in each year after 2003, the amount of general and administrative expenses, excluding expenses
associated with the Long-Term Incentive Plan, allocated to us by Williams and the General Partner
may increase by no more than the lesser of 2.5% or the percentage increase in the consumer price index
for that year.
‚ if we make an acquisition, our general and administrative expense allocation may increase by the
amount of these expenses included in our valuation of the business we acquire.
Through a change of control or with 90 days written notice, Williams can terminate its obligations to
provide services to us, which would also eliminate Williams' obligations under the general and administrative
expense limitation included in the Omnibus Agreement.
IndemniÑcation
Williams Energy Services and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. have agreed to indemnify us for up to
$15.0 million for environmental liabilities that exceed the amounts covered by the seller indemnities and
insurance coverage. The indemnity applies to environmental liabilities arising from conduct prior to
February 9, 2001 and discovered within three years of February 9, 2001. Liabilities resulting from a change in
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law after February 9, 2001 are excluded from this indemnity. Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. will
indemnify us for right-of-way defects or failures in our ammonia pipeline for 15 years after the date of
February 9, 2001. Williams Energy Services will indemnify us for right-of-way defects or failures associated
with our marine terminal facilities at Galena Park and Corpus Christi, Texas and Marrero, Louisiana for
15 years after February 9, 2001.
In connection with the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line, Williams Energy Services agreed to indemnify
us for any breach of a representation or warranty that results in losses and damages of up to $110.0 million
after the payment of a $2.0 million deductible. With respect to any amount exceeding $110.0 million, WES
will be responsible for one-half of that amount up to $140.0 million. In no event will WES' liability under
these indemnities exceed $125.0 million. These indemniÑcation obligations will survive for one year, except
that those relating to employees and employee beneÑts will survive for the applicable statute of limitations and
those relating to real property, including title to WES' assets, will survive for ten years. This indemnity also
provides that we will be indemniÑed for an unlimited amount of losses and damages related to tax liabilities. In
addition, any losses and damages related to environmental liabilities that arose prior to the acquisition will be
subject only to a $2.0 million deductible, which was met during 2002, for claims made within six years of our
acquisition of Williams Pipe Line in April 2002. Williams has provided a performance guarantee for the
remaining amount of these environmental indemnities.
ATLAS 2000 License
Williams and its aÇliates have granted a license to us for the use of the ATLAS 2000 software system
(and to permit customers to use the system to track inventories) and other intellectual property, including our
logo, for as long as Williams controls our General Partner, at no charge. In the event of a termination of the
Omnibus Agreement, we may, at our option, require Williams to transfer all right, title and interest in the
ATLAS system to Williams Pipe Line at no cost.
Maintenance Capital Expenditures
In 2003 and 2004, Williams has agreed to reimburse us for maintenance capital expenditures associated
with Williams Pipe Line's operations in excess of $19.0 million per year, subject to a maximum aggregate
reimbursement of $15.0 million over this two year period. At our current projected maintenance capital
expenditure plans, we do not anticipate any reimbursements from Williams under this agreement.
Item 14. Controls and Procedures
An evaluation of the eÅectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
(as deÑned in rule 13a-14(c) of the Securities Exchange Act) was performed within the 90 days prior to the
Ñling date of this report. This evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including the General Partner's Chief Executive OÇcer and Chief Financial OÇcer. Based
upon that evaluation, the General Partner's Chief Executive OÇcer and Chief Financial OÇcer concluded
that these disclosure controls and practices are eÅective.
A self-evaluation of our internal controls was performed during January and February 2003. We
concluded that there were no signiÑcant deÑciencies or material weaknesses in its internal controls. There have
been no signiÑcant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal
controls subsequent to the date of the certifying oÇcers' most recent evaluation.
We have furnished as a correspondence Ñling to the Securities and Exchange Commission the
certiÑcations of this report by the General Partner's Chief Executive OÇcer and Chief Financial OÇcer as
required pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) 1 and 2.
Page

Covered by reports of independent auditors:
Consolidated statements of income for the three years ended December 31, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2002 and 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated statements of cash Öows for the three years ended December 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏ
Consolidated statement of partners' capital ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Notes 1 through 22 to Consolidated Ñnancial statementsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ
Not covered by reports of independent auditors:
Quarterly Ñnancial data (unaudited) Ì See Note 17 to consolidated Ñnancial statements
Registration statement Ì See Note 21ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ

63
64
65
66
67
96
99

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present or is not present
in amounts suÇcient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is
included in the Ñnancial statements and notes thereto.
(a) 3 and (c). The exhibits listed below are Ñled as part of this annual report.
Exhibit
Number

Description

3(a)* Ì Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Williams OLP, L.P. dated
February 9, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 3(b) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
3(b)*Ì Reorganization Agreement dated March 4, 2002, among Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
OLP, L.P., Williams GP LLC, and Williams GP Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 3(d) to Form 10-K Ñled
March 7, 2002).
3(c) Ì CertiÑcate of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated August 30, 2000 and
Amendment to the CertiÑcate of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated
November 15, 2002.
3(d)*Ì Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners
L.P. dated September 30, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).
3(e)* Ì Amendment No. 1 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
3(f)* Ì Amendment No. 2 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
3(g)* Ì Limited Liability Company Agreement of WEG GP LLC dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as
Exhibit 3.3 to Form 8-K Ñled November 19, 2002).
3(h) Ì First Amendment to Limited Liability Company Agreement of WEG GP LLC dated March 3,
2003.
3(i)* Ì Contribution Agreement dated April 11, 2002 between Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
GP LLC, and Williams Energy Services, LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K Ñled April 19,
2002).
10(a)* Ì Credit Agreement dated February 6, 2001, between Williams OLP, L.P., Bank of America, N.A.,
Lehman Commercial Paper, Inc., and Suntrust Bank, including Amendment No. 1 dated July 31,
2001, and Amendment No. 2 dated July 31, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-K Ñled
March 7, 2002).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10(b)*Ì Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated February 9, 2001, between Williams
Energy Partners L.P.; Williams OLP, L.P.; Williams GP LLC; Williams Energy Services, LLC;
Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.; Williams NGL, LLC; Williams Terminal Holdings, L.P.;
Williams Terminal Holdings, L.L.C.; Williams Ammonia Pipeline, L.P. and Williams Bio-Energy,
LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10(b) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(c)* Ì Omnibus Agreement dated February 9, 2001, between Williams Companies, Inc.; Williams
Energy Services, LLC; Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.; Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC;
Williams Information Services Corporation; Williams Energy Partners L.P.; Williams OLP, L.P.
and Williams GP LLC, and Amendment 1 to the Omnibus Agreement dated January 28, 2002
(Ñled as Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(d)*Ì Purchase and Sale Agreement dated October 18, 2001, between Geonet Gathering, Inc. and
Williams Terminals Holdings, L.P., including Exhibits A, B, C and D (Ñled as Exhibit 10(d) to
Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(e)* Ì Products Terminalling Agreement dated November 1, 2001, between Williams Terminals
Holdings, L.P. and Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Company (Ñled as Exhibit 10(e) to
Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(f)* Ì Facilities Sale Agreement dated June 30, 2001, between Transmontaigne, Inc. and Williams
Terminals Holdings, L.P., including Schedules 2.1(a) and 2.1(b) and (c) (Ñled as Exhibit 10(f)
to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(g) Ì Second Amended and Restated Williams Energy Partners Long-Term Incentive Plan.
10(h)*Ì Services Agreement dated September 30, 2002, between Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Williams Petroleum Services, L.L.C., and
Williams Energy Services, LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).
10(i)* Ì Third Amendment to Omnibus Agreement dated September 30, 2002, between The Williams
Companies, Inc., Williams Energy Services, LLC, Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc., Williams
Pipe Line Company, LLC, Williams Information Technology, Inc. (formerly Williams
Information Services Corporation), Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams GP LLC, and
Williams OLP, L.P. (Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).
10(j)* Ì Note Purchase Agreement dated October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(k)*Ì Security Agreement dated as of October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(l)* Ì Collateral Agency Agreement dated October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(m)*Ì Assignment, Assumption and Amendment Agreement dated November 15, 2002, between
Williams GP LLC, WEG GP LLC, Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams Energy Services,
LLC, and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
10(n) Ì Credit Agreement dated April 11, 2002, among Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC, Williams
Energy Partners L.P., the lenders thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent
(the ""Credit Agreement'').
10(o)*Ì First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 8, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q
Ñled November 14, 2002).
21
Ì Subsidiaries of WEG GP LLC and Williams Energy Partners L.P.
23
Ì Consent of Independent Auditor.
24
Ì Power of Attorney together with certiÑed resolution.
99
Ì WEG GP LLC consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002 and notes thereto.
* Each such exhibit has heretofore been Ñled with the Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the
Ñling indicated and is incorporated herein by reference.
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(c) Reports on Form 8-K.
On October 24, 2002, we Ñled a report on Form 8-K under Item 5 reporting that we had extended
the maturity of our short-term loan associated with the acquisition of Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC
until November 27, 2002, and were negotiating long-term debt Ñnancing to retire the short-term loan
within the timeframe of the extension. We also Ñled as an exhibit under Item 7 a press release
announcing the information reported under Item 5.
On November 19, 2002, we Ñled a report on Form 8-K under Item 5 reporting amendments to our
partnership agreement, the establishment of a new general partner and matters regarding the conÑguration of the new General Partner's board of directors. We also Ñled as exhibits under Item 7 Amendment
No. 1 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners
L.P., Amendment No. 2 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Williams Energy Partners L.P., the Limited Liability Company Agreement of WEG GP LLC, and an
Assignment, Assumption and Amendment Agreement dated as of November 15, 2002, entered into by
and between Williams GP LLC, WEG GP LLC, Williams Energy Services, LLC, Williams Natural Gas
Liquids, Inc. and us.
On October 29, 2002; November 4, 2002; November 15, 2002; November 25, 2002; and December 6, 2002; we furnished reports on Form 8-K under Item 9.
(d) We do not own any partially-owned companies.
Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds
On April 11, 2002, we issued 7,830,924 Class B units representing limited partner interests to Williams
GP LLC. The securities, valued at $304.4 million, were issued as partial payment for the acquisition of
Williams Pipe Line. We have the right to redeem the Class B units for cash based on the 15-day average
closing price of the common units prior to the redemption date. If the Class B units are not redeemed by
April 11, 2003, upon the request of the holders of the Class B units and approval of the holders of a majority of
the common units voting at a meeting of the unitholders, the Class B units will convert into common units. If
the approval of the conversion by the common unitholders is not obtained within 120 days of this request, the
holders of the Class B units will be entitled to receive distributions with respect to its Class B units, on a per
unit basis, equal to 115% of the amount of distributions paid on a common unit. These securities are exempt
from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have
duly caused this report to be signed on our behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WILLIAMS ENERGY PARTNERS L.P.
(Registrant)

By: WEG GP LLC, its General Partner

By:

/s/

CRAIG R. RICH
Craig R. Rich
Attorney-in-fact

Date: March 21, 2003
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on our behalf and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

DON R. WELLENDORF*
Don R. Wellendorf

President, Chief Executive OÇcer
and Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

/s/

JOHN D. CHANDLER*
John D. Chandler

Treasurer and Chief Financial OÇcer
of WEG GP LLC, General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

/s/

PHILLIP D. WRIGHT*
Phillip D. Wright

Chairman of the Board and Director
of WEG GP LLC, General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

/s/

STEVEN J. MALCOLM*
Steven J. Malcolm

Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

KEITH E. BAILEY*
Keith E. Bailey

Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

WILLIAM A. BRUCKMANN, III*
William A. Bruckmann, III

Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

/s/

/s/

/s/

/s/

DON J. GUNTHER*
Don J. Gunther
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/s/

*By:

Signature

Title

Date

WILLIAM W. HANNA*
William W. Hanna

Director of WEG GP LLC,
General Partner of Williams Energy
Partners L.P.

March 21, 2003

/s/

CRAIG R. RICH
Craig R. Rich
Attorney-in-fact

March 21, 2003
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Don R. Wellendorf, President and Chief Executive OÇcer of WEG GP LLC, the General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Williams Energy Partners L.P.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of operations and cash Öows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;
b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of this annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and
c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data and have identiÑed
for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and
6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to signiÑcant
deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

DON R. WELLENDORF
Don R. Wellendorf
President and Chief Executive OÇcer of
WEG GP LLC, General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P.
/s/

Date: March 21, 2003
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I, John D. Chandler, Treasurer and Chief Financial OÇcer of WEG GP LLC, the General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Williams Energy Partners L.P.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the Ñnancial statements, and other Ñnancial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the Ñnancial condition, results of operations and cash Öows
of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;
4. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as deÑned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant
and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;
b) evaluated the eÅectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the Ñling date of this annual report (the ""Evaluation Date''); and
c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the eÅectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
5. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
a) all signiÑcant deÑciencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
aÅect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report Ñnancial data and have identiÑed
for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
signiÑcant role in the registrant's internal controls; and
6. The registrant's other certifying oÇcers and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
signiÑcant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could signiÑcantly aÅect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to signiÑcant
deÑciencies and material weaknesses.

JOHN D. CHANDLER
John D. Chandler
Treasurer and Chief Financial OÇcer of
WEG GP LLC, General Partner of
Williams Energy Partners L.P.
/s/

Date: March 21, 2003
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number

Description

3(a)* Ì Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Williams OLP, L.P. dated
February 9, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 3(b) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
3(b)*Ì Reorganization Agreement dated March 4, 2002, among Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
OLP, L.P., Williams GP LLC, and Williams GP Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 3(d) to Form 10-K Ñled
March 7, 2002).
3(c) Ì CertiÑcate of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated August 30, 2000 and
Amendment to the CertiÑcate of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated
November 15, 2002.
3(d)*Ì Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Williams Energy Partners
L.P. dated September 30, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).
3(e)* Ì Amendment No. 1 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
3(f)* Ì Amendment No. 2 to Second Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of
Williams Energy Partners L.P. dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
3(g)* Ì Limited Liability Company Agreement of WEG GP LLC dated November 15, 2002 (Ñled as
Exhibit 3.3 to Form 8-K Ñled November 19, 2002).
3(h) Ì First Amendment to Limited Liability Company Agreement of WEG GP LLC dated March 3,
2003.
3(i)* Ì Contribution Agreement dated April 11, 2002 between Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
GP LLC, and Williams Energy Services, LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K Ñled April 19,
2002).
10(a)* Ì Credit Agreement dated February 6, 2001, between Williams OLP, L.P., Bank of America, N.A.,
Lehman Commercial Paper, Inc., and Suntrust Bank, including Amendment No. 1 dated July 31,
2001, and Amendment No. 2 dated July 31, 2001 (Ñled as Exhibit 10(a) to Form 10-K Ñled
March 7, 2002).
10(b)*Ì Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated February 9, 2001, between Williams
Energy Partners L.P.; Williams OLP, L.P.; Williams GP LLC; Williams Energy Services, LLC;
Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.; Williams NGL, LLC; Williams Terminal Holdings, L.P.;
Williams Terminal Holdings, L.L.C.; Williams Ammonia Pipeline, L.P. and Williams Bio-Energy,
LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10(b) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(c)* Ì Omnibus Agreement dated February 9, 2001, between Williams Companies, Inc.; Williams
Energy Services, LLC; Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc.; Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC;
Williams Information Services Corporation; Williams Energy Partners L.P.; Williams OLP, L.P.
and Williams GP LLC, and Amendment 1 to the Omnibus Agreement dated January 28, 2002
(Ñled as Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(d)*Ì Purchase and Sale Agreement dated October 18, 2001, between Geonet Gathering, Inc. and
Williams Terminals Holdings, L.P., including Exhibits A, B, C and D (Ñled as Exhibit 10(d) to
Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(e)* Ì Products Terminalling Agreement dated November 1, 2001, between Williams Terminals
Holdings, L.P. and Williams Energy Marketing & Trading Company (Ñled as Exhibit 10(e) to
Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(f)* Ì Facilities Sale Agreement dated June 30, 2001, between Transmontaigne, Inc. and Williams
Terminals Holdings, L.P., including Schedules 2.1(a) and 2.1(b) and (c) (Ñled as Exhibit 10(f)
to Form 10-K Ñled March 7, 2002).
10(g) Ì Second Amended and Restated Williams Energy Partners Long-Term Incentive Plan.
10(h)*Ì Services Agreement dated September 30, 2002, between Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams
GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Williams Petroleum Services, L.L.C., and
Williams Energy Services, LLC (Ñled as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).

Exhibit
Number

Description

10(i)* Ì Third Amendment to Omnibus Agreement dated September 30, 2002, between The Williams
Companies, Inc., Williams Energy Services, LLC, Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc., Williams
Pipe Line Company, LLC, Williams Information Technology, Inc. (formerly Williams
Information Services Corporation), Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams GP LLC, and
Williams OLP, L.P. (Ñled as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q Ñled November 14, 2002).
10(j)* Ì Note Purchase Agreement dated October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(k)*Ì Security Agreement dated as of October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(l)* Ì Collateral Agency Agreement dated October 31, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.8 to Form 10-Q Ñled
November 14, 2002).
10(m)*Ì Assignment, Assumption and Amendment Agreement dated November 15, 2002, between
Williams GP LLC, WEG GP LLC, Williams Energy Partners L.P., Williams Energy Services,
LLC, and Williams Natural Gas Liquids, Inc. (Ñled as Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K Ñled
November 19, 2002).
10(n) Ì Credit Agreement dated April 11, 2002, among Williams Pipe Line Company, LLC, Williams
Energy Partners L.P., the lenders thereto, and Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent
(the ""Credit Agreement'').
10(o)*Ì First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated October 8, 2002 (Ñled as Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q
Ñled November 14, 2002).
21
Ì Subsidiaries of WEG GP LLC and Williams Energy Partners L.P.
23
Ì Consent of Independent Auditor.
24
Ì Power of Attorney together with certiÑed resolution.
99
Ì WEG GP LLC consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2002 and notes thereto.
* Each such exhibit has heretofore been Ñled with the Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the
Ñling indicated and is incorporated herein by reference.

